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Technology makes our lives easier and easier with each passing year. Wonderful new

products are being created to help us to do things we never thought possible. The only

question is, how do we use them? This is where we come in. RadioShack has the right

mix of the latest products, accessories and knowledgeable advice to help us connect

the different areas of our lives — where we live, work and play. Why RadioShack?

Simple. REASON ONE — we're close by — in neighborhood stores, local malls or online

2417. We're here, ready and willing to help folks do che things they want with their

technology and toys.

DIGITAL :
PICTURE FRAMES :

“With the memory
card from my
camera, | can

show off our
entire vacation,”

CORDLESS :
PHONES

“This cordless phona
is great! Now, if 1
can anly remember
where | put it, il
be evan hatter!”

: WIRELESS
! COMPUTERS
ACCESSORIES

“With our netwaork,
printer, kayboard,
and mouse — we
are totally wireless!™

GAMING AND
ACCESSORIES :

“Bob at our local
neighborhood store
got us set up

with everything

we need to defeat
the Evil Empire.”

! HOME
. ENTERTAINMENT

“The greatest banatit

of this universal
remote is that the
babysitter can find
her channel without
a two hour tutoriall”




“We found the head-

phones online but “Some days | “Now, not only does
picked tham up at our “No, seriously — all don’t think | could my MP3 player
local mall store. Now the kids at school get home without sound goaod, it looks
that was convenient.” have one!” this thing!" totally cool tool”
PORTABLE : ! PORTABLE DVD GPS ! . MP3 PLAYERS
HEADPHONES - I PLAYERS NAVIGATION . AND ACCESSORIES

REASON TwWO — In this fast-paced world, we must constantly play with our mix of

products to keep you on the go. It's not just about getting from A to B; it’s how you get
from A to B. Whether it’s portable GPS receivers that pinpoint directions to wherever
you are going or portable gaming devices and DVD players that will keep the kids from
asking “are we there yet?” over and over again, we've got it. It's our job to stay up on all
the latest products and accessories, keep them in stock and be ready to inform you of all
the wonderful chings you can do wich chem. And when it comes to power, we have all che

batteries, adaptors, converters and cords to keep you on the move.




‘My webcam puts “How | functioned

my custemers in “Mvy new Bluetooth  “Now | can check “| can’t beliove without my new “In my busingss, it's
the driver’s seat...  headset is so light, | invantory online, something this small smartphone is better to listen to the
literallyt™ forget | have it on.” wheraver | am!” can sto7e 80 much!” unfathomablel” blues than sing them1”
COMPUTERS - WIRELESS ! BROADBAND ! FLASH DRIVES/ : . WIRELESS - SATELLITE

AND ACCESSORIES ©  ACCESSORIES CARD : MEMORY CARDS : ‘! PHONES : RADIO
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REASON THREE — We work hard so, hopefully, you can work a little less. One of the NN
great things abourt all the technology we have at our disposal today is that you can .
set up a virtual office anywhere. From wireless phones and Bluetooth® accessories to

laptops and routers — your office can be wherever you are: your car, your home or a

coffee shop. You name it. We are ready with the products and the advice to point you

in the right direction on how to make your work days a little easier. And, because life

isn't all work and no play - we're here every day with products and services to enhance

your life -- where you live, work and play.




Dear Shareholders:

In my lecter to you in the RadioShack Annual Report a year ago, |
concluded my observations wich the following sentence: “We believe
that by focusing in these areas we will be able to deliver improved
results in 2007, making headway towards delivering the level of
performance you have a right to expece of a well-run business.” I think
ic 1s incumbent on me to report back 1o you on the extent to which
our focus on improvernent areas led to improved results in 2007.

First, let’s look at the resulcs themselves. Annual operating income
for 2006 was $157 million. For 2007, operating income was $382
million, an improvement of 143%. Likewise, your company’s net
income for the year increased from $73 million ro $237 million,
an improvement of 223% from 20006 to 2007. Diluted earnings for
each share thar you hold, accordingly, rose from 54 cents in 2006
o $1.74 in 2007.

Incernally, we use EBITDA* as a key performance measure. On this
measure, too, we achieved significant improvement, wicth EBITDA
rising from $285 million in 2006, to $495 million in 2007.

These improvements were reflected in our balance sheet. Toral debr,
net of cash and cash equivalents, stood at negarive $100 million

at year-end 2007, simply reflecting the fact that at year-end your
company had more cash and cash equivalents on che balance sheet
chan the roral debt of your company, a significant improvement over
the $69 million of ner debt we had at year-end 2006,

So far as financial resules go then, I believe we can say thar your
company enjoyed a very good year. The controls and disciplines
in place during 2007, which aided us in producing these financial
resules, are in a state of conrinual refinement to ensure that we
concinue to benefit from cheir effect in 2008,

But our much improved financial results were not refleceed in our
share price at year end. Those of you who follow the company's
stock price closely will have noted che rapid rise of the stock price
to $33 in the early part of che year, followed by a slow decline to
$16.86 ar the end of the year. To the extent that chis decline may
have been reflective of changes in the macro-economic outlook,

one can only express the hope that the outlook improves during
2008. In addition to the economic outlook cthough, many equity
analysts have expressed concern during the last year ar our decline
in same store sales. In my letter to you last year, I noted that "sales
increases are good when they are profitable, and bad when they are
not,” and 1 would conrinue to stand by rhar self-evident cruch. Bue
I would alse contend that we have now achieved a robust economic
model for your company — a secure and profitable base on which we
now need to build profitable sales.

Accordingly, over the last few months, we have strengthened our
senior management team with key additions in both merchandising
and store operations, and continue to look for ways to upgrade our
management talent to reflect our desire to grow profirable sales.

We also believe chat, based on the economic model now in place at
the company, we are in a position to deploy more capital at acceptable
rates of return to grow the business. In 2007 we spent $45 million on
capital; in 2008 we expect to roughly double that, mainty devoted
to store refurbishment and formar development.

In closing, 2008 currently looks as though it will be a challenging
environment in which to operate. Nonetheless, our course is clear.
We plan to continue to improve the quality of our operations, the
stature of our brand, and the skills of our people throughout this
next year. We believe that, as economic conditions allow, this will
result in the creation of shareholder value at your company,

WQ ﬁoatf

Julian C. Day
Chairman and Chief Execurive Officer

*EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial meavure, is defimed a3 earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization, The comparable financial measure to EBITDA under
GAAP is net income. EBITDA is nsed by managemens 10 evaluate the operating perfor-
niance of oar business for comparable perinds, EBITDA should not be used by investors
or others as the sele baris for formulating invesrment decisions as it excludes a number of
imporiant items. We compensase for this limitation by using GAAP financial measurer
as well in managing our business, In the view of management, EBITDA is an important
indicator of operating performantce becanse EBITDIA excludes the effects of financing and
investing activities by eliminating the effects of interest and depreciation costs.

The following rable iy a reconciliation of EBITDA 1o net income.

Year Ended December 31,
{In miltlions) 2007 2006
Reconciliation of EBITDA to Net Income
EBITDA $ 495 $ 285
Interest expense, net of interest income {16) {37)
Provision for income taxes {130) {38)
Depreciation and amortizacion {113 {128}
Other income (loss), net 1 9
Net income $ 237 $ 73

Stasements pade i this annsual report Hhar et foryard-looking statements involse risks and uncertainties about the financial condition and prospecss of RadisShack Corperation. Actual reults could differ matersally from those exprened

or implied by the forvard-lmking 5. For more iy

1o ign, please see Risk Factors on page 8 and Facrors That May Affect Furure Results on page 40 in the attached Form 10-K.




RadioShack at a Glance

RADIOSHACK STORE, DEALER AND KIOSK COUNT

LOCATIONS NOT ILLUSTRATED

Alaska 26
Hawaii 24
Puerto Rico 53
Virgin Islands 3

SALES BY PLATFORM SALES BY STORE TYPE

Based on 2007 Tatal Sales Based om 2007 Toral Sales # of Stores
® 33.3% Wirless @ 85.6% RadicShack Company-

® 24.2% Accessory : Operated Stores 4,447
® 15.3% Personal Electronics : . .

® 13.1% Modern Home : ® 7.0% Kiosks 739
O 59% Power : O 7.4%  Orher 1,484
O 43% Technical :

Q 2.4% Service

&

1.5% Other

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION (NYSE: RSH) is one af the nation's most experienced and trusted couswmer electronics specialty retailers. Operating from convenient and
comfortable neighborbood and mall locations, RadioShack stores deliver personalized produce and service wolutions within a few short minutes of where most Americans either [ive
or work. The company has a presence through wlmost 6,000 company-operated stores and dealer outlers in the United States, over 150 RadioShack locations in Mexico and nearly
800 wirelers phone kiosks, RadiaShack's dedicated force of knowledgeable and belpful sales asiociates bas been consistently recognized by several independent groups as providing the
best customer service in the consumer electronics and wireless industries. For more information on RadioShack Corporation, or to purchase items online, visit uwnn radioshack.com.
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

GENERAL

RadioShack Corporation was incorporated in Delaware in 1967. We primarily engage in the retail sale of
consumer electronics goods and services through our RadioShack store chain and non-RadioShack
branded kiosk operations. Our strategy is to provide cost-effective solutions to meet the routine electronics
needs and distinct electronics wants of our customers. Throughout this report, the terms “our,” “we,” “us”
and “RadioShack” refer to RadioShack Corporation, including its subsidiaries.

Our day-to-day focus is concentrated in four major areas:

Provide our customers a positive in-store experience

Grow gross proiit dollars by increasing the overall value of each ticket

Control costs continuously throughout the organization

Utilize the funds generated from operations appropriately and invest only in projects that have an
adequate returri or are operationally necessary

Additional information regarding our business segments is presented below and in Management's
Discussion and Analysis; of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (*MD&A”) elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. For information regarding the net sales and operating revenues and
operating income for each of our business segments for fiscal years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, please see Note 28 —~ “Segment Reporting” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

RADIOSHACK COMPANY-OPERATED STORES

At December 31, 2007, we operated 4,447 company-operated stores under the RadioShack brand located
throughout the United States, as well as in Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. These stores are located
in major shopping malls and strip centers, as well as individual storefronts. Each location carries a broad
assortment of both private label and third-party branded consumer electronics products. Our product lines
include wireless telephones and communication devices such as scanners and two-way radios,; flat panet
televisions, residential telephones, DVD players, computers and direct-to-home (“DTH"} satellite systems;
home entertainment, wireless, imaging and computer accessories; general and special purpose batteries;
wire, cable and connectivity products; and digital cameras, radio-controlled cars and other toys, satellite
radios and memory players. We also provide consumers access to third-party services such as wireless
telephone and DTH satellite activation, satellite radio service, prepaid wireless airtime and extended service
plans.

KIOSKS

At December 31, 2007, we operated 739 kiosks located throughout the United States. These kiosks are
primarily inside SAM'S CLUB locations, as well as stand-alone Sprint Nextel kiosks in shopping malls.
These locations, which are not RadioShack-branded, offer primarily wireless handsets and their associated
accessories. We also provide consumers access to third-party wireless telephone services.

OTHER
In addition to the reportable segments discussed above, we have other sales channels and support
operations described as. follows:

Dealer Outlets: At Decamber 31, 2007, we had a network of 1,484 RadioShack dealer outlets, including 36
located outside of North America. These outlets provide private label and third-party branded products and
services, typically to smaller communities. These independent dealers are often engaged in other retail
operations and augment their businesses with our products and service offerings. Our dealer sales derived
outside of the United States are not material.



RadioShack.com: Products and information are available through our commercial Web site
www.radioshack.com. Online customers can purchase, return or exchange various products available
through this Web site. Additionally, certain products ordered online may be picked up, exchanged or
returned at RadioShack stores.

RadioShack Service Centers: We maintain a service and support network to service the consumer
electronics and personal computer retail industry in the U.S. We are a vendor-authorized service provider for
many top tier manufacturers, such as Hewlett-Packard, LG Electronics, Motorola, Nokia, RCA/Thomson,
and Sony, among others. In addition, we perform repairs for third-party extended service plan providers. At
December 31, 2007, we had eight RadioShack service centers in the U.S. and one in Puerto Rico that repair
certain name-brand and private label products sold through our various sales channels.

International Operations: As of January 31, 2007, we had closed all of our locations in Canada. As of
December 31, 2007, there were 176 RadioShack-branded stores and 17 dealers in Mexico. These
RadioShack-branded steres and dealer outlets are overseen by a joint venture in which we are a minority
owner with Grupo Gigante, S.A. de C.V. Our revenues from foreign customers are not material, and we do
not have a material amount of long-lived assets located outside of the United States. We do not
consolidate the operations of the Mexican joint venture in our consolidated financial statements.

Support Operations:
Our retail stores, along with our kiosks and dealer outlets, are supported by an established infrastructure.
Below are the major components of this support structure.

Distribution Centers - At December 31, 2007, we had five distribution centers shipping over 800
thousand cartons each month, on average, to our retail stores and dealer outlets. One of these
distribution centers also serves as a fulfillment center for qur online custorners. Additionally, we have a
distribution center that ships fixtures to our company-operated stores. During the first half of 2008, we
will close our distribution center in Columbus, Qhio.

RadioShack Technology Services (“RSTS") - Our management information system architecture is
composed of a distributed, online network of computers that links all stores, customer channels,
delivery locations, service centers, credit providers, distribution facilities and our home office into a
fully integrated system. Each store has its own server to support the point-of-sale (“POS") system.
The majority of cur company-operated stores communicate through a broadband network, which
provides efficient access to customer support data. This design also allows store management to
track sales and inventory at the product or sales associate level. RSTS provides the majority of our
programming and systems analysis needs.

RadioShack Global Sourcing {“RSGS") - RSGS serves our wide-ranging international import/export,
sourcing, evaluation, logistics and quality control needs. RSGS’s activities support our branded and
private label business.

Consumer Electronics Manufacturing - We operate two manufacturing facilities in the United States
and one overseas manufacturing operation in China. These three manufacturing facilities employed
approximately 1,900 employees as of December 31, 2007. We manufacture a variety of products,
primarily sold through our retail outlets, including telephony, antennas, wire and cable products, and a
variety of “hard-to-find” parts and accessories for consurner electronics products.

SEASONALITY

As with most other specialty retailers, our net sales and operating revenues, operating income and cash
flows are greater during the winter holiday season than during other periods of the year. There is a
corresponding pre-seasonal inventory build-up, which requires working capital related to the anticipated
increased sales volume. This is described in “Cash Flow and Liquidity” under MD&A. Also, refer to Note 27
“Quarterly Data (Unaudited)” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for data showing
seasonality trends. We expect this seasonality to continue.




PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

We own or are licensed to use many trademarks and service marks related to our RadioShack stores in
the United States and in foreign countries. We believe the RadicShack name and marks are well
recognized by consumers, and that the name and marks are associated with high-quality products and
services. We also believe the loss of the RadioShack name and RadioShack marks would have a
material adverse impact on our business. Our private label manufactured products are sold primarily
under the RadioShack trademark and under the Accurian or Gigaware trademark. We also own various
patents and patent applications relating to consumer electronics products.

We do not own any material patents or trademarks associated with our kiosk operations.

SUPPLIERS AND BRANDED RELATIONSHIPS

Our business strategy depends, in part, upon our ability to offer private label and third-party branded
products, as well as to provide our customers access to third-party services. We utilize a large number of
suppliers located in various parts of the world to obtain raw materials and private label merchandise. We
do not expect a lack of availability of raw materials or any single private label product to have a material
impact on our operations overall or on any of our operating segments. We have formed vendor and third-
party service provider relationships with well-recognized companies such as Sprint Nextel, AT&T, Apple
Computer, EchoStar Satellite Corporation (DISH Network), Hewlett-Packard Company and Sirius Sateliite
Radio Inc. (“Sirius.”} In the aggregate, these relationships have or are expected to have a significant impact
on both our operations and financial strategy. Certain of these relationships are important to our business;
the loss of or disruption in supply from these relationships could have a material adverse effect on our net
sales and operating revenues. Additionally, we have been limited from time to time by various vendors
and suppliers strictly on an economic basis where demand has exceeded supply.

ORDER BACKLOG
We have no material backlog of orders in any of our operating segments for the products or services that we
sell.

COMPETITION

Due to consumer demand for wireless products and services, as well as rapid consumer acceptance of
new digital technology products, the consumer electronics retail business continues to be highly
competitive, driven primarily by technology and product cycles.

In the consumer electronics retailing business, competitive factors include price, product availability,
quality and features, consumer services, manufacturing and distribution capability, brand reputation and
the number of competitors. We compete in the sale of our products and services with several retail
formats, including consumer electronics retailers such as Circuit City and Best Buy. Depariment and
specialty retail stores, such as Sears and The Home Depot, compete in more select product categories.
AT&T, Sprint Nextel, and other wireless providers compete directly with us in the wireless telephone
category through their own retail and online presence. Mass merchandisers such as Wal-Mart and
Target, and other alternative channels of distribution such as mail order and e-commerce retailers,
compete with us on a more widespread basis. Numerous domestic and foreign companies also
manufacture products similar to ours for other retailers, which are sold under nationally-recognized brand
names or private labels.

Management believes we have two primary factors differentiating us from our competition. First, we have
an extensive physical retail presence with convenient locations throughout the United States. Second, our
specially trained sales staff is capable of providing cost-effective solutions for our customers’ routine
electronics needs and distinct electronics wants, assisting with the selection of appropriate products and
accessories and, when applicable, assisting customers with service activation.



We cannot give assurance that we will compete successfully in the future, given the highly competitive
nature of the consumer electronics retail business. Also, in light of the ever-changing nature of the
consumer electronics retail industry, we would be adversely affected if our competitors were able to offer
their products at significantly lower prices. Additionally, we would be adversely affected if our competitors
were able to introduce innovative or technologically superior products not yet available to us, or if we
were unable to obtain certain products in a timely manner or for an extended period of time. Furthermore,
our business would be adversely affected if we failed to offer value-added solutions or if our competitors
were to enhance their ability to provide these value-added solutions.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 35,800 employees, including 1,900 temporary seasonal
employees. Our employees are not covered by collective bargaining agreements, nor are they members of
labor unions. We consider our relationship with our employees to be good.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
its rules and regulations. The Exchange Act requires us to file reports, proxy statements and other
information with the SEC. Copies of these reports, proxy statements and other information can be
inspected and copied at:

SEC Public Reference Room
100 F Street, N.E.

Room 1580

Washington, D.C. 20549-0213

You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. You may also obtain copies of any material we have filed with the SEC by mail at prescribed
rates from:

Public Reference Section

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20549-0213

You may obtain these materials electronically by accessing the SEC’s home page on the Internet at:
http:/fwww.sec.gov

In addition, we make available, free of charge on our Internet Web site, our annual report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to these reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as well as our proxy statements, as
soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file this material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. You
may review these documents, under the heading “Investor Relations,” by accessing our corporate Web
site:

http://iwww.radioshackcorporation.com




ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS.

One should carefully consider the following risks and uncertainties described below, as well as other
information set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. There may be additional risks that are not
presently material or known, and the foliowing list should not be construed as an exhaustive list of all
factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-locking
statements made by us,

We may be unable to successfully execute our strategy to provide cost-effective solutions to meet
the routine electronics needs and distinct electronics wants of our customers.

To achieve our strategy, we have undertaken a variety of strategic initiatives. Our failure to successfully
execute our strategy or the occurrence of any of the following events could have a material adverse effect
on our business:

e  Our inability to keep our extensive store distribution systermn updated and conveniently located
near our target customers

+ Our employees’ inability to provide sclutions, answers, and information related to increasingly
complex consumer electronics products

¢ Our inability to recognize evolving consumer electronics trends and offer products that customers
need and want

Adverse changes in national or regional U.S. economic conditions could negatively affect our
financial results.

Adverse economic charnges could have a significant negative impact on U.S. consumer spending,
particularly discretionary spending for consumer electronics products, which, in turn, could directly affect
our overall sales. Consumer confidence, recessionary and inflationary trends, equity market levels,
consumer credit availahility, interest rates, consumers’ disposable income and spending levels, energy
prices, job growth and unemployment rates may impact the volume of customer traffic and level of sales
in our locations. Negative trends of any of these economic conditions, whether national or regional in
nature, could adversely affect our financial results, including our net sales and profitability.

Our inability to increase or maintain profitability in both our wireless and non-wireless platforms
could adversely affect our results.

A critical component of our business strategy is to improve our overall profitability. Cur ability to increase
profitable sales in existing stores may also be affected by:

¢« QOur success in atfracting customers into our stores

« Our ability to choose the correct mix of products to sell

o QOur ability to keep stores stocked with merchandise custoemers will purchase
« Our ability to maintain fully-staffed stores and trained employees

Any reductions or changes in the growth rate of the wireless industry or changes in the dynamics
of the wireless communications industry could cause a material adverse effect on our financial
results,

Sales of wireless handsets and the related commissions and residual income constitute approximately
one-third of our total revenue. Consequently, changes in the wireless industry, such as those discussed
below, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Lack of growth in the overall wireless industry tends to have a corresponding effect on our wireless sales.
Because growth in the wireless industry is often driven by the adoption rate of new wireless handset
technologies, the abserce of these new technologies, or the lack of consumer interest in adopting these
new technologies, could lead to slower growth or a decline in wireless industry profitability, as well as in
our overall profitability.




Another change in the wireless industry that could materially and adversely affect our profitability is
wireless industry consolidation. Consolidation in the wireless industry could lead to a concentration of
competitive strength, particularly competition from wireless carriers’ retail stores, which could adversely
affect our business as competitive levels increase.

Our inability to effectively manage our receivable levels, particularly with our service prowders
could adversely affect our financial results.

We maintain significant receivable balances from various service providers (i.e. Sprint Nexte!l, ATT, Sirius
and DISH) consisting of commissions, residuals and marketing development funds. Changes in the
financial markets or financial condition of these service providers could cause a delay or faiture in
receiving these funds. Failure to receive these payments could have an adverse affect on our financial
results.

We may not be able to maintain our historical gross margin levels.

Historically, we have maintained gross margin levels ranging from 45% to 48%. We may not be able to
maintain these margin levels in the future due to various factors, including increased higher sales of lower
margin preducts such as personal electronics products and third-party branded products. If sales of these
lower margin items continue to increase and reptace sales of higher margin iterns, our gross margin and
overall gross profit levels will be adversely affected.

Our competition is both intense and varied, and our failure to effectively compete could adversely
affect our financial resuits.

In the retail consumer electronics marketplace, the level of competition is intense. We compete primarily
with traditional consumer electronics retail stores and, to a lesser extent, with alternative channels of
distribution such as e-commerce, telephone shopping services and mait order. We also compete with
wireless carriers' retail presence, as discussed above. Changes in the amount and degree of promotional
intensity or merchandising strategy exerted by our current competitors and potential new competition
could present us with difficulties in retaining existing customers, attracting new customers and
maintaining our profit margins.

In addition, some of our competitors may use strategies such as lower pricing, wider selection of
products, larger store size, higher advenriising intensity, improved store design, and more efficient sales
methods. While we attempt to differentiate ourselves from our competitors by focusing on the etectronics
specialty retail market, our business model may not enable us to compete successfully against existing
and future competitors.

Our inability to effectively manage our inventory levels, particularly excess or inadequate
amounts of inventory, could adversely affect our financial results.

We source inventory both domestically and internationally, and our inventory levels are subjectto a
number of factors, some of which are beyond our control. These factors, including technology
advancements, reduced consumer spending and consumer disinterest in our product offerings, could
lead to excess inventory levels. Additionally, we may not accurately assess appropriate product life cycles
or end-of-life products, leaving us with excess inventory. To reduce these inventory levels, we may be
required to lower our prices, adversely impacting our financial results.

Alternatively, we may have inadequate inventory levels for particular items, including popular selling
merchandise, due to factors such as unanticipated high demand for certain products, unavailability of
products from our vendors, import delays, labor unrest, untimely deliveries or the disruption of
international, national or regicnal transportation systems. The effect of the occurrence of any of these
factors on our inventory supply could adversely impact our financial results.




Qur inability to attract, retain and grow an effective management team or changes in the cost or
availability of a suitable workforce to manage and support our operating strategies could cause
our operating results {o suffer.

Our success depends in large part upon our ability to attract, motivate and retain a qualified management
team and employees. Qualified individuals needed to fill necessary positions could be in short supply.
The inability to recruit and retain such individuals on a continuous basis could result in high employee
turnover at our stores and in our company overall, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business and financial results. Additionally, competition for qualified employees requires us to continually
assess our compensation structure. Competition for qualified employees has required, and in the future
could require, us to pay higher wages to attract a sufficient number of qualified employees, resulting in
higher labor compensation expense. In addition, mandated changes in the federal minimum wage may
adversely affect our compensation expense.

Our inability to successfully identify and enter into relationships with developers of new
technologies or the failure of these new technologies to be adopted by the market could impact
our ability to increase or maintain our sales and profitability. Additionally, the absence of new
services or products and product features in the merchandise categories we sell could adversely
affect our sales and profitability.

Our ability to maintain and increase revenues depends, to a large extent, on the periodic introduction and
availability of new products and technologies. If we fail to identify these new products and technologies,
or if we fail to enter into relationships with their developers prior to widespread distribution within the
market, our sales and profitability could be adversely affected. Furthermore, it is possible that these new
products or technologies will never achieve widespread consumer acceptance, also adversely affecting
our sales and profitability. Finally, the lack of innovative consumer electronics products, features or
services that can be effactively featured in our store model could also impact our ability to increase or
maintain our sales and profitability.

Failure to enter into, maintain and renew profitable relationships with providers of third-party
branded products could adversely affect our sales and profitability.

Our large selection of third-party branded products makes up a significant portion of our overall sales. If
we are unable to create, maintain or renew our relationships with the suppliers of these products, our
sales and our profitability could be adversely impacted.

The occurrence of severe weather events or natural disasters could significantly damage or
destroy outlets or prohibit consumers from traveling to our retail locations, especially during the
peak winter holiday shopping season.

If severe weather or a catastrophic natural event, such as a hurricane or earthquake, occurs in a
particular region and damages or destroys a significant number of our stores in that area, our overall
sales would be reduced accordingly. In addition, if severe weather, such as heavy snowfall or extreme
temperatures, discourages or restricts customers in a particular region from traveling to our stores, our
sales would also be adversely affected. If severe weather occurs during the fourth quarter holiday
season, the adverse impact to our sales and gross profit could be even greater than at other times during
the year because we generate a significant portion of our sales and gross profit during this pericd.

We have contingent lease obligations related to our discontinued retail operations that, if realized,
could materially and adversely affect our financial results.

We have contingent liabilities related to retail leases of locations which were assigned to other
businesses. The majority of these contingent liabilities relate to various lease obligations arising from
leases assigned to CompUSA, Inc. as part of the sale of our Computer City, Inc. subsidiary to CompUSA
in August 1998, In the event CompUSA or the other assignees, as applicable, are unable to fulfill these
obligations, we may be responsible for rent due under the leases, which could have a material adverse
affect on our financial results.
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Failure to comply with, or the additional implementation of, restrictions or regulations regarding
the products and/or services we sell or changes in tax rules and regulations applicable to us
could adversely affect our business and our financial results.

We are subject to various federal, state, and local laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the
Fair Labor Standards Act and ERISA, each as amended, and regulations promulgated by the Internal
Revenue Service, the United States Department of Labor, the Occupational Safety and Health
Administration, and the Environmental Protection Agency. Failure to properly adhere to these and other
applicable laws and reguiations could result in the imposition of penalties or adverse legal judgments and
could adversely affect our business and our financial results. Similarly, the cost of complying with newly-
implemented laws and regulations could adversely affect our business and our financial results.

Any potential tariffs imposed on products that we import from China, as well as any significant
strengthening of China’s currency against the U.S. dollar, could negatively impact our financial
results.

We purchase a significant portion of our inventory from manufacturers located in China. Changes in trade
regulations (including tariffs on imports} or the continued strengthening of the Chinese currency against
the U.S. doltar could increase the cost of items we purchase, which in turn could have a material adverse
effect on our financial results.

Failure to protect the integrity and security of our customers’ information could expose us to
litigation, as well as materially damage our standing with our customers.

Increasing costs associated with information security, including increased investments in technology, the
costs of compliance with consumer protection laws, and costs resulting from consumer fraud could cause
our business and results of operations to suffer materially. Additionally, if a significant compromise in the
security of our customer information, including persenal identification data, were to occur, it could have a
material adverse effect on our reputation, business, operating results and financial condition, and could
increase the costs we incur to protect against such security breaches.

Any terrorist activities in the U.S,, as well as the international war on terror, could adversely affect
our results of operations.

A terrorist attack or series of attacks on the United States could have a significant adverse impact on the
United States’ economy. This downturn in the economy could, in turn, have a material adverse effect on
our results of operations. The potential for future terrorist attacks, the national and international
responses to terrorist attacks, and other acts of war or haostility could cause greater uncertainty and cause
the economy to suffer in ways that we cannot predict.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Information on our properties is located in MD&A and the financial statements included in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K and is incorporated into this Item 2 by reference. The following items are discussed further in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Property, Plant and Equipment Note 5
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities Note 14
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We lease, rather than own, most of our retail facilities. Our stores are located in shopping malls, stand-alone
buildings and shopping centers owned by other entities. We lease one distribution center in the United
States and four administrative offices and one manufacturing plant in China. Our leased distribution center in
Columbus, Chio, will be closed during the first half of 2008. We own the property on which the other five
distribution centers and two manufacturing facilities are located within the United States. We sold and leased
back the buildings and certain property at our corporate headquarters located in downtown Fort Worth,
Texas. In connection with this transaction, we entered into a 20-year lease agreement in December 2005,
with four five-year options to renew.

RETAIL OUTLETS
The table below shows our retail locations at December 31, 2007, allocated among domestic RadioShack
company-operated storas, kiosks and deater and other outlets.

Average
Store Size At December 31,
(Sq. Ft.) 2007 2006 2005
RadioShack company-operated stores " 2,527 4,447 4,467 4,972
Kiosks @ 99 739 772 777
Dealer and other outlets ¥ N/A 1,484 1,596 1,711
Total number of retzil locations 6,670 6,835 7,460

M 1n 2007, we closec 20 RadioShack company-operated stores, net of new store openings and relocations. Qur 2006
decline resulted primarily from the implementation of our restructuring program, which included the closure of 481
company-operatec stores, as well as our decision not to renew leases on other locations that failed to meet our
financial return goals. See “2006 Restructuring Review” included in MD&A below.

@ Kiosks, which include Sprint-branded and SAM'S CLUB kiosks, decreased by 33 locations during 2007. As of
December 31, 2007, SAM'S CLUB had the unconditional right to assume the operation of up to 125 kiosk locations
based on contractual rights and our failure to achieve certain performance mefrics. No kiosk operations were
unilaterally assumed by SAM'S CLUB during 2008 or 2007.

©' " During 2007, our dealer and other outlets decreased by 112 locations, net of new openings. This decline was
primarily due to the closure of smaller outlets and conversion of dealers to RadioShack company-operated stores.
Additionally, as of January 31, 2007, we had closed all of our locations in Canada. In 2006, we closed 115 dealer
locations, net of new openings, primarily due to the closure of smaller outlets that did not meet our financial return
goals.

Real Estate Owned and Leased
Approximate Square Footage
At December 31,

2007 2006

(In thousands) Owned Leased Total Owned Leased Total
Retail
RadioShack company-

operated stores 18 11,218 11,236 18 11,134 11,152
Kiosks -- 73 73 - 78 78
Canadian company-

operated stores -- - -- -- 23 23
Support Operations
Manufacturing 134 466 600 134 320 454
Distribution centers

and office space 2,229 1,543 3,772 2,229 1,750 3,979

2,381 13,300 15,681 2,381 13,305 15,686
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Below is a complete listing at December 31, 2007, of our top 40 dominant marketing areas for RadioShack

company-operated stores, kiosks and deaters.

Dominant Marketing Area

Company Stores,
Kiosks and Dealers

-
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New York City

Los Angeles

Chicago

Fort Worth-Dallas

Philadelphia

Washington, DC

Houston

Boston

San Francisco-QOakland-San Jose
Atlanta

Denver

Seattle-Tacoma

Minneapolis-St. Paul

Cleveland

Phoenix

Tampa-St. Petersburg

Detroit

Miami-Ft. Lauderdale

St. Louis

Orlando-Daytona Beach-Melbourne
Sacramento-Stockton-Modesto
Pittsburgh

Portland, Oregon

Salt Lake City

Indianapolis

Raleigh-Durham

Baltimore

Hartford-New Haven

Charlotte

Nashville
Norfolk-Portsmouth-Newport News
Cincinnati

Kansas City
Greenville-Spartanburg-Asheville
San Antonio

Milwaukee

San Diego

Albuquerque-Santa Fe

Columbus

Grand Rapids-Kalamazoo-Battle Creek
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386
304
167
161
160
137
131
129
124
115
102
99
g7
94
93
88
84
84
79
74
69
68
65
64
63
60
57
56
55
51
51
50
50
49
49
47
46
45
44
42

TOTAL: 3,789



ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
Refer to Note 13 — “Litigation” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2007.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT (SEE ITEM 10 OF PART lil).
The following is a list, as of February 15, 2008, of our executive officers and their ages and positions.

Position Executive
Name (Date Appointed to Current Position) Officer Since  Age

Julian C. Day (1) Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the 2006 55
Board (July 2006)

Bryan Bevin (2) Executive Vice President - Store Operations 2008 45
{January 2008)

James F. Gooch (3) Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 2006 40
Officer (August 2006)

Peter J. Whitsett (4) Executive Vice President — Chief 2007 42
Merchandising Officer (December 2007)

Robert J. Kilinski (5) Senior Vice President — Marketing and 2007 50
Wireless (July 2007)

Cara D. Kinzey (6) Senior Vice President — Information 2006 41
Technology (March 2006)

John G. Ripperton (7) Senior Vice President — Supply Chain 2006 54
{August 2006)

Martin O. Mcad (8) Vice President and Controller (August 2007) 2007 51

There are no family relalionships among the executive officers listed, and there are no undisclosed
arrangements or understandings under which any of them were appointed as executive officers. All
executive officers of RadioShack Corporation are appointed by the Board of Directors to serve until their
successors are appoeinted.

(1) Mr. Day was appointed Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of RadioShack in July
2006. Prior to his appointment, Mr. Day was a private investor. Mr. Day became the President
and Chief Operating Officer of Kmart Corporation in March 2002 and served as Chief Executive
Officer of Kmart from January 2003 to October 2004. Following the merger of Kmart and Sears,
Roebuck and Co., Mr. Day served as a Director of Sears Holding Corporation (the parent
company of Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Kmart Corporation) until April 2008. Mr. Day joined
Sears as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in 1999, and was promoted to
Chief Operating Officer and a member of the Office of the Chief Executive, where he served until
2002.

(2) Mr. Bevin was appointed Executive Vice President — Store Operations in January 2008. Before
joining RadioShack, Mr. Bevin was Senior Vice President, U.S. Operations, for Blockbuster
Entertainment from January 2006 until October 2007, and Senior Vice President/General
Manager — Games from June 2005 untit December 2005. Prior to joining Blockbuster, Mr. Bevin
was Vice President of Retail for Cingular and Managing Director for Interactive Telecom
Solutions.
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(3)

(4)

(6)

()

(8)

Mr. Gooch was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in August 20086.
Previously, Mr. Gooch served as Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Officer of
Entertainment Publications from May 2005 to August 2006. From 1996 to May 2005, Mr. Gooch
served in various positions at Kmart Corporation, including Vice President, Controller and
Treasurer, and Vice President, Corporate Financial Planning and Analysis.

Mr. Whitsett was appointed Executive Vice President — Chief Merchandising Officer in December
2007. Previously, Mr. Whitsett was Senior Vice President, Kmart Merchandising Officer, from
July 2005 until November 2007. He joined Kmart in 1999 as Director, Merchandise Planning &
Replenishment, and later served as Divisional Vice President, Merchandise Planning, Divisional
Vice President, Merchandising Consumables, Vice President/General Merchandise Manager,
Drug Store and Food, and Vice President/General Merchandise Manager.

Mr. Kilinski was appointed Senior Vice President — Marketing and Wireless in July 2007. Mr.
Kilinski joined RadioShack in 1978 and has served as Vice President - Marketing & Wireless,
Vice President - Brand Development & Communications, Vice President - Marketing, Vice
President - Customer Acquisition & Retention, Senior Vice President - Marketing Implementation
& Services, Senior Division Vice President & General Manager - Connecting Places, Senicr
Division Vice President - Strategic Services, Division Vice President - Service & Support, and
Executive Vice President and Director for AmeriLink Corp. and Nacom Corporation, two former
wholly-owned subsidiaries of RadioShack.

Ms. Kinzey was appointed Senior Vice President — Information Technology in March 2006. Before
joining RadioShack, Ms. Kinzey served as Vice President — Membership, Member Services and
Credit for SAM'S CLUB and as Vice President — HR/Finance/Corporate Systems and Vice
President of Store Systems for Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

Mr. Ripperton was appointed Senior Vice President — Supply Chain Management in August 2006.
Mr. Ripperton jeined RadioShack in 2000 and has served as Vice President — Distribution,
Division Vice President - Distribution, Group General Manager, and Distribution Center Manager.

Mr. Moad was appointed Vice President and Controller in August 2007. He has worked for
RadioShack for more than 25 years, and has served as Vice President and Treasurer, Vice
President - Investor Relations, Director - Investor Relations, Vice President — Controller
{interTAN, Inc.), Vice President — Assistant Secretary (InterTAN, Inc.), Assistant Secretary
{InterTAN, Inc.}, Controller — International Division, and Staff Accountant — International Division.
InterTAN, Inc., was an NYSE-registered spin-off of RadioShack’s international units.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Qur common stock is listed an the New York Stock Exchange and trades under the symbol "RSH." The
following table presents the high and low trading prices for our common stock, as reported in the composite
transaction quotations of consolidated trading for issues on the New York Stock Exchange, for each quarter
in the two years ended December 31, 2007.

Dividends
Quarter Ended High Low Declared
December 31, 2007 $ 2342 $ 16.72 $ 025
September 30, 2007 34.98 20.09 -
June 30, 2007 35.00 26.66 --
March 31, 2007 27.88 16.69 -
December 31, 2006 $ 20.40 $ 16.49 $ 025
September 30, 2006 19.71 13.76 -
June 30, 2006 18.83 14.00 -
March 31, 2006 22.90 18.74 -
HOLDERS OF RECORD

At February 15, 2008, there were 19,484 holders of record of our common stock.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors annually reviews our dividend policy. On November 12, 2007, our Board of
Directors declared an annual dividend of $0.25 per share. The dividend was paid on December 19, 2007,
to stockholders of record on November 29, 2007.

The following table sets forth information concerning purchases made by or on behalf of RadioShack or
any affiliated purchaser (as defined in the SEC’s rules) of RadioShack common stock for the periods
indicated.

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY RADIOSHACK

Total Number Approximate
of Shares Dollar Value of
Purchased as Shares That May
Part of Publicly Yet Be

Total Number Average Announced Purchased Under
of Shares Price Paid Plans or the Plans or
Purchased per Share Programs ‘" Programs
October 1 - 31, 2007 $ $ 1,390,147
November 1 = 30, 2007 - $ - --- $ 1,390,147
December 1 — 31, 2007 -~ 58 - o $ 1,390,147

Total $

M These publicly announced plans or programs consist of RadioShack's $250 million share repurchase program, which was

announced on March 16, 2005, and has no expiration date. On August 5, 2005, we suspended purchases under the $250
million share repurchase program during the period in which a financial institution purchased shares pursuant to an
overnight share repurchase program. During March 2007, management resumed share repurchases under the $250
million program; hovsever, no shares were repurchased during the second and fourth guarters of 2007. For the twelve
months ended December 31, 2007, we repurchased 8.7 million shares or $208.5 million of our common stock. As of
December 31, 2007, there was $1.4 million available for share repurchases under the $250 million share repurchase
program. During the period covered by this table, no publicly announced plan or program expired or was terminated, and
no determination wes made by RadioShack to suspend or cancel purchases under our program.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
RADIOSHACK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounis, 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
ratios, locations and square footage)

Statements of Income Data

Net sales and operating revenues $ 42517 $4777.5 $ 5,081.7 $ 48412 $ 4,649.3
Operating income $ 3819 $ 1569 $ 3499 $ 5583 $ 4837
Net income $ 2368 $ 734 $ 267.0 $ 337.2 $ 2085
Net income per share:
Basic $ 176 $ 054 $ 1.80 $ 209 $ 178
Diluted $ 174 $ 054 $ 179 $ 208 $ 177
Shares used in computing income per share:
Basic 134.6 136.2 148.1 161.0 167.7
Diluted 1359 136.2 148.8 162.5 168.9
Gross profit as a percent of sales " 47.6% 44.6% 44.6% 48.2% 47.4%
SG&A expense as a percent of sales " 36.2% 37.9% 35.5% 34.8% 35.3%
Operating income as a percent of sales 9.0% 3.3% 6.9% 11.5% 10.4%
Balance Sheet Data
Inventories, net $ 7054 $ 7521 $ 9649 $1,003.7 $ 7665
Total assets $ 19896 $ 2,070.0 $ 2,205.1 $ 25167 $ 22439
Working capital $ 8188 $ 6154 $ 6410 $ 8177 $ 8085
Capital structure:
Current debt $ 61.2 $ 1949 L) 40.9 5 55.6 $ 774
Long-term debt $ 3482 $ 3458 $ 4949 $ 5069 $ 5413
Total debt $ 4094 $ 5407 $ 5358 $ 5625 $ 6187
Total debt, net of cash and cash equivalents $ (100.3) $ 687 $ 3118 $ 1246 $ (16.0)
Stockholders' equity $ 7697 $ 6538 $ 5888 $ 9221 $ 769.3
Total capitalization $1,179.1 $ 1,194.5 $ 1,124.6 $ 1,484.6 $ 1,388.0
Long-term debt as a % of total capitalization @ 29.5% 29.0% 44.0% 34.1% 39.0%
Total debt as a % of total capitalization © 34.7% 45.3% 47.6% 37.9% 44.6%
Book value per share at year end $ 587 $ 481 $ 436 $ 583 $ 473
Financial Ratios
Return on average stockholders' equity 33.2% 11.8% 35.3% 39.9% 39.9%
Return on average assets 12.3% 3.4% 11.3% 14.2% 13.4%
Annual inventory turnover 33 29 27 26 28
Other Data
EBITDA @ S 4946 $ 285.1 $ 4737 $ 6597 $ 5757
Dividends declared per share $ 0325 $ 025 $ 0325 3 025 $ 025
Capital expenditures $ 453 $ 910 $ 1707 $ 2294 $ 189.6
Number of retail locations at year end 6,670 6.835 7,460 7,433 7,051
Average square footage per RadioShack
company-operated store 2,527 2,496 2,489 2,529 2,450
Comparable store sates {decrease) increase (8.2%) (5.6%) 0.9% 3.2% 2.4%
Shares outstanding 131.1 135.8 135.0 158.2 162.5

This table should be read in conjunction with MD&A and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes.
V" Amounts have been revised. Refer to Note 2 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the section titled
“Revision of Expense Ciassification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete discussion
regarding the revision. Further, as a result of the revision for years 2004 and 2003, costs of products sold increased by
$100.8 million and $110.5 million, SG&A decreased by $30.2 million and $97.7 million, and depreciation inctuded in
operating expenses decreased by $10.6 million and $12.8 million, respectively.

Capitalization is defined as total debt plus total stockholders' equity.

EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, is defined as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. The
comparable financial measure to EBITDA under GAAP is net income. EBITDA is used by management to evaluate the
operating performance of our business for comparable periods. EBITDA should not be used by investors or others as the
sole basis for formulating investment decisions as it excludes a number of important items. We compensate for this
limitation by using GAAP financial measures as well in managing our business. In the view of management, EBITDA is an
impartant indicator of operating performance because EBITDA excludes the effects of financing and investing activities by
eliminating the effects of interest and depreciation costs.

2)
(3
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The foliowing table is a raconciliation of EBITDA to net income.

{In millions}
Reconciliation of EBITDA to Net Income
EBITDA

Interest expense, net of interest income

Provision for income taxes

Depreciation and amortization

Other income {loss), net

Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of $1.8 million tax benefit in 2005

Net income

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
$ 4946 $ 285.1 $ 4737 $ 659.7 $ 575.7
(16.2) (36.9) (38.6) (18.2) (22.9)
(129.8) (38.0) (51.6) (204.9) (174.3)
(112.7) (128.2) (123.8) (101.4) (92.0)
0.9 (8.6) 10.2 2.0 12.0

- -~ (2.9) - -

$ 2368 $§ 734 $ 267.0 $ 337.2 $ 2985

18




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (“MD&A”).

This MD&A section discusses our results of operations, liquidity and financial condition, risk management
practices, critical accounting policies, and estimates and certain factors that may affect our future results,
including economic and industry-wide factors. Our MD&A should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes, included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
as well as the Risk Factors set forth in Item 1A above.

Subsequent to the end of 2007, we determined that we should revise the classification of certain expenses
relating to merchandise acquisition and the operation of our distribution centers, including depreciation, in
our Consolidated Statements of Income. This revision had no impact on previously reported operating
income, net income, financiat position, stockholders’ equity, comprehensive income, or cash flows from
operating activities. Our policy is, and historically has been, to capitalize such amounts into inventory.
However, historically upon capitalization of these expenses, we increased inventory and previously
decreased cost of products sold, rather than decreasing selling, general and administrative (‘SG&A")
expense where these expenses were originally recorded. As a result, we had understated cost of products
sold and overstated SG&A expense and, to a lesser extent, depreciation. We believe the revised
presentation provides consistency between our consolidated balance sheets and statements of income by
aligning the classification of our distribution costs within our statements of income in the manner in which
these costs are included in our inventory balance. Refer to Note 2 — "Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” under the section titled “Revision of Expense Classification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a complete discussion regarding the revision. The following discussion and analysis has
been updated to reflect this revision.

OVERVIEW
Highlights related to the year ended December 31, 2007, include:

+ Net sales and operating revenues decreased $525.8 million to $4,251.7 million, compared to the
corresponding prior year period. Comparable store sales decreased 8.2%. This decline was
primarily due to a sales decrease in our wireless and personal electronics platforms.

+ Gross margin increased 300 basis peints to 47.6% compared to the corresponding prior year
period. This increase was primarity due to improved inventory management and a shift in our
product mix.

* SG&A expense decreased $272.2 million to $1,538.5 million, compared to the corresponding prior
year period. As a percentage of net sales and operating revenues, SG8A declined 170 basis
points to 36.2%. A significant portion of this improvement was attributable to decreased
compensation as a result of reductions in our corporate and store personnel in 2006 and better
management of store labor hours. Other factors leading to the decline of SG&A included a
decrease in professional fees driven by reduced legal costs related to our defense of certain class
action lawsuits during 2006, as well as a reduction in the use of consultants. The SG&A
improvement also resulted from $44.6 million in severance and other restructuring charges
recognized in 20086, and a $14.3 million reduction of accrued vacation in 2007 in connection with
the modification of our employee vacation policy during 2007.

¢ QOperating income increased $225.0 million to $381.9 million, and net income increased $163.4
million to $236.8 million, compared to the corresponding prior year period. The results for the year
ended December 31, 2008, included pre-tax impairment charges of $44.3 million. Net income per
diluted share was $1.74 for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to $0.54 for the
corresponding prior year period.
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2006 RESTRUCTURING REVIEW
Due to negative trends that developed in our business during calendar year 2005, we announced a
restructuring program on February 17, 2006, that contained four key components:

e Update our inventory

« Focus on our top-performing RadioShack company-operated stores, while closing 400 to 700
RadioShack company-operated stores, and aggressively relocate other RadioShack company-
operated stores

» Consolidate our distribution centers

» Reduce our overhead costs

Through December 31, 2006, we conducted a liquidation of certain inventory during the summer and fall
of 2006, and replaced underperforming merchandise with new faster-moving merchandise. During the
summer of 2006, we also focused on our top-performing stores and completed the closure of 481
underperforming stores, reducing the number of retail employees in connection with these closures.
Additionally, we consolidated our distribution centers in the fall of 2006. Management also reduced our
cost structure; including our advertising spend rate and our workforce within our corporate headquarters.
A number of other cost raductions were implemented. As of December 31, 2006, we considered our
restructuring program to be substantially complete.

The 2006 restructuring affects comparability in certain areas of this MD&A discussion and is discussed
where necessary.

See “Financial Impact of Restructuring Program” below for a discussion of the financial impact of our
2006 restructuring program.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NET SALES AND OPERATING REVENUES

Consolidated net sales cecreased 11.0% or $525.8 million to $4,251.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007, frorn $4,777.5 million in the corresponding prior year period. This decrease was
primarily due to a compzrable store sales decline of 8.2% for the year ended December 31, 2007, in
addition to the closure of 481 company-operated stores during June and July 2006 as part of our 2006
restructuring. Approximately 290 of the 481 stores were closed in July 20086, with a majority of the
remainder closed in the last half of June 2006. The decrease in comparable store sales was primarily
caused by a decline in our wireless and personal electronics platform sales.

Consolidated net sales and operating revenues for our two reportable segments and other sales are as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005
RadioShack company-operated stores $ 36377 $ 40798 $ 44808
Kiosks 297.0 340.5 262.7
Other sales 317.0 357.2 338.2
Consolidated net sales and operating revenues  $  4,251.7 $ 47775 $ 50817
Consolidated net sales and operating

revenues (decrease) increase {11.0%) (6.0%) 5.0%
Comparable store sates (decrease) increase " (8.2%) (5.6%) 0.9%

' Comparable store sales include the sales of RadioShack company-operated stores and kiosks with more than 12

full months of recotded sales.
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The following table provides a summary of our consolidated net sales and operéting revenues by platform
and as a percent of net sales and operating revenues. These consolidated platform sales include sales
from our RadioShack company-operated stores and kiosks, as well as other sales.

Consolidated Net Sales and Operating Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

(In_millions}) 2007 2006 2005
Wireless $ 14164 33.3% $ 1,654.8 34.6% $1746.0 34.4%
Accessory 1,029.7 24.2 1,087.6 228 1,040.1 20.5
Personal electronics 650.7 15.3 751.8 15.7 746.7 14.7
Modern home 556.1 13.1 611.9 12.8 672.6 13.2
Power 251.3 59 271.4 57 3023 5.9
Technical 184.4 4.3 198.4 42 205.2 4.0
Service 100.5 2.4 106.3 2.2 262.5 5.2
Service centers and cther

sales " 62.6 1.5 95.3 2.0 106.3 2.1
Consolidated net sales and

operating revenues $ 42517 100.0% $4,777.5 100.0% $5,081.7 100.0%

M Service centers and other sales include outside sales from our service centers, in addition to RadioShack

company-operated store repair revenue, and outside sales of our global socurcing operations and domestic and
overseas manufacturing facilities.

2007 COMPARED WITH 2006
RadioShack Company-Operated Stores

The following table provides a summary of our net sales and operating revenues by platform and as a
percent of net sales and operating revenues for the RadioShack segment.

Net Sales and Operating Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

{In_millions) 2007 2006 2005
Wireless $ 1,085.6 29.8% $ ,288.1 31.6% $1,4533 32.4%
Accessory 949.3 26.1 1,006.6 24,7 976.8 21.8
Personal electronics 589.8 16.2 683.1 16.8 680.1 15.2
Modern home 494.5 13.6 539.5 13.2 602.4 13.4
Power 235.8 6.5 258.1 6.3 289.1 6.5
Technical 171.9 47 184.6 4.5 192.1 4.3
Service 97.3 2.7 102.3 25 2553 57
Other revenue 13.5 0.4 17.5 0.4 31.7 0.7
Net sales and operating

revenues $ 3,637.7 100.0% $4,079.8 100.0% $ 4,480.8 100.0%

To assist in comparability, the revenue discussion presented below primarily analyzes results excluding
the closed stores in 2006.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our wireless platform (includes postpaid and
prepaid wireless handsets, commissions, residual income and communication devices such as scanners
and GPS} decreased 13.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007, when compared to the
corresponding prior year period. This decrease was primarily driven by a decline in postpaid wireless
sales for our two main wireless carriers. We believe that these sales declines were the result of increased
wireless competition, a challenging wireless industry environment, and a shift to prepaid handsets and
corresponding service plans. This decrease, however, was partially offset by increased sales of GPS
products, particularly in the fourth quarter of 2007, and prepaid wireless handset sales. Including the
effects of the 2006 store closures, wireless platform sales for the year ended December 31, 2007,
decreased 15.7%.
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Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our accessory platform (includes home
entertainment, wireless, music and computer accessories; media storage; power adapters; digital
imaging products and headphones) decreased 2.3% for the year ended December 31, 2007, when
compared to the corresponding prior year period. This decrease was primarily the result of declines in
wireless and home entertainment accessory sales, but partially offset by increases in media storage and
imaging accessories sales. Including the effects of the 2006 store closures, accessory platform sales for
the year ended December 31, 2007, decreased 5.7%.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our personal electronics platform (includes
digital cameras, digital music players, toys, satellite radios, camcorders, general radios, and wellness
products) decreased 11.7% for the year ended December 31, 2007, when compared to the
corresponding prior year period. This decrease was driven primarily by sales declines in satellite radios
and digital music players, but was partially offset by increased sales of video gaming products. Including
the effects of the 2006 store closures, personal electronics platform sales for the year ended December
31, 2007, decreased 13.7%.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our modern home platform (includes residential
telephones, home audio and video end-products, direct-to-home (“DTH") satellite systems, and
computers) decreased £.7%, for the year ended December 31, 2007, when compared to the
corresponding prior year period. This decrease was the result of sales declines in residential telephones,
and DVD players and recorders, offset by increased sales of laptop computers, PC peripherals, and flash
drives. Including the effects of the 2006 store closures, modern home platform sales for the year ended
December 31, 2007, decreased 8.3%.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our power platform (includes general and
special purpose batteries and battery chargers) decreased 5.6% for the year ended December 31, 2007,
when compared to the corresponding prior year period. This sales decline was the result of decreased
sales of general purpose and special purpose telephone batteries. Including the effects of the 2006 store
closures, power platform sales for the year ended December 31, 2007, decreased 8.6%.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our technicai platform (includes wire and cable,
connectivity products, components and tools, as well as hobby and robotic products) decreased 2.2% for
the year ended December 31, 2007, when compared to the corresponding prior year period. This sales
decline was due primarily to a decrease in sales of robotic kits, metal detectors and tools, partially offset
by an increase in audio cable sates. Including the effects of the 2006 store closures, technical platform
sales for the year ended December 31, 2007, decreased 6.9%.

Excluding the effects of the 2006 store closures, sales in our service platform (includes prepaid wireless
airtime, extended service plans and bill payment revenue) decreased 2.6% for the year ended December
31, 2007, when compared to the corresponding prior year period. Prepaid airtime sales increased for the
year ended December 31, 2007; however, this gain was more than offset by decreases in hill payment
revenue. Including the effects of the 2006 store closures, service platform sales for the year ended
December 31, 2007, decreased 4.9%.

Other revenue (includes RS company-operated store repair revenue and other revenue) decreased $4.0

million or 22.9% for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the prior year, due in part to the
20086 store closures and to a decline in store repair revenue.
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Kiosks

Kiosk sales consist primarily of handset sales, postpaid and prepaid commission revenue and related
wireless accessory sales. Kiosk sales decreased 12.8% or $43.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2007, when compared to the corresponding prior year period. While this decrease is partially
attributable to fewer kiosk locations compared to the prior year, we believe that this sales decline was
primarily the result of increased wireless competition, a challenging wireless industry environment, and a
customer shift to prepaid handsets which are generally priced lower than postpaid handsets.

Other Sales

Other sales include sales to our independent dealers, outside sales through our service centers, sales
generated by our www.radioshack.com Web site, sales to our Mexican joint venture, sales to commercial
customers, outside sales of our global sourcing eperations and manufacturing facilities and, in 20086,
sales of our now closed Canadian company-operated stores. Other sales were down $40.2 million or
11.3% for the year ended December 31, 2007, respectively, when compared to the corresponding pricr
year period. This sales decrease was primarily due to the sale or closure of five service centers late in the
second quarter of 2006, fewer dealer outlets in 2007, and a decline in product sales to the remaining
dealers.

GROSS PROFIT
Consolidated gross profit and gross margin are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

{In miflions) 2007 2006 2005
Gross profit $ 20258 $ 21294 $ 22667
Gross profit decrease {(4.9%) (6.1%) (2.9%}
Gross margin 47.6% 44.6% 44.6%

Consolidated gross profit and gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2007, were $2,025.8 million
and 47.6%, respectively, compared with $2,129.4 million and 44.6% in the corresponding prior year
period, resulting in a 4.9% decrease in gross profit dollars and a 300 basis point increase in our gross
margin.

The decrease in gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2007, was the result of a decline in net
sales and operating revenues primarily due to a comparable store sales decrease and store closures
associated with our 2006 restructuring. Our 2007 gross margin increased primarily due to an
improvement in our inventory management and a shift in product mix. In addition, refunds of $14.0 million
and $5.2 million for federal telecommunications excise taxes were recorded in the first and fourth quarters
of 2007, respectively. A portion of these refunds totaling $18.8 million was recorded as a reduction to cost
of products sold, which accounted for a 44 basis point increase in our gross margin. See Note 12 —
“Federal Excise Tax” for a discussion of the impact of the federal telecommunications excise tax.
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SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE (*SG&A”) EXPENSE

Our consolidated SG&A expense decreased 15.0% or $272.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2007, when compared to the corresponding prior year period. This represents a 170 basis point decrease
as a percentage of net sales and operating revenues compared to the corresponding prior year period.

The table below summarizes the breakdown of various components of our consolidated SG&A expense
and its related percentage of total net sales and operating revenues.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 " 2005 "
% of % of % of
Sales & Sales & Sales &

{In millions) Dollars  Revenues Dollars  Revenues Dollars  Revenues
Payroll and commissions $ 63886 15.0% $ 7982 16.7% $ 7679 15.1%
Rent 304.7 7.2 31241 6.5 2921 57
Advertising 208.8 4.9 216.3 45 263.1 5.2
Other taxes (excludes .

income taxes) 103.0 24 121.2 25 120.8 24
Utilities and telephone 61.4 1.4 64.7 14 68.5 1.4
Insurance 58.1 1.4 62.8 13 63.1 1.2
Credit card fees 37.8 0.9 40.1 0.8 40.4 0.8
Professional fees 19.1 0.4 49.2 1.0 43.3 0.9
Licenses 12.7 0.3 13.2 0.3 13.4 0.3
Repairs and maintenance 10.9 0.3 11.7 0.3 11.6 0.2
Printing, postage and office

supplies 9.6 0.2 117 0.3 10.3 0.2
Stock purchase and

savings plans 7.2 0.2 11.1 0.2 15.5 0.3
Recruiting, training &

employee relations 6.8 0.2 12.3 0.3 14.6 0.3
Travel 5.2 0.1 8.3 0.2 10.3 0.2
Warranty and product repair 5.1 0.1 7.1 0.1 11.9 0.2
Other 49.5 1.2 70.7 1.5 56.5 1.1

$ 1,5385 36.2% $ 1,810.7 37.9% $ 18033 35.5%

" Amounts have been revised. Refer to Note 2 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the section titled
“Revision of Expense Classification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete discussion.

Payroll and commissions expense decreased in dollars and as a percentage of net sales and operating
revenues. This decreasz was primarily driven by a reduction in our corporate support staff, a reduction of
store personnel from store closures in 2006, and better management of store labor hours. Additionally,
compensation included an $8.5 million charge recorded in the first quarter of 2007 associated with the
reduction of approximately 280 corporate support employees, while the year ended December 31, 2006,
included employee separation charges of approximately $16.1 million connected with the 2006
restructuring. Furthermore, our accrued vacation was reduced $14.3 million during the year ended
December 31, 2007, in connection with the modification of our employee vacation policy during 2007.

Rent expense decreased in dollars, but increased as a percent of net sales and operating revenues. The
rent decrease was primarily driven by store closures from our 2006 restructuring.

Advertising expense decreased in dollars, but increased as a percent of net sales and operating
revenues. This decrease was primarily due to a change in our media strategy, as we changed the mix of
media used in our advertising program from television to more radio and newspaper usage, as well as
reduced sponsorship programs.
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Professional fees decreased in both dollars and as a percent of net sales and operating revenues. The
decrease relates to a decline in our use of consultants and lower fees incurred as a result of our defense
of certain class action lawsuits during 2006, as well as prior year recognition of $5.1 million of the $8.8
million charge to establish a legal reserve for the settlement of these lawsuits. See Note 13 ~ “Litigation”
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of these lawsuits.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
The table below gives a summary of our total depreciation and amortization by segment.

Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005 "
RadioShack company-operated stores $ 534 $ 582 $ 521
Kiosks 6.3 10.2 9.0
Other 1.7 23 2.3
Unallocated 51.3 57.5 60.4
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1127 $ 128.2 $ 1238

M Amounts have been retrospectively adjusted to conform to current year presentations. Certain prior year amounts

have been reallocated between the segments and other business activities and the unallocated category.
The table below provides an analysis of total depreciation and amortization.

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 1027 $ 1175 $ 113.5
Depreciation and amortization included in

cost of products sold 10.0 10.7 10.3
Total depreciation and amortization $ 1127 $ 128.2 5 123.8

Total depreciation and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2007, declined $15.5 million or
12.1%. This decrease was primarily due to the closure of stores and acceleration of depreciation as part
of our 2006 restructuring, as well as a reduction in our capital expenditures during 2007. Additionally, the
2007 decline within the kiosk segment was the result of an impairment recorded during the third quarter
of 2006.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER CHARGES

During 2007, we recorded impairment charges for fong-lived assets related primarily to our Sprint Nextel
kiosk operations and company-operated stores of $2.7 million. This charge was comprised of $0.6 million,
$0.5 million, $1.0 million and $0.6 million recorded in the first, second, third and fourth quarters, respectively.
We recorded this amount based on the remaining estimated future cash flows related to these specific
stores. It was determined that the net book value of many of the stores' long-lived assets was not
recoverable. For the stores with insufficient estimated cash flows, we wrote down the associated long-lived
assets to their estimated fair value.

For a complete discussion on the 2006 impairment, see the subsection titled “Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets and Other Charges” below, under the section titled "2006 Compared to 2005" of MD&A.

These impairment charges, aggregating $2.7 million and $44.3 million, respectively, for 2007 and 2006

were recorded within impairment of long-lived assets and other charges in the accompanying
Consolidated Statement of Income.
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NET INTEREST EXPEN3E

Consolidated interest expense, net of interest income, was $16.2 million for 2007 versus $36.9 million for
20086, a decrease of $20.7 million or 56%.

Interest expense decreased 12% to $38.8 million in 2007 from $44.3 million in 2006. This decrease was
attributable to lower average outstanding debt, which was partially offset by rising interest rates on our
floating rate debt exposure.

Interest income increased 205% to $22.6 million in 2007 from $7.4 million in 2006. This increase was due
to a higher average investment balance for 2007, as well as higher average investment rates.
Additionally, we recorded $2.6 million of interest income related to federat telecommunications excise tax
refunds during 2007. See Note 12 — “Federal Excise Tax" for a discussion of the impact of the federal
telecommunications excise tax.

We anticipate net interest expense for 2008 will be below the 2007 level, due to larger average cash
balances when compared to the prior year.

OTHER INCOME (LOS3)

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recognized a net gain of $0.9 million relating to our derivative
exposure to Sirius. During the third quarter of 2007, we modified the expected date at which we would
settle the warrants, resulting in a $2.4 million unrealized gain, which was offset by mark-to-market losses
of $1.5 million during the year, compared to a loss of $5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2006, we had a $2.7 million loss related to an other than
temporary impairment of other investments.

INCOME TAX PROVISION

The income tax provision for each quarterly period reflects our current estimate of the effective tax rate
for the full year, adjusted for any discrete events that are reported in the quarterly period in which they
occur. Our effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2007, was 35.4% compared to 34.1% for
the corresponding prior year period. The 2007 effective tax rate was impacted by the net reversal in June
2007 of approximately $10.0 million in unrecognized tax benefits, deferred tax assets and accrued
interest. Refer to Note 11 - “Income Taxes” of our consolidated financial statements for additional
information. This $10.0 million reversal lowered our effective tax rate 273 basis points for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Furthermore, the effective tax rate for 2006 was primarily affected by the tax benefit
associated with inventcry donations occurring in the quarter ended June 30, 2006. During the second
quarter of 2006, we donated approximately $20 million in inventory to charitable organizations in a
manner that provided us with a tax deduction in excess of the inventory cost. The entire tax benefit
attributable to this charitable donation deduction is reflected in the effective tax rate for the second
quarter of 20086.

2006 COMPARED WITH 2005

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

NET SALES AND OPERATING REVENUES

Sales decreased 6.0% to $4,777.5 million in 2006 from $5,081.7 million in 2005. We also had a 5.6%
decrease in comparable store sales. These changes were primarily the result of a 59.5% decrease in our
service platform sales due primarily to the manner in which we began recognizing sales of prepaid
wireless airtime in 2005 and a 5.2% decrease in our wireless platform sales. In addition, all platforms

were affected by the decline in the number of RadioShack company-operated stores as a result of our
restructuring program.
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RadioShack Company-Operated Stores

All sales in the platforms below were impacted by the closure of the RadioShack company-operated
stores related to our restructuring program.

Sales in our wireless platform decreased in dolars, but increased as a percentage of net sales and
operating revenues in 2006, compared to 2003. These decreases were primarily driven by a decline in
unit sales of wireless handsets. Factors contributing to this sales decline included an unfavorable mix
shift to prepaid handsets from postpaid, a sluggish wireless industry environment, a sharp unit sales
decline in the northeastern United States, and fewer RadioShack stores. These decreases were partially
offset by the introduction of various GPS products.

Sales in our accessory platform increased in dollars and as a percentage of net sales and operating
revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. These increases were primarily the result of higher sales of digital
music accessories associated with higher sales of digital music players included in our personal
electronics platform, in addition to higher Bluetooth wireless accessories and flash memory sales. These
increases were partially offset by a decline in home entertainment accessory sales.

Sales in our personal electronics platform increased in both dollars and as a percentage of net sales and
operating revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. These sales increases were driven primarily by
increased sales of digital music players, offset by decreases in most of the remaining personal electronics
categories.

Sales in our modern home platform decreased in both dollars and as a percentage of net sales and
operating revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. These decreases were primarily due to lower sales of
telephones, home computers, and DVD players, which were partially offset by increased sales of flat
panel televisions.

Sales in our power platform decreased in both dollars and as a percentage of net sales and operating
revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. These sales decreases were due primarily to a decrease in sales
of both general and special purpose batteries caused by factors such as reduced sales of products
requiring batieries and customer tendencies to simply replace older cordless phones rather than
replacing their batteries.

Sales in our technical platform decreased in dollars, but increased slightly as a percentage of net sales
and operating revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. The dollar decrease was primarily the result of a
decrease in sales of specialty tools.

Sales in our service platform decreased in doflars and as a percentage of net sales and operating
revenues in 2006, compared to 2005. These decreases were primarily attributable to a change in the
manner in which we recognize income associated with sales of prepaid wireless airtime. Beginning in
2006, principally as a result of changes in our agreements with wireless carriers, we no longer record the
full value of airtime purchased by customers, but rather record only our markup on the sale as revenue.
This change reduced our total company-operated stores revenue by approximately $134.6 mitlion for
2006, as compared to the corresponding prior year period, but had no impact on our gross profit or
operating income.

Other revenue decreased in both dollars and as a percentage of net sales and operating revenues, due
primarily to our 2006 store closures and, to a lesser extent, a decline in store repair revenue.

Kiosks
Kiosk sales increased $77.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, when compared to the prior

year period. This increase was primarily the result of an increase in the number of Sprint Nextel kiosks in
late 2005 that operated for all of 2006.
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Other Sales

Other sales were up $1£.0 million for 20086, or an increase of 5.6%, when compared to 2005. These sales
increases were primarily due to an increase in sales to our network of independent dealers and an
increase in Web site sales. These increases were partially offset by the negative impact of five service
centers, which we sold or closed in 2006.

GROSS PROFIT

Consolidated gross profit for 2006 was $2,129.4 million or 44.6% of net sales and operating revenues,
compared with $2,266.7 million or 44 6% of net sales and operating revenues in 2005, resulting in a2 6.1%
decrease in gross profit. The decrease in gross profit dollars was primarily the result of a decrease in net
sales and operating revenues; the impact of inventory liquidation related to the store closures involved in
the restructuring program; a mix change toward lower gross margin products, including higher relative
sales of wireless prepaii and upgrade handsets and lower margin accessories; and more aggressive
promotional activity. The gross margin rate was positively affected by the change in the manner in which
we began recognizing income associated with sales of prepaid wireless airtime in 20086, as discussed
above.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Our consolidated SG&A expense increased slightly in dollars and increased as a percent of net sales and
operating revenues to 37.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006, from 35.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The dollar increase for 2006 was primarily due to an increase in payroll and
commissions, plus rent expense; this increase was substantially offset by a decrease in advertising
expense. However, headcount reductions from store closures, service center closures and corporate
headquarters reductions helped lower compensation expense {excluding the severance charges) in the
third and fourth quarters of 2006.

Payroll and commissions expense increased in dollars and as a percentage of net sales and operating
revenues. These increases were primarily the result of pay plan changes for RadioShack company-
operated stores initiated in early 2006, severance related to our restructuring program, utilization of more
labor hours in our company-operated stores during the first half of the year, and increased headcount in
our kiosk operations. We also began the required expensing of stock options as of January 1, 2006,
which increased compensation expense by $12.0 million, when compared to 2005.

Rent expense increased in both dollars and as a percent of net sales and operating revenues. The rent
increase was primarily driven by a full year of rental payments on our corporate campus, as well as the
addition of kiosk locations, which was partially offset by store closures.

Advertising expense dacreased in both dollars and as a percent of net sales and operating revenues.
This decrease was primarily due to a change in our media strategy, as we changed the mix of media
used in our advertising program from television to more radio and newspaper usage, as well as reduced
sponsorship programs.

Professional fees increased in both dollars and as a percent of net sales and operating revenues. The
increase relates to the defense costs for certain class action lawsuits, including $5.1 million of the $8.8
million discussed under Note 13 - "Litigation" to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, as well as
the cost of consultants engaged in various projects.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Total depreciation and amortization increased $4.4 million to $128.2 million and increased to 2.7% of net
sales and operating revenues, compared to 2.4% for 2005, The increase in depreciation was primarily

attributable to our new corporate headquarters, increased spending for our store remodel program,
information system prajects, and the amortization of intangibles related to our SAM'S CLUB kiosk business.
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IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS AND OTHER CHARGES

In February 2008, as part of our restructuring program, our board of directors approved the closure of 400
to 700 RadioShack company-operated stores. During the first half of 2006, we identified the stores for
closure and subsequently performed the impairment test. Based on the remaining estimated future cash
flows related to these specific stores, it was determined that the net book value of some of the stores'
long-lived assets to be held for use was not recoverable. For the stores with insufficient estimated cash
flows, we wrote down the associated long-lived assets to their estimated fair value, resulting in a $9.2
million impairment loss related to our RadioShack company-operated store segment. By July 31, 2006,
we had closed 481 specific stores under the restructuring program; there were no additional closures
under this program for the remainder of the year.

Also, we purchased certain assets from Wireless Retail, Inc. during the fourth quarter of 2004 for $59.6
miliion, which resulted in the recognition of $18.6 million of goodwill and a $32.1 million intangible asset
related 1o a five-year agreement with SAM'S CLUB 1o operate wireless kiosks in approximately 540
SAM'S CLUB locations nationwide. These assets relate to our kiosk segment. As a result of continued
company and wireless industry growth challenges, together with changes in our senior leadership team
during the third quarter of 2008 that resulted in a refocus on allocation of capital and resources towards
other areas of our business, we determined that our long-lived assets, including goodwili associated with
our kiosk operations, were impaired. We performed impairment tests on both the long-lived assets
associated with our SAM'S CLUB agreement, including the intangible asset relating to the five-year
agreement, and the accompanying goodwill.

With respect to the long-lived tangible and intangible assets, we compared their carrying values with their
estimated fair values using a discounted cash flow model, which reflected our lowered expectations of
wireless revenue growth and the ceased expansion of our kicsk business, and determined that the
intangible asset relating to the five-year agreement was impaired. This assessment resulted in a $10.7
million impairment charge to the intangible asset related to our kiosk segment in 2006. The remaining
intangible balance will be amortized over the remaining life of the SAM'S CLUB agreement, which is
scheduled to expire in September 2009. The balance at December 31, 2006, was $7.8 million.

With respect to the goodwill of $18.6 million, we estimated the fair value of the SAM'S CLUB reporting
unit using a discounted cash flow model similar to that used in the long-lived asset impairment test. We
compared it with the carrying value of the reporting unit and determined that the goodwiil was impaired.
As the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value, we then compared the
implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. This resulted in an
$18.6 million impairment of goodwill related to our kiosk segment in 2008.

Additionally, based on historical and expected cash flows for company-operated stores and kiosks, we
recorded an impairment charge of $4.6 million related to property and equipment and an impairment
charge of $1.2 million related to goodwill.

These impairment charges, aggregating $44.3 million, were recorded within impairment of long-lived
assets and other charges in the accompanying 2006 Consclidated Statement of Income.

NET INTEREST EXPENSE

Consolidated interest expense, net of interest income, was $36.9 million for 2006 versus $38.6 million for
2005, a decrease of $1.7 million or 4%.

Interest expense decreased slightly to $44.3 million in 2006 from $44.5 million in 2005. This decrease in
the interest expense during 2006 was attributable to lower average outstanding debt, which was partially
offset by rising interest rates on our floating rate debt exposure,

Interest income increased 25% to $7.4 million in 2006 from $5.9 million in 2005. These changes were due
to a higher average investment balance for 2008, as well as increases in investment rates.
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OTHER INCOME (LOSS)

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we recognized a loss of $8.6 million in other income (loss). This
loss included $5.9 million relating to our derivative exposure to Sirius warrants, which was a result of the
required mark-to-market accounting treatment of these warrants. The additional $2.7 million related to an
other than temporary impairment of other investments.

During the first quarter ¢f 2005, we sold all rights, title and interest to the “Tandy” name within Australia
and New Zealand to an affiliate of Dick Smith Electronics, an Australia-based consumer electronics
retailer. This transaction resulted in the recognition of $10.2 million in other income in 2005.

INCOME TAX PROVISION

Our provision for income taxes reflects an effective income tax rate of 34.1% for 2006, and 16.0% for
2005. The fluctuation in the effective tax rate during 2006 was due primarily to the tax benefit associated
with inventory donations occurring in the quarter ended June 30, 2006. During the second quarter of
2006, we donated approximately $20 million in inventory to charitable organizations in a manner that
provided us with a tax deduction in excess of the inventory cost. The entire tax benefit attributable to this
charitable donation deduction is reflected in the effective tax rate for the second quarter. The lower
effective tax rate in 2005 was principally due to a favorable non-cash income tax benefit of $56.5 million
relating to the release of a tax contingency reserve upon the expiration of the associated statute of
limitations. This reserve related to losses sustained in connection with our European operations, which
were fully dissolved by 1995. The release of the reserve occurred in the third quarter of 2005 because the
statute of limitations governing these issues expired on September 30, 2005.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Refer to Note 2 — “Sumimary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the section titled “Recently Issued
Accounting Pronouncements” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY
A summary of cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities is outlined in the table below.

Year Ended December 31,

{in milligns) 2007 2006 2005

Operating activities $ 379.0 $ 3148 $ 3629
Investing activities (42.0) {79.3} 39.3
Financing activities {299.3) 12.5 {616.1)

Cash Flow — Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities provide us with the majority of our liquidity. Cash provided by
operating activities in 2007 was $379.0 million, compared to $314.8 million and $362.9 million in 2006
and 2005, respectively. Cash provided by net income plus non-cash adjustments to net income was
$358.9 million in 2007 compared to $230.7 million in 2006. The 2007 increase was due to an increase in
operating income in 2007, compared to the prior year. Cash provided by working capital components was
$20.1 miltion and $84.1 million for years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Cash Flow - Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $42.0 million and $79.3 million in 2007 and 20086, respectively, while
$39.3 million in cash was provided in 2005. The 2007 decrease was primarily the result of reduced capital
spending during 2007. Capital expenditures for these periods related primarily to retail stores and
information systems projects. We received $220.4 million in net proceeds from the sale and leaseback of
our corporate campus during the fourth quarter of 2005. We anticipate that our capital expenditure
requirements for 2008 will range from $80 million to $100 million. RadioShack company-operated store
remodels and relocations, as well as information systems updates, will account for the majority of our
anticipated 2008 capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2007, we had $509.7 million in cash and cash
equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents, along with cash generated from our net sales and operating
revenues and, when necessary, from our credit facilities, are available to fund future capital expenditure
needs.

Cash Flow - Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities was $299.3 million and $616.1 million for 2007 and 2005, respectively,
compared to cash provided of $12.5 million in 2006. We used cash of $208.5 million to repurchase our
commeon stock during 2007; however, we did not repurchase any shares of our common stock during
2006. The 2007 stock repurchases were partially funded by $81.3 million received from stock option
exercises. The balance of capital to repurchase shares was obtained from cash generated from
operations. Additionally, we paid off our $150.0 million ten-year unsecured note payable which matured
on September 4, 2007,

Free Cash Flow

Our free cash flow, defined as cash flows from operating activities less dividends paid and additions to
property, plant and equipment, was $300.9 million in 2007, $189.9 million in 2006 and $158.5 million in
2005. The consecutive increases in free cash flow were the result of a decrease in cash used by working
capital components, primarily inventory, as well as a decrease in capital expenditures.

We believe free cash flow is a relevant indicator of our ability to repay maturing debt, change dividend
payments or fund other uses of capital that management believes will enhance shareholder value. The
comparable financial measure to free cash flow under generally accepted accounting principles is cash
flows from operating activities, which was $379.0 million in 2007, $314.8 million in 2006 and $362.9
million in 2005. We do not intend for the presentation of free cash flow, a non-GAAP financial measure, to
be considered in isolation or as a substitute for measures prepared in accordance with GAAP,

The following table is a reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to free cash flow.

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 20086 2005
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 379.0 $ 3148 $ 3629
Less:
Additions to property, plant and equipment 45.3 91.0 170.7
Dividends paid 32.8 33.9 33.7
Free cash flow $ 3009 $ 189.9 $§ 1585

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

We consider our capital structure and financial condition to be sound. We had $508.7 milliont in cash and
cash equivalents at December 31, 2007, as a resource for our funding needs. Additionally, we have
available to us $625 million of bank credit facilities. As of December 31, 2007, we had no borrowings
under these credit facilities. For a discussion of the expected effect of our restructuring program on
capital structure and financial condition, see “Financial Impact of Restructuring Program” below.
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Debt Obligations

Debt Ratings: Below are the agencies’ ratings by category, as well as their respective current outlook far
the ratings, as of February 15, 2008.

Category Standard and Poor’s Moody's Fitch
Senior unsecured debt BB Ba1 BB
Outlook Negative Stable Negative

On March 12, 2007, Moody's lowered its long-term rating to Ba1, long-term outlook to stable, and short-
term rating to NP. These actions followed the announcement of our 2006 financial results. Cn June 21,
2007, Fitch lowered its long-term rating to BB and kept its rating outlook as negative. Factors that could
impact our future credit ratings include free cash flow and cash levels, changes in our operating
performance, the adoption of a more aggressive financial strategy, the economic environment, conditions
in the retail and consumer electronics industries, continued sales declines in comparable stores, our
financial position and changes in our business strategy. If further downgrades occur, they will adversely
impact, among other things, our future borrowing costs, access to debt capital markets, vendor financing
terms and future new store occupancy costs. Due to improvements in liquidity, we terminated our
commercial paper program during the third quarter of 2007.

Our senior unsecured debt primarily consists of an issuance of 10-year long-term notes and an issuance of
a medium term note.

Long-Term Notes: We have a $300 million debt shelf registration statement which became effective in
August 1997. In August 1997, we issued $150 miliion of 10-year unsecured long-term notes under this
shelf registration. The interest rate on the notes was 6.95% per annum with interest payable on
September 1 and March 1 of each year. These notes contained customary non-financial covenants. In
September 2007, our $150 million ten-year unsecured note payable came due. Upon maturity, we paid
off the $150 million note payable utilizing our available cash and cash equivalents.

On May 11, 2001, we issued $350 million of 10-year 7.375% notes in a private offering to initial
purchasers who in turn offered the notes to qualified institutional buyers under SEC Rule 144A. The
annual interest rate on the notes is 7.375% per annum with interest payable on November 15 and May 15
of each year. The notes contain certain non-financial covenants and mature on May 15, 2011. In August
2001, under the terms of an exchange offering filed with the SEC, we exchanged substantially all of these
notes for a similar amount of publicly registered notes. The exchange resulted in substantially all of the
notes becoming registered with the SEC and did not result in additional debt being issued.

During the third quarter of 2001, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an underlying
notional amount of $112.5 million and a maturity in September 2007. This interest rate swap agreement
expired in conjunction with the maturity of the note payable. In June and August 2003, we entered into
interest rate swap agre=ments with underlying notional amounts of debt of $100 million and $50 million,
respectively, and maturities in May 2011. These swaps effectively convert a portion of our long-term fixed
rate debt to a variable rate. We entered into these agreements to balance our fixed versus floating rate debt
portfolio to continue to iake advantage of lower short-term interest rates. Under these agreements, we have
contracted to pay a variable rate of LIBOR plus a markup, and to receive a fixed rate of 6.95% for the swap
entered into in 2001, and 7.375% for the swaps entered into in 2003. We have designated these
agreements as fair value hedging instruments. We recorded an amount in other non-current liabilities, net, of
$1.5 million and $8.5 million (their fair value) at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, for the swap
agreements and adjusted the fair value of the related debt by the same amount. Fair value was computed
based on the market's current anticipation of quarterly LIBOR rate levels from the present untii the swaps'
maturities.

Medium-Term Notes: We also issued, in various amounts and on various dates from December 1997
through September 1999, medium-term notes totaling $150 million under the shelf registration described
above. At December 31, 2007, $5 million of these notes remained outstanding with an interest rate of
6.42%; they contained customary non-financial covenants. As of December 31, 2007, there was no
availability under this helf registration. In January 2008, the remaining $5 million of the medium-term
notes payable came ¢ue, and was paid off utilizing our available cash and cash equivalents.
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Available Financing

Credit Facilities: At December 31, 2007, we had an aggregate of $625 million borrowing capacity
available under our existing credit facilities. These facilities consist of the following:

Amount of Facility Expiration Date
$300 million June 2009
$325 miillion May 2011

These credit facilities support commercial paper issuance, as well as provide us a source of liquidity if the

commercial paper market is unavailable to us. As of December 31, 2007, there were no outstanding |
borrowings under these credit facilities, nor were these facilities utilized during 2007. Interest charges |
under these facilities are derived using a base LIBOR rate plus a margin which changes based on cur

credit ratings. Our bank syndicated credit facilities have customary terms and covenants, and we were in

compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2007.

In June 2006, we replaced our existing $300 million five-year credit facility, which was to expire in June
2007, with a $325 million five-year credit agreement expiring May 2011. The new facility has a more
favorable fixed charge coverage ratic and provides for the exclusion of cash restructuring expenses from
the covenant calculation. We also amended the $300 million facility expiring in June 2009 to include
similar covenants and terminated our $130 million 364-day revolving credit facility.

We beligve that our present ability to borrow is adequate for our business needs. However, if market
conditions change, gross profit were to dramatically decline, or we could not control operating costs, our
cash flows and liquidity could be reduced. Additionally, if a scenario as described above occurred, it could
cause the rating agencies to lower our credit ratings further, thereby increasing our borrowing costs, or
even causing a further reduction in or elimination of our access to debt and/or equity markets.
Capitatization

The following tabie sets forth information about our capitalization on the dates indicated.

December 31,

2007 2006
% of Total % of Total

{Dollars in millions) Dollars Capitalization Dollars Capitalization
Current debt $ 61.2 5.2% $§ 1949 16.3%
Long-term debt 348.2 29.5 345.8 29.0

Total debt 409.4 34.7 540.7 45.3
Stockholders' equity 769.7 65.3 653.8 54.7
Total capitalization $ 11,1791 100.0% $ 11045 100.0%

Our debt-to-total capitalization ratio decreased in 2007 from 2008, due primarily to a $131.3 million
decrease in total debt primarily related to the repayment of our medium-term notes payable in September
2007.

Dividends

We have paid common stock cash dividends for 21 consecutive years. On November 12, 2007, our
Board of Directors declared an annual dividend of $0.25 per share. The dividend was paid on December
18, 2007, to stockholders of record on November 29, 2007. The dividend payment of $32.8 million was
funded from cash on hand.

Operating Leases

We use operating leases, primarily for our retail locations, two distribution centers, and our corporate
campus, to fower our capital requirements.
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Share Repurchases

On February 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program with no expiration
date authorizing management to repurchase up to $250 million in open market purchases. On August 5,
2005, we suspended purchases under the $250 million share repurchase program during the pericd in
which a financial institution purchased shares pursuant to an overnight share repurchase program.
During March 2007, management resumed share repurchases under the $250 million program; however,
no shares were repurchased during the second and fourth quarters of 2007. For the twelve months
ended December 31, 2007, we repurchased 8.7 million shares or $208.5 million of our common stock. As
of December 31, 2007, there was $1.4 million available for share repurchases under the $250 million
share repurchase program.

Seasonal Inventory Buildup

Typically, our annual cash requirements for pre-seasonal inventory buildup range between $200 million
and 3400 million. The funding required for this buildup comes primarily from cash on hand and cash
generated from net sales and operating revenues. We had $509.7 million in cash and cash equivalents
as of December 31, 20107, as a resource for our funding needs. Additionally, borrowings may be utilized
to fund the inventory buildup as described in “Available Financing” above.

Contractual and Credit Commitments
The following tables, as well as the infermation contained in Note 7 - "Indebtedness and Borrowing
Facilities" to our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, provide a summary of our various contractual

commitments, debt and interest repayment requirements, and available credit lines.

The table below contains our known contractual commitments as of December 31, 2007.

{In millions) Payments Due by Period
Total Amounts  Less Than Over

Contractua! Obligations Committed 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt obligations $ 356.0 3 5.0 3 - $ 3500 % 1.0
Interest obligations B8.5 26.3 52.4 9.7 0.1
Operating lease cbligations 9226 196.0 305.9 153.7 267.0
Purchase obligations " 334.3 310.5 23.8 - -
Other long-term liabilities

reflected on the balance sheet @ 123.7 -- 60.3 26.3 37.1
Total $ 18251 $ 5378 § 4424 $§ 5397 $ 3052

™ pyrchase obligations include our preduct commitments, marketing agreements and freight commitments.
@ |ncludes $58.1 million FIN 48 reserve.

For more information ragarding long-term debt and lease commitments, refer to Note 7 - “Indebtedness
and Borrowing Facilities” and Note 14 — Commitments and Contingent Liabilities”, respectively, of our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The table below contains our credit commitments from various financial institutions.

{In millions) Commitrment Expiration per Period

Total Amounts  Less Than Qver
Credit Commitments Committed 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Lines of credit $ 6250 $ - $ 3000 $ 325.0 $ -
Standby letters of credit 70.3 70.3 -- -- -
Totat commercial commitments $  695.3 $ 703 $ 300.0 $ 3250 $ —
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Contractual and Credit Commitments

We have contingent liabilities related to retail leases of locations that were assigned to other businesses.
The majority of these contingent liabilities relates to various lease obligations arising from leases
assigned to CompUSA, Inc. (*CompUSA”) as part of the sale of our Computer City, Inc. subsidiary to
CompUSA in August 1998. In the event CompUSA or the other assignees, as applicable, are unable to
fulfill their obligations, the lessors of such locations may seek to recover the unpaid rent from us.

On February 27, 2007, CompUSA announced a comprehensive realignment strategy to improve its financial
status. According to their press release, the realignment included a $440 million cash infusion, closure of
126 stores, major expense reductions and a corporate restructuring. A portion of the 126 store closures
represents locations where we may be liable for the rent payments on the underlying lease. During the third
and fourth quarters of 2007, we received notices from two lessors seeking payment from us as a result of
CompUSA being in default for non-payment of rent. CompUSA has also informed us that there are an
additional 17 leases on which CompUSA has ceased making rent payments. CompUSA reported on
December 7, 2007, that they were acquired by the Gordon Brothers Group. CompUSA stores ceased
operations in January 2008. DJM Reallty, a division of Gordon Brothers Group, is currently in discussions
with its lessors in an effort to negotiate a satisfactory fulfillment of their legal obligation under these leases.

Based on all available information pertaining to the status of these leases, and after applying the provisions
set forth within SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and FIN 14, “Reasonable Estimation of a Loss,
An Interpretation of SFAS No. 5,” during the fourth quarter of 2007, we established an accrual of $7.5
million, recorded in current liabilities. It is reasonably possible that a change in our estimate of our probable
liability could occur in the near term. We are continuing to monitor this situation and will update as necessary
as more information becomes available.

FINANCIAL IMPACT OF RESTRUCTURING PROGRAM

As discussed previously, our 2006 restructuring program, as originally stated in February 2006, contained
four key components:

s Update our inventory

* Focus on our top-performing RadioShack company-operated stores, while closing 400 to 700
RadioShack company-operated stores and aggressively relocate other RadioShack company-
operated stores

+ Consolidate our distribution centers

* Reduce our overhead costs

Store Closures: As of December 31, 2006, we had closed 481 stores as a resuit of our restructuring
program. Qur decision to close these stores was made on a store-by-store basis, and there was no
geographic concentration of closings for these stores. For these closed stores, we recognized a charge in
2006 of $9.1 million to SG&A for future lease obligations and negotiated buy-outs with landlords. A lease
obligation reserve is not recognized unti! a store has been closed or when a buy-out agreement has been
reached with the landlord. Regarding the 481 stores we closed as a result of the restructuring program
during the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded an impairment charge of $9.2 million related to
the long-lived assets associated with certain of these stores. It was determined that the net book value of
several of the stores' long-lived assets was not recoverable based on the remaining estimated future
cash flows related to these specific stores. We also recognized $2.1 million in accelerated depreciation
associated with closed store assets for which the useful lives had been changed due to the store
closures.
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In connection with these store closures, we identified 601 retail employees whose positions were
terminated by December 31, 2006. These employees were paid severance, and some eamed retention
bonuses if they remained employed until certain agreed-upon dates. The development of a reserve for
these costs began on the date that the terms of severance benefits were established and communicated
to the employees, and Ihe reserve was recognized over the minimum retention period. As of December
31, 2006, $3.8 million had been recognized in SG&A as retention and severance benefits for store
employees, with $3.6 million in benefits paid to date. Additionally, as part of our store closure activities,
we incurred and recognized in SG&A $6.1 million in expenses in 2006 primarily in connection with fees
paid to outside liquidators and for close-out promotional activities for the 481 stores.

All stores identified for closure under the restructuring program were closed as of July 31, 2006.
Additionally, we continue to negotiate buy-cut agreements with our landlords; however, remaining lease
obligations of $2.2 million still existed at December 31, 2007. There is uncertainty as to when, and at
what cost, we will fully settle all remaining lease obligations.

Distribution Center Consolidations: We closed a distribution center located in Southaven, Mississippi,
and sold a distribution center in Charleston, South Carolina, in 2008. During the year ended December
31, 2006, we recognized a lease obligation charge in SG&A in the amount of $2.0 million on the lease of
the Southaven distribution center and a gain of $2.7 million on the sale of the Charleston distribution
center. We also incurred a $0.5 million charge related to severance for approximately 100 employges.
Additionally, there were: $0.4 million in other expenses.

Service Center Operations: We closed or sold five service center locations during the year ended
December 31, 2006, resulting in the elimination of approximately 350 positions. We recognized charges
to SG&A of $1.2 million and $0.2 million related to lease obligations and severance, respectively. This
severance obligation was paid as of December 31, 2006. Additionally, there were $0.1 million in other
expenses.

Overhead Cost Reductions: Management conducted a review of our cost structure to identify potential
sources of cost reductions. In connection with this review, we made decisions to lower these costs,
including reducing our advertising spend rate in connection with adjustments to our media mix. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, we reduced our workforce by approximately 514 positions, primarily
within our corporate headquarters. We recorded charges to SG&A for termination benefits and related
costs of $11.9 million, of which $6.4 million had been paid as of December 31, 2006. During 2007,
severance payments totaling $5.0 million were paid, leaving an accrued severance halance of $0.7
million as of December 31, 2007,

Inventory Update: We have been replacing underperforming merchandise with new, faster-moving
merchandise. We recorded a pre-tax charge to cost of products sold of approximately $62 million during
the fourth quarter of 2005, as a result of both our normal inventory review process and the inventory
update aspect of our restructuring program.
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The following table summarizes the activity related to the 2006 restructuring program from February 17,
20086, through December 31, 2007:

Asset Accelerated
{in millions) Severance l.eases Impairments Depreciation Other Total
Total charges for 2006 $ 1641 $12.3 $ 92 $ 2.1 $ 49 $ 446 ‘
Totat spending for 2006, |
net of amounts realized \
from sale of fixed assets (10.4) (8.5) -- - (4.6) (23.5)
Total non-cash items - 0.9 (9.2) (2.1) (0.2) (10.6)
Accrual at December 31,
2006 57 4.7 -- -- 0.1 10.5
Total spending for 2007 (5.0) {3.9) - - (0.1) (9.0)
Additions for 2007 1.4 - - - 1.4
Accrual at December 31,
2007 $ 0.7 $ 22 $ - $ -- $ - $ 29

See the allocation of our restructuring charges within our segments in Note 28 — “Segment Reporting” in
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Other than the operating leases described above, we do not have any off-balance sheet financing
arrangements, transactions, or special purpose entities.

INFLATION

With the exception of recent increases in energy costs, inflation has not significantly impacted us over the
past three years. We do not expect inflation to have a significant impact on our operations in the foreseeable
future, unless international events substantially affect the global economy.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP") in the United States. The application of GAAP requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported values of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and the related disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities. The use of estimates is pervasive throughout our financial statements
and is affected by management judgment and uncertainties. Our estimates, assumptions and judgments
are based on historical experience, current market trends and other factors that we believe to be relevant
and reasonable at the time the consolidated financial statements are prepared. We continually evaluate
the information used to make these estimates as our business and the economic environment change.
Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, we describe our significant accounting policies used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The accounting policies and estimates we
consider most critical are revenue recognition; inventory valuation under the cost method; estimation of
reserves and valuation allowances specifically related to insurance, tax and legal contingencies; valuation
of long-lived assets and intangibles, including goodwill; and stock-based compensation.

We consider an accounting policy or estimate to be critical if it requires difficult, subjective or complex
judgments, and is material to the portrayal of our financial condition, changes in financial condition or
resuits of operations. The selection, application and disclosure of our critical accounting policies and
estimates have been reviewed by the Audit and Compliance Committee of our Board of Directors.
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Revenue Recognition: Cur revenue is derived principally from the sale of private label and third-party
branded products and services to consumers. Revenue is recognized, net of an estimate for customer
refunds and product returns, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred
or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably
assured.

Certain products, such as wireless telephone handsets, require the customer to use the services of a
third-party service provider. In most cases, the third-party service provider pays us a fee or commission
for obtaining a new customer, as well as a monthly recurring residual amount based upon the ongoing
arrangement between the service provider and the customer. Fee or commission revenue, net of a
reserve for estimated service deactivations, is generally recognized at the time the customer is accepted
as a subscriber of a third-party service provider, while the residual revenue is recognized on a monthly
basis.

Estimated product refunds and returns, service plan deactivations, residual revenue and commission
revenue adjustments are based on historical information pertaining to these items. If actual results differ
from these estimates due to various factors, the amount of revenue recorded could be materially affected.
A 10% difference in our reserves for the estimates noted above would have affected net sales and
operating revenues by approximately $2.2 million for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

Inventory Valuation: Qur inventory consists primarily of finished goods available for sale at our retail
locations or within our distribution centers and is recorded at the lower of average cost (which
approximates FIFO) or market. The cost components recorded within inventory are the vendor invoice
cost and certain altocated external and internal freight, distribution, warehousing and other costs relating
to merchandise acquisition required to bring the merchandise from the vendor to the point-of-sale.

Typically, the market value of our inventory is higher than its aggregate cost. Determination of the market
value may be very complex and, therefore, requires a high degree of judgment. In order for management
to make the appropriate determination of market value, the following items are commonly considered:
inventory turnover statistics, current selling prices, seasonality factors, consumer trends, competitive
pricing, performance of similar products or accessories, planned promotional incentives, technological
obsolescence, and estimated costs to sell or dispose of merchandise such as sales commissions.

If the estimated market value, calculated as the amount we expect to realize, net of estimated selling
costs, from the ultimate sale or disposal of the inventory, is determined to be less than the recorded cost,
we record a provision to reduce the carrying amount of the inventory item to its net realizable value.
Differences between management estimates and actual performance and pricing of our merchandise
could result in inventory valuations that differ from the amount recorded at the financial statement date
and could also cause fluctuations in the amount of recorded cost of products sold.

If our estimates regarding market value are inaccurate or changes in consumer demand affect certain
products in an unforeseen manner, we may be exposed to material losses or gains in excess of our
established valuation reserve.

Estimation of Reserves and Valuation Allowances: The amount of liability we record for claims related
to insurance, tax and legal contingencies requires us to make judgments about the amount of expenses
that will ultimately be incurred. We use our history and experience, as well as other specific
circumstances surrounding these claims, in evaluating the amount of liability we should record. As
additional information becomes available, we assess the potential liability related to our various claims
and revise our estimates as appropriate. These revisions could materially impact our results of operations
and financial position cr liquidity,
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We are insured for certain losses related to workers' compensation, property and other liability claims,
with deductibles up to $1.0 miltion per occurrence. This insurance coverage limits our exposure for any
catastrophic claims that may arise above the deductible. We also have a self-insured health program
administered by a third party covering the majority of our employees that participate in our health
insurance programs. We estimate the amount of our reserves for all insurance programs discussed
above at the end of each reporting period. This estimate is based on historical claims experience,
demographic factors, severity factors, and other factors we deem relevant. A 10% change in our
insurance reserves at December 31, 2007, would have affected net income by approximately $5.7 million
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, actual losses had not exceeded
our expectations. Additionally, for claims that exceed our deductible amount, we record a gross liability
and corresponding receivable representing expected recoveries, since we are not legally relieved of our
obligation to the claimant.

We are subject to periodic audits from muitiple domestic and foreign tax authorities related to income tax,
sales and use tax, personal property tax, and other forms of taxation. These audits examine our tax
positions, timing of income and deductions, and allocation procedures across multiple jurisdictions. As
part of our evaluation of these tax issues, we establish reserves in our consolidated financial statements
based on our estimate of current probable tax exposures. Effective January 1, 2007, we began
recognizing uncertain income tax positions based on our assessment of whether the tax position was
more likely than not to be sustained on audit, as set forth within FASB Interpretation No. 48, *Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109.” Depending on the nature
of the tax issue, we could be subject to audit over several years; therefore, our estimated reserve
balances might exist for multiple years before an issue is resolved by the taxing authority.

Additionally, we are involved in legal proceedings and governmental inquiries associated with
employment and other matters. A reserve has been established based on our best estimates of the
potential liability in these matters. This estimate has been developed in consultation with in-house and
outside legal counsel and is based upon a comhbination of litigation and settlement strategies.

Although we believe that our tax and legal reserves are based on reasonable judgments and estimates,
actual results could differ, which may expose us to material gains or losses in future periods. These
actual results could materially affect our effective tax rate, earnings, deferred tax balances and cash flows
in the period of resolution.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles, Including Goodwill: Long-lived assets, such as
property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, such as historical operating losses or plans to dispose
of or sell long-lived assets before the end of their previously estimated useful lives. The carrying amount
is considered not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. If the carrying amount is not recoverable, we
recognize an impairment loss equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds fair value, Fair
value is determined by discounting expected future cash flows using our risk-free rate of interest.

Impairment losses, if any, are recorded in the peried in which the impairment occurs. The carrying value
of the asset is adjusted to the new carrying value, and any subsequent increases in fair value are not
recorded. Additionally, if it is determined that the estimated remaining useful life of the asset should be
decreased, the periodic depreciation expense is adjusted based on the new carrying value of the asset.

The impairment calculation requires us to apply judgment and estimates concerning future cash flows,
strategic plans, useful lives and discount rates. If actual results are not consistent with our estimates and
assumptions, we may be exposed to additional impairment charges, which could be material to our
results of operations.

We have acquired goodwill and other separately identifiable intangible assets related to business
acquisitions that have occurred during prior years. The original valuation of these intangible assets is
based on estimates for future profitability, cash flows and other judgmental factors. We review our
goodwill and other intangible asset balances on an annual basis, during the fourth quarter, and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of goodwill or an intangible asset might
exceed their current fair value.
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The determination of fair value is based on various valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow
and other comparable market analyses. These valuation technigues require us to make estimates and
assumptions regarding future profitability, industry factors, planned strategic initiatives, discount rates and
other factors. If actual results or performance of certain business units are different from our estimates,
we may be exposed to an impairment charge related to our goodwill or intangible assets. The total value
of our goodwill and intangible assets at December 31, 2007, was $7.9 million.

Stock-Based Compensation: We have historically granted certain stock-based awards to employees
and directors in the form of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, restricted stock and
deferred stock units. See Note 2 - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” and Note 16 - “Stock-
Based Incentive Plans” for a more complete discussion of our stock-based compensation programs.

At the date that an award is granted, we determine the fair value of the award and recognize the
compensation expense over the requisite service period, which typically is the period over which the
award vests. The restricted stock and deferred stock units are valued at the fair market value of our stock
on the date of grant. The fair value of stock options with only service conditions is estimated using the
Black-Scholes-Merton cption-pricing model. The fair value of stock options with service and market
conditions is valued utilizing the Monte Carlo simulation model. The Black-Scholes-Merton and Monte
Carlo simulation models require management to apply judgment and use highly subjective assumptions,
including expected option life, expected volatility, and expected employee forfeiture rate. We use
historical data and judgment to estimate the expected option life and the employee forfeiture rate, and
use historical and implied volatility when estimating the stock price volatility.

While the assumptions that we develop are based on our best expectations, they involve inherent
uncertainties based on market conditions and employee behavior that are outside of our control. If actua!
results are not consistent with the assumptions used, the stock-based compensation expense reported in
our financial statements may not be representative of the actual economic cost of the stock-based
compensation. Additionally, if actual employee forfeitures significantly differ from our estimated
forfeitures, we may have an adjustment to our financial statements in future periods. A 10% change in our
stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2007, would have affected our net
income by approximately $1.0 million.

Prior to calendar year 2008, we followed the guidance under Accounting Principles Board (*APB") Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and its related interpretations.

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

Matters discussed in MID&A and in other parts of this report include forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the federal securities laws, including Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking statements
are statements that are not historica! and may be identified by the use of words such as “expect,”
“believe,” “anticipate,” "estimate,” “intend,” “potential” or similar words. These matters include statements
concerning management’s plans and objectives relating to our operations or economic performance and
related assumptions. We specifically disclaim any duty to update any of the information set forth in this
report, including any forward-looking statements. Forward-fooking statements are made based on
management's current expectations and beliefs concerning future events and, therefore, involve a
number of assumptions, risks and uncertainties, including the risk factors described in ltem 1A, “Risk
Factors,” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Management cautions that forward-looking statements are
not guarantees, and our actual results could differ matenally from those expressed or implied in the
forward-looking statements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

At December 31, 2007, our derivative instruments that materially increased our exposure to market risks
for interest rates, foreign currency rates, commodity prices or other market price risks were primarily the
interest rate swaps noted in our MD&A and warrants we earned to acquire common stock of Sirius. We
do not use derivatives for speculative purposes.

Our exposure to interest rate risk results from changes in short-term interest rates. Interest rate risk exists
with respect to our net investment position at December 31, 2007, of $333.9 million, consisting of
fluctuating short-term investments of $483.9 million and offset by $150 million of indebtedness which,
because of our interest rate swaps, effectively bears interest at short-term floating rates. A hypothetical
increase of 100 basis points in the interest rate applicable to this floating-rate net exposure would result in
a decrease in annual net interest expense of $3.3 million. This hypothesis assumes no change in the
principal or investment balance.

QOur exposure to market risk, specifically the equity markets, relates to warrants we earned as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, to purchase 2 million and 4 million shares, respectively, of Sirius stock at
an exercise price of $5.00 per share. We have recorded these as assets using a Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation method. Our maximum exposure is equal to the carrying value at December 31, 2007, of $2.4
million.

We manage our portfolio of fixed rate exposures, compared to floating rate exposure, to reduce our
exposure to interest rate changes. The fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt is sensitive to long-term
interest rate changes. Interest rate changes would result in increases or decreases in the fair value of our
debt due to differences between market interest rates and rates at the inception of the debt obligation.
Based on a hypothetical immediate 100 basis point increase in interest rates at December 31, 2007 and
2008, the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt would decrease $11.7 million and $12.9 million,
respectively. Based on a hypothetical immediate 100 basis point decrease in interest rates at December 31,
2007 and 2008, the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt would increase by $12.1 million and $13.4
million, respectively. Regarding the fair value of our fixed rate debt, changes in interest rates have no impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The Index to our Consclidated Financial Statements is found on page 45. Our Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements follow the index.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established a system of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that
material information relating to the Company, which is required to be disclosed by us in the reports that
we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 {"Exchange Act"), is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, in a timely fashion. An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation
of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) was
performed as of the end of the period cavered by this annual report. This evaluation was performed under
the supervision and with the participation of management, including cur CEOQ and CFO.

Based upon that evaluation, our CEQ and CFO have concluded that these disclosure controls and
procedures were effective.

41




Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our CEQ and CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in “Internal Control -
Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework,”
our management concluded that our internal contrel over financial reporting was effective as of December
31, 2007, The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, has
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as
stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reascnably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.

None.

PART Il

{ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

We will file a definitive proxy statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about April 10,
2008. The information called for by this Item with respect to directors and the Audit and Compliance
Committee of the Board of Directors is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting under the headings “ltem 1 - Election of Directors” and “Mestings and Committees of the
Board.” For information relating to our Executive Officers, see Part | of this report. The Section 16(a)
reporting information is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.” Information regarding our
Financial Code of Ethics is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting under the heading “Corporate Governance — Code of Conduct and Financial Code of Ethics.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information called for by this Item with respect to executive compensation is incorporated by reference
from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the headings “Compensation Discussion and
Analysis,” “Executive Compensation,” “Non-Employee Director Compensation,” “Other Matters Involving
Executive Officers,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ and “Report of the
Management Development and Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY CWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information called for by this ltem with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and

management is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the
heading “Ownership of Securities.”
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides a summary of information as of December 31, 2607, relating to our equity
compensation pians in which our common stock is authorized for issuance.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

{Share amounts in thousands)

Equity compensation plans approved by

(a) (b)

Number of shares to
be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

{c)

Number of shares
remaining available for
future issuance under

equity compensation
plans {excluding shares
reflected in column (a))

shareholders 7,665 $ 309 6,209
Equity compensation plans not approved by

shareholders ¥ 7,999 $ 2761 2,373
Total 15,664 $ 2922 8,582

M

rd)

Includes the 1993 Incentive Stock Plan, the 1897 Incentive Stock Plan {the “1997 {SP"), the 2001 Incentive Stock Plan,
the 2004 Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Non-Employee Directars, and the 2007 Restricted Stock Plan. Refer to Note 16 -
“Stock-Based Incentive Plans” of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. The 1997 ISP
expired on February 27, 2007, and no further grants may be made under this plan.

Includes the 1999 Incentive Stock Plan (the “1999 ISP”) and options granted as an inducement grant in connection with
our chief executive officer's employment with RadioShack in the third quarter of 2006. Refer to Note 16 for mare
information concerning the 1999 ISP and the third quarter 2006 inducement grant.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE.

The information called for by this ltem with respect to certain relationships and transactions with
management and others is incorporated by referance from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual
Meeting under the heading “Review and Approval of Transactions with Related Persons™ and “Corporate
Governance - Director Independence.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information called for by this Item with respect to principal accounting fees and services is
incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting under the headings
“Fees and Services of the Independent Auditors” and “Policy for Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible
Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditors.”

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Deocuments filed as part of this report.

1) The financial statements filed as a part of this report are listed in the "Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements” on page 45.

2} None

3} Alist of the exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K and filed as part of this report is set forth in
the Index to Exhibits beginning on page 85, which immediately precedes such exhibits.

Certain instruments defining the rights of holders of our long-term debt are not filed as exhibits to this report
because the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does not exceed ten percent of our total assets
on a consolidated basis. We will furnish the Securities and Exchange Commission copies of such
instruments upon request.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
RadioShack Corporation has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

February 26, 2008 fs/ Julian C. Day
Julian C. Day
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1234, this report has been signed
below by the following parsons on behalf of RadioShack Corporation and in the capacities indicated on
this 26th day of February, 2008.

Signature Title

fs/ Julian C. Day Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Julian C. Day (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ James F. Gooch Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

James F. Gooch {Principal Financial Officer)

fsf Martin O. Moad Vice President and Controlier

Martin O. Moad (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Frank J. Belatti Director s/ Jack L. Messman Director
Frank J. Belatti Jack L. Messman

/s/ Robert S. Falcone Director /s/ William G. Morton, Jr. Director
Robert S. Falcone William G. Morton, Jr.

s/ Daniel R. Feehan Director s/ Thomas G. Plagkett Director
Daniel R. Feehan Thomas G. Plaskett

/s Richard J. Hernandez Director s/ Edwina D. Woodbury Director
Richard J. Hernandez Edwina D. Woodbury

/s/ H. Eugene Lockhart Director

H. Eugene Lockhart
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of RadioShack Corporation:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of RadioShack Corporation and its subsidiaries ("the Company")
at December 31, 2007 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for
these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effeciiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management's
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under ftem 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Qur audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 11 and Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the
manner in which it accounts for income taxes in 2007 and changed the manner in which it accounted for
share-based compensation in 2006.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in aczordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial resorting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of firancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Fort Worth, Texas
February 26, 2008

46




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
RadioShack Corporation and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
% of % of % of
{In mililons, except per share amounts) Dollars Revenues Dollars Revenues Dollars Revenues
Net salas and operating revenues § 42517 100.0% $ 47775 100.0% $ 50817 100.0%
Cost of preducts sold (includes depreciation
amounts of $10.0 million, $10.7 million and
$10.3 mitlion, respectively) 2,225.9 52.4 2,648.1 55.4 2,815.0 55.4
Gross profit 2,025.8 47.6 2,129.4 44.6 2,266.7 44.6
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 15385 36.2 1,810.7 378 1.803.3 355
Depraciation and amortization 102.7 24 117.5 25 1135 2.2
Impairment of long-lived assets and other
charges 2.7 -- 44.3 0.9 — -
Total operating expenses 1,643.9 38.6 1,972.5 41.3 1,916.8 37.7
Operating income 381.9 9.0 156.9 33 349.9 6.9
interest income 228 0.5 7.4 0.1 59 0.1
Interest expense {38.8) (0.9 (44.3) {0.9) (44.5) (0.8}
Other income (loss} 0.9 -- (8.6) {0.2) 10.2 0.2
Income before income taxes 366.6 8.6 1114 23 321.5 6.4
Income tax provision 129.8 3.0 38.0 0.8 51.6 1.0
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 236.8 5.6 734 1.5 269.9 54
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of $1.8 million tax benefit in
2005 - - - - (2.9) 0.1)
Net income b 236.8 5.6% $ 734 1.5% $ 267.0 5.3%
Net income per share (see Note 2):
Basic:
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle $ 1.76 5 0.54 $ 1.82
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of taxes - — (0.02)
Basic income per share $ 1.76 $ 0.54 $ 1.80
Assuming dilution:
Income before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle 3 1.74 $ 0.54 $ 1.81
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle, net of taxes - — (0.02)
Diluted income per share $ 1,74 $ 0.54 $ 1.79
Shares used in computing income per
share:
Basic 134.6 136.2 148.1
Diluted 135.9 136.2 148.8

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
RadioShack Corporation and Subsidiaries

December 31,
(In millions, except for share amounts) 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 509.7 $ 4720
Accounts and notes receivable, net 256.0 2479
Inventories 7054 752.1
Other current assets 95.7 127.6
Total current assets 1,566.8 1,599.6
Property, plant and equipment, net 3171 386.3
Other assets, net 105.7 84.1
Total assets $ 1,989.6 $ 20700
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt, including current maturities of long-term debt $ 61.2 $ 194.9
Accounts payable 2576 2545
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 393.5 4422
Income taxes payable 35.7 92.6
Total current liabilities 748.0 984.2
Long-term debt, excluding current maturities 348.2 3458
Other non-current liabilities 123.7 86.2
Total liabilities 1,219.9 1,416.2
Commitments and contingent liabilities (see Notes 13 and 14)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized:
Series A junior participating, 300,000 shares designated and
none issued -- -
Common stock, $1 par value, 650,000,000 shares authorized;

191,033,000 shares issued 191.0 191.0
Additional paid-in capital 108.4 92.6
Retained earnings 1,9921 1,780.9
Treasury stock, at cost; 59,940,000 and 55,196,000

shares, respectively {1,516.5) {1,409.1)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {5.3) {1.6)

Total stockholders’ equity 769.7 653.8

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,989.86 $ 2,070.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
RadioShack Corporation and Subsidiaries

Year Ended December 34,

{In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2368 $ 734 $ 267.0
Adjusiments to reconcile net income 10 nel cash
provided by cperating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 112.7 128.2 123.8
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - 47
Impairment of long-lived assets and other charges 2.7 443 --
Stock option compensation 10.7 12.0 -
Reversal of unrecognized tax benefits {11.9) - --
Deferred income taxes 16.5 (32.7) (74.0)
Other non-cash items 9.0) 5.1 2.9)
Provision for credit losses and bad debts 0.4 0.4 0.1
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable {0.7) 61.8 (68.2)
inveniories 46.8 212.8 38.8
Other current assets 53 25 285
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, income taxes
payable and other (3t.3) (193.0) 45.1
Net cash provided by operating activities 379.0 314.8 362.9
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property, plant and equipment {(45.3) (91.0) {(170.7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 15 1A 226.0
Other investing activities 1.8 0.6 (16.0)
Net cash {used in} provided by investing activities (42.0) {79.3) 39.3
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchases of treasury stock {208.5) - (625.8)
Sale of treasury stock to employee benefit plans -- 10.5 30.1
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 81.3 1.7 17.4
Payments of dividends (32.8) (33.9) {33.7)
Changes in short-term borrowings and cutstanding checks in
excess of cash balances, net 10.7 422 {4.0)
Reductions of long-term borrowings (150.0) (8.0) (0.1)
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activities {299.3) 12.5 {616.1)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 37.7 248.0 {213.9)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 472.0 224.0 437.9
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 509.7 $ 4720 $ 2240
Supplemental cash flow information:
interest paid $ 426 $ 440 $ 434
Income taxes paid 112.2 52.9 158.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RadioShack Corporation and Subsidiaries

Shares at December 31, Dollars at December 31,
{In millions) 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
Common stock
Beginning and end of year 191.0 191.0 191.0 $ 1910 3 191.0 $191.0
Treasury stock
Beginning of year (55.2) (56.0) (32.8) 5 (1,409.1) $ (1.431.86} $ (859.4)
Purchase of treasury stock {8.7) - (25.3) (208.5) - (625.8)
Issuance of common stock 0.5 0.6 1.2 12.8 18.6 318
Exercise of slock options and grant of stock
awards 3.5 0.2 09 88.3 3.9 21.8
End of year {59.9) (55.2) (56.0) $ (1,516.5) $ (1,409.1) $ (1,431.6)
Additional paid-in capital
Beginning of year $ 926 $ 87.7 $ 827
Issuance of common stock 6.2 {5.7) 3.5
Exercise of stock options and grant of stock
awards {8.4) {1.7) {5.0)
Stock option compensation 10.7 12.0 -
Net stock-based compensation income tax
benefils 7.3 0.3 6.5
£nd of year $ 1084 5 926 $ 87.7
Retained eamnings
Beginning of year $ 17809 $ 17414 $ 1,508.1
Net income 236.8 734 267.0
Implementation of FIN 48 7.2 - -
Common stock cash dividends declared (32.8) (33.9) {33.7)
End of year $ 18921 $ 1,780.9 $ 17414
Accumulated other comprehensive
(loss) income
Beginning of year $ (1.6) $ 03 $ (0.3)
Pension adjustments, net of tax 04 (1.0} -
Other comprehensive {loss) income (4.1} (0.9 0.6
End of year $ (5.3) $ (1.6) $ 0.3
Total stockholders' equity $ 7687 $ 6538 $ 5888
Comprehensive income
Net income $ 2368 $ 734 $ 267.0
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net
of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjusiments (4.0 0.3 (0.4}
Amortization of gain on cash flow hedge {0.1) {0.1) (0.1)
Unrealized (loss) gain on securities - (1.1) 1.1
Other comprehensive (loss) income (4.1} (0.9} 086
Comprehensive income $ 2327 $ 725 $ 2676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

50



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RadioShack Corporation and Subsidiaries

The Notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements are important and should be read in conjunction with
your review of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Below is a list of the notes.

Note 1 Description of Business

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Note 3 Accounts and Notes Receivable, Net

Note 4 Other Current Assets, Net

Note 5 Property, Plant and Equipment ("PP&E™), Net
Note 6 Other Assets, Net

Note 7 Indebtedness and Borrowing Facilities

Note 8 Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle
Note 9 Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Note 10 QOther Non-Current Liabilities

Note 11 Income Taxes

Note 12 Federal Excise Tax

Note 13 Litigation

Note 14 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Note 15 Corporate and Field Headcount Reduction
Note 16 Stock-Based Incentive Plans

Note 17 Deferred Compensation Plans

Note 18 Termination Protection Plans

Note 19 RadioShack Investment Plan

Note 20 RadioShack 401(k) Plan

Note 21 Stock Repurchase Program

Note 22 Preferred Share Purchase Rights

Note 23 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
Note 24 Dividends Declared

Note 25 Product Sales Information

Note 26 Restructuring Program

Note 27 Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

Note 28 Segment Reporting
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NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

RadioShack Corporation was incorporated in Delaware in 1967. We primarily engage in the retail sale of
consumer electronics goods and services through our RadioShack store chain. We seek to differentiate
ourselves from our various competitors by providing cost-effective solutions to meet the routine electronics

needs and distinct electronics wants of our customers, Throughout this report, the terms “our,” "we,” "us
and “RadioShack” refer to RadioShack Corporation, including its subsidiaries.

RADIOSHACK COMPANY-.OPERATED STORES

At December 31, 2007, we operated 4,447 company-operated stores under the RadioShack brand located
throughout the United States, as well as in Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands. These stores are located
in major shopping malls and strip centers, as well as individual storefronts. Each location carries a broad
assortment of both private label and third-party branded consumer electronics products. Our product lines
include wireless telephones and communication devices such as scanners and two-way radios; flat panel
televisions, residential telephones, DVD players, computers and direct-to-home (‘DTH") satellite systems,
home entertainment, wircless, imaging and computer accessories; general and special purpose batteries;
wire, cable and connectivity products; and digital cameras, radio-controlled cars and other toys, satellite
radios and memory players. We also provide consumers access to third-party services such as wireless
telephone and DTH satellite activation, satellite radio service, prepaid wireless airtime and extended service
plans.

KIOSKS

At December 31, 2007, we operated 739 kiosks located throughout the United States. These kiosks are
primarily inside SAM'S CLUB locations, as well as stand-alone Sprint Nextel kiosks in shopping malls.
These locations, which are not RadioShack-branded, offer primarily wireless handsets, their associated
accessories, and DTH satellite systems. We also provide consumers access to third-party wireless
telephone services.

OTHER
In addition to the reportable segments discussed above, we have other sales channels and support
operations described as follows: :

Dealer Outlets: At December 31, 2007, we had a network of 1,484 RadioShack dealer outlets, including 36
located outside of North America. These outlets provide private label and third-party branded products and
services, typically to smaller communities. These independent dealers are often engaged in other retail
operations and augment their businesses with our products and service offerings. Our dealer sales derived
cutside of the United States are not material.

RadioShack.com: Products and information are available through our commercial Web site
www.radioshack.com. Online customers can purchase, return or exchange various products available
through this Web site. Additionally, certain products ordered online may be picked up, exchanged or
returned at RadioShack stores.

RadioShack Service Centers: We maintain a service and support network to service the consumer
electronics and personal computer retail industry in the U.S. We are a vendor-authorized service provider for
many top tier manufacturers, such as Hewlett-Packard, LG Electronics, Motorola, Nokia, RCA/Thomson,
and Sony, among others. In addition, we perform repairs for third-party extended service pian providers. At
December 31, 2007, we: had eight RadioShack service centers in the U.S. and one in Puerto Rico that repair
certain name-brand and private label products sold through our various sales channels.

International Operations: As of January 31, 2007, we had closed all of our locations in Canada. As of
December 31, 2007, there were 176 RadioShack-branded stores and 17 dealers in Mexico. These
RadioShack-branded stores and dealer outlets are overseen by a joint venture in which we are a minority
owner with Grupo Gigante, S.A. de C.V. Our revenues from foreign customers are not material, and we do
not have a material amount of long-lived assets located outside of the United States. We do not
consolidate the operations of the Mexican joint venture in our consolidated financial statements.

Support Operations:
Qur retail stores, along with our kiosks and dealer outlets, are supported by an established infrastructure.
Below are the major components of this support structure.
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Distribution Centers - At December 31, 2007, we had five distribution centers shipping over 800
thousand cartons each month, on average, to our retail stores and dealer outlets. One of these
distribution centers also serves as a fulfillment center for our online customers. Additionally, we have a
distribution center that ships fixtures to our company-operated stores. During the first half of 2008, we
will close our distribution center in Columbus, Chio.

RadioShack Technolegy Services (“RSTS") - Our management information system architecture is
composed of a distributed, online network of computers that links all stores, customer channels,
delivery locations, service centers, credit providers, distribution facilities and our home office into a
fully integrated system. Each store has its own server to support the point-of-sale ("POS") system.
The majority of our company-operated stores communicate through a broadband network, which
provides efficient access to customer support data. This design also allows store management to
track sales and inventory at the product or sales associate level. RSTS provides the majority of our
programming and systems analysis needs.

RadioShack Global Sourcing (“RSGS”) - RSGS serves our wide-ranging international import/export,
sourcing, evaluation, logistics and quality control needs. RSGS's activities support our branded and
private label business.

Consumer Electronics Manufacturing - We operate two manufacturing facilities in the United States
and one overseas manufacturing operation in China. These three manufacturing facilities employed
approximately 1,900 employees as of December 31, 2007. We manufacture a variety of products,
primarily sold through our retail outlets, including telephony, antennas, wire and cable products, and a
variety of "hard-to-find” parts and accessories for consumer electronics products.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation: The Consolidated Financial Statements include our accounts and our
majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in 20% to 50% owned companies are accounted for using the
equity method. Significant intercompany transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation.

Segments: We consider RadioShack company-operated stores and kiosks to be our reportable
segments based on the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 131,
"Disclosures About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” The accounting policies of the
reportable operating segments are the same as those described in the remainder of this note,

Revenue Recognition: Our revenue is derived principally from the sale of private label and third-party
branded products and services to consumers. Revenue is recognized, net of an estimate for customer
refunds and product returns, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred
or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably
assured.

Certain products, such as wireless telephone handsets, require the customer to use the services of a
third-party service provider. In most cases, the third-party service provider pays us an upfront commission
for obtaining a new customer, as well as a monthly recurring residual amount based upon the ongoing
arrangement between the service provider and the customer. Our sale of an activated wireless telephone
handset is the single event required to meet the delivery criterion for both the upfront commission and the
residual revenue. Upfront commission revenue, net of estimated service deactivations, is recognized at
the time an activated wireless telephone handset is sold to the customer at the point-of-sale. Based on
our extensive history in selling activated wireless telephone handsets, we have been able to establish
reliable deactivation estimates. Recurring residual income is recognized as earned under the terms of
each contract with the service provider, which is typically as the service provider bills its customer,
generally on a monthiy basis.
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Cost of Products Sold: Cost of products sotd primarily includes the total cost of merchandise inventory
sold: direct costs relating to merchandise acquisition and distribution (including depreciation and excise
taxes); costs of services provided; in-bound freight expenses to our distribution centers; out-bound freight
expenses to our retail outlets; physical inventory valuation adjustments and losses; customer shipping
and handling charges; and certain vendor allowances (see “Vendor Allowances” below).

Vendor Allowances: We receive allowances from third-party service providers and product vendors
through a variety of promotional programs and arrangements as a result of purchasing and promoting
their products and services in the normal course of business. We consider vendor allowances received to
be a reduction in the price of a vendor's products or services and record them as a component of
inventory until the product is sold, at which point we record them as a component of cost of products sold
unless the allowances represent reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to
promote a vendor's products and services. In this case, we record the vendor reimbursement when
earned as an offset to the associated expense incurred to promote the applicable products and/or
services.

Advertising Costs: Our advertising costs are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. We
receive allowances from certain third-party service providers and product vendors that we record when
eamned as an offset to advertising expense incurred to promote the applicable products and/or services
only if the allowances represent reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs (see our
previous “Vendor Allowances” discussion). Advertising expense was $208.8 million, $216.3 million and
$263.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, net of vendor
allowances of $13.1 million, $34.7 million and $44.1 million, respectively.

Revision of Expense Classification: Subsequent to the end of 2007, we determined that we should revise
the classification of certain expenses relating to merchandise acquisition and the operation of our distribution
centers, including depresiation, in our Consolidated Statements of Income. This revision had no impact on
previously reported operating income, net income, financial position, stockholders’ equity, comprehensive
income, or cash flows from operating activities. Our policy is, and historically has been, to capitalize such
amounts into inventory. However, historically upon capitalization of these expenses, we increased inventory
and previously decreased cost of products sold, rather than decreasing selling, general and administrative
(“SG&A") expense where these expenses were originally recorded. As a result, we had understated cost of
products sold and overstated SG&A expense and, to a lesser extent, depreciation. We believe the revised
presentation provides consistency between our consolidated balance sheets and statements of income by
aligning the classification of our distribution costs within our statements of income in the manner in which
these costs are included in our inventory balance.

We have concluded that the effect of these misstatements did not materially impact any previously issued
financial statements, however we have revised prior period comparative information presented herein in
order to present such information on a consistent basis. The effects of this revision are summarized in the
table below. A reconciliation of these changes are also shown on a quarterly basis within Note 27 -
“Quarterly Data (Unaudited)” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

As Previously As Previously
Reported Revision As Adjusted Reported Revision As Adjusted
{In millions}) Twelve Months Ended December 31,
2006 2005

Net sales and operating revenues  $  4,777.5 - $ 47775 $ 50817 $ - $ 50817
Cost of products sold 2,544.4 103.7 2,648.1 2,706.3 108.7 2,815.0
Gross profit 2,233.1 (103.7) 2,129.4 23754 (108.7) 2,266.7
Qperating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 1,803.7 (93.0) 1,810.7 1,901.7 (98.4) 1,803.3

Depreciation and amortization 128.2 (10.7) 117.5 123.8 (10.3) 1135

Impairment of long-lived assets.

and other charges 44.3 - 44.3 -- — -

Total operating expenses 2,076.2 (103.7) 1,972.5 2,025.5 (108.7) 1,916.8
Operating income $ 156.9 - $ 156.9 $ 349.9 3 — $ 349.9
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Reclassifications; Certain amounts in the December 31, 2006 and 2005, financial statements have been
reclassified to conform with the December 31, 2007, presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on
net income or {otal stockholders’ equity as previously reported.

Pervasiveness of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, related revenues and expenses, and the disclosure of gain and loss contingencies at
the date of the financial statements and during the periods presented. Our most significant estimates and
assumptions include the determination of estimates for third-party service deactivations in connection
with revenue recognition and receivables, inventory valuation, depreciable lives of property, plant and
equipment, insurance reserves, intangible assets, contingency and litigation reserves, and stock-based
compensation. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.

Income Taxes: Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred taxes are
recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates
applicable to future years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases
of existing assets and liahilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date. In addition, we recognize future tax benefits to the
extent that such benefits are more likely than not to be realized. See Note 11 - “Income Taxes” for a
discussion of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48"), and its effect on incormne taxes.

Stock-Based Compensation; In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB")
issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”), which requires
companies to measure all employee stock-based compensation awards using a fair value method and
record this expense in their consolidated financial statements. In addition, the adoption of SFAS

No. 123R requires additional accounting and disclosures related to income tax and cash flow effects
resulting from stock-based compensation.

We adopted SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, under the modified prospective application method.
Under this method, we record stock-based compensation expense for all awards granted on or after the
date of adoption and for the portion of previously granted awards that remained unvested at the date of
adoption. Accordingly, prior period amounis have not been restated. Currently, our stock-based
compensation relates to stock options, restricted stock awards, and other equity-based awards issued to
our employees and directors. All of our equity awards, with the exception of our stock options, are
measured at the fair value of our common stock on the grant date and recognized as compensation
expense over the applicable vesting period.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method.
Accordingly, we recognized compensation expense for restricted stock and other equity awards over the
service period, but did not recognize compensation expense for stock option awards, because the
optiocns were granted at market value on the date of grant.
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The following table details the effect of stock-based compensation on net income and net income per
share for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, illustrating the effect of
applying the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

Pro Forma
{In millions, except per share amounts) 2007 2006 2005
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle $ 236.8 $ 734 $ 2899
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes -- - (2.9)
Net income, as reported 236.8 73.4 267.0
Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related tax effects 101 13.8 7.8
Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair
value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (10.1) (13.8) {20.4)
Net income $ 236.8 $ 734 $ 2544
Net income per share:
Basic — as reperted $ 1.76 $ 0.54 3 1.80
Basic — pro forma $ 1.72
Diluted - as reported $ 1.74 $ 054 3 1.79
Diluted - pro forma $ 1.71

The compensation cost that has been charged against income for stock-based compensation plans was
$12.7 million, $20.2 million and $12.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The total income tax benefit recognized for these stock-based compensation plans was $2.6
million, $6.4 million and $4.4 million for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The fair value of the stack options granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
was estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model, except for the fair market value of
the two million performance options granted to our chief executive officer during the third quarter of 2006,
which were valued utilizing the Monte Carlo simulation model. The Black-Scholes-Merton and Monte
Carlo simulation models require the use of highly subjective assumptions, including expected option life,
expected volatility, and expected employee termination rate. We use historical data and management
judgment to estimate the option life and employee termination rate, and use historical and implied
volatility when estimating the stock price volatility.

The fair market value of the stock options granted during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, was estimated using the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Option life (in years) 46 49 40
Stock price volatility 32.7% 33.1% 38.3%
Dividend yield 1.00% 1.19% 0.88%
Risk free interest rate 4.2% 5.0% 3.8%
Fair value $ 699 $ 492 $ 939

We periodically grant cptions to purchase RadioShack common stock to certain of our employees under
various stock option plans at exercise prices equal to the fair market value of our common stock at the
date of grant. Qur current stock option grants have terms of seven years from the grant date. Previously,
we granted options with ten-year terms. Typically, the options vest ratably over three years from the date
of grant. However, during the third quarter of 2006, we granted 4.2 million stock options to our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer that primarily vest over four years from the date of grant
(includes 2.0 million options which met the market condition in 2007 that restricted the ability to exercise
until certain stock price: hurdles were achieved). Once employment is terminated, the opticn holder has
90 days in which to exarcise all vested options; however, under certain circumstances, some retirees may
have three years in which to exercise all vested options. The fair market value of each opticn is generally
recognized as comperisation expense on a straight-line basis between the grant date and the date at
which the option becomes fully vested. As of December 31, 2007, unrecognized compensation expense
related to the unvested portion of our stock options was $16.2 million, which is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 1.4 years.
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The following table summarizes activity under our stock option plans for the year ended December 31,

2007:

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Life Value
{In thousands) Price (in years) {in millions)
Cutstanding at beginning of period 21,404 $ 2938
Grants 601 22.34
Exercised {(3,462) 23.08
Forfeited (3,141) 35.32
Outstanding at end of period 15,402 $ 2031 34 $ 122
Exercisable at end of period 11,394 $ 34.00 27 3 33

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying
awards and the quoted price of our commen stock for those awards that have an exercise price currently
below the closing price. As of December 31, 2007, we had options outstanding to purchase an aggregate
of 4.0 million shares with an exercise price below the quoted price of our stock, resulting in an aggregate
intrinsic value of $12.2 million. During the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20085, the aggregate
intrinsic value of options exercised under our stock option plans was $22.9 million, $0.9 million and $6.2
million respectively, determined as of the date of exercise. The total fair value of stock options vested was
$14.1 million, $19.3 million and $21.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.

Income per Share: Basic income per share is computed based only on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for each period presented. Diluted income per share reflects the potential
dilution that would have occurred if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised,
converted, or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would have then shared in the earnings of
the entity. The following table reconciles the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted

earnings per share calcuiations.

Year Ended December 31,

20067

2006 2005

Shares
{Denominator)

Income
{Numerator)

(In millions, except

per share amounts)

Per Share
Amcunt

Per Share
Amount

Shares
(Denominator)

Income
{Nurnerator}

Per Share
Amount

Shares
{Denominator}

Income
(Mumerator)

Income before
cumulative effect of
change in accounting
principle

Cumulative effact of
change in accounting
principle, net of taxes -

$ 236.8

Basic:

Net income 236.8 134.6
Effect of dilutive
securities:

Stock options — 13

Diluted: »
Net income plus
assumed conversions

$ 236.8 135.8

§

1.76

1.74

$ 734 $ 2699

- (2.9}

734 136.2 $ 054 267.0 148.1 $ 180

$ 734 136.2 $ 054 $ 267.0 148.8 $ 179

Options to purchase 9.5 million, 17.1 million and 15.8 million shares of common stock in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted income per share because the option
exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common stock during the year, and the

effect of their inclusion would be antidilutive.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash on hand in stores, deposits in banks and all highly liquid investments
with an original or remaining maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase are considered cash
and cash equivalents. We carry our cash equivalents at cost, which approximates fair value because of the
short maturity of the instruments. The weighted average interest rates were 3.3% and 5.3% at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively, for cash equivalents totaling $483.9 miillion and $397.2 million, respectively.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtfui Accounts: Concentrations of credit risk with respect
to customer and dealer receivables are limited due to the large number of customers, dealers and their
location in many different. geographic areas of the country. However, we do have some concentration of
credit risk from service providers in the wireless telephone industry, due to sales of their products and
services. We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts based on factors surrounding the credit risk of
specific customers, historical trends and other information. Historically, such losses, in the aggregate, have
not exceeded our expectations. Account balances are charged against the allowance when we believe it is
probable that the receivable will not be recovered.

Inventories: Our inventories are stated at the iower of cost (principally based on average cost, which
approximates FIFO) or rarket value and are comprised primarily of finished goods. Included in the cost
of the inventories are in-bound freight expenses to our distribution centers, out-bound freight expenses to
our retail outlets, and other direct costs relating to merchandise acquisition and distribution. If the
calculated net realizable value of the inventory is determined to be less than the recorded cost, a
provision is made to reduce the carrying amount of the inventory.

Property, Plant and Equipment: We state our property, plant and equipment at cost, less accumulated
depreciation. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation is primarily calculated using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life. When we sell or retire depreciable assets, we remove the related cost
and accumulated depreciation from our accounts, and we recognize gains and losses. Major additions and
hetterments are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs that do not materially improve or extend the lives of
the respective assets are: charged to operations as we incur these expenses.

Capitalized Software Costs: We capitalize qualifying costs related to the acquisition or development of
internal-use software. Capitalization of costs begins after the conceptual formulation stage has been
completed. Capitalized costs are amortized over the estimated useful life of the software, which ranges
between three and five y2ars. Capitalized software costs at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, totaled
$50.4 million, $46.0 million and $55.1 million, net of accumulated amortization of $100.1 million, $98.7
million and $79.2 million, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: We review long-lived assets (primarily property, plant and equipment)
held and used or to be disposed of for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the net book value of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is assessed based on estimated
undiscounted cash flows from the useful asset, pursutant to the provisions of SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.” If the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable, we recognize
an impairment loss equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds fair value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets: Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of net assets acquired. At December 31, 2007, our goodwill balance totaled $2.9 million.
Additionally, as of December 31, 2007, we had $5.0 million in intangible assets arising from the SAM'S
CLUB kiosk business acquisition. Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwil! and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are reviewed
annually during the fourth quarter for impairment (and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating that
the carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets may be impaired). We primarily estimate fair values
utilizing valuation methods such as discounted cash flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The fair value of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,

and accounts payable approximate their recorded values. Derivative financial instruments are recorded at
fair value.
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Derivatives: We use our interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert a portion of our long-term
fixed rate debt to a variable rate. Under these agreements, we pay a variable rate of LIBOR plus a markup
and receive a fixed rate of 7.375%. We have designated these agreements as fair value hedging
instruments. The accounting for changes in the fair value of an interest rate swap is dependent on the use
of the swap. To the extent that a derivative is effective as a hedge of an exposure to future changes in fair
value, the change in the derivative's fair value is recorded in earnings, as is the change in fair value of the
item being hedged. To the extent that a swap is effective as a cash flow hedge of an exposure to future
changes in cash flows, the change in fair value of the swap is deferred in accumulated other
comprehensive income. Any portion we consider to be ineffective is immediately reported in our earnings.
The differentials to be received or paid under interest rate swap contracts designated as hedges are
recognized in income over the life of the contracts as adjustments to interest expense. Gains and losses
on terminations of interest rate contracts designated as hedges are deferred and amortized into interest
expense over the remaining life of the original contracts or until repayment of the hedged indebtedness.
Through the use of interest rate swap agreements, our net interest expense increased by $2.7 million and
$1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, but decreased by $2.8
million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Our exposure to market risk, specifically the equity markets, relates to warrants we earned as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, to purchase 2 million and 4 million shares, respectively, of Sirius Satellite
Radio Inc. (“Sirius”) stock at an exercise price of $5.00 per share. We have recorded these as assets
using a Black-Scholes-Merton valuation method. Our maximum exposure is equal to the carrying value at
December 31, 2007, of $2.4 million. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we recognized a
net unrealized gain of $0.9 million and an unrealized loss of $5.9 million, respectively, related to our
derivative exposure to Sirius warrants, as a result of our mark to market of these warrants. During the
third quarter 2007, we modified the expected date at which we would settle the warrants, resulting in a
gain of $2.4 million, which was offset by mark-to-market losses of $1.5 million during the year.

We maintain strict internal controls over our hedging activities, which include policies and procedures for
risk assessment and the approval, reporting and monitoring of all derivative financial instrument activities.
We monitor our hedging positions and credit worthiness of our counter-parties and do not anticipate
losses due to our counter-parties’ nonperformance. We do not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. To qualify for hedge accounting, derivatives must meet
defined correlation and effectiveness criteria, be designated as a hedge and result in cash flows and
financial statement effects that substantially offset those of the position being hedged.

Foreign Currency Translation: The functionat currency of substantially all operations outside the U.S. is
the applicable local currency. Translation gains or losses related to net assets located outside the United
States are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income and are classified
in the stockholders’ equity section of the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Comprehensive Income: Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity (net assets) of a
business enterprise during a period, except for those changes resulting from investments by owners and
distributions to owners. Comprehensive income is composed of net income, foreign currency translation
adjustments, and amortization of gains and losses on an interest rate swap used as a cash flow hedge,
which are all shown net of tax in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and
Comprehensive Income.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements: in September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (*"SFAS”) No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements” ("SFAS 157"). SFAS 157
defines fair value, estatlishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement
does not require any new fair value measurements; rather, it applies to other accounting pronouncements
that require or permit fair value measurements. The provisions of this statement are to be applied
prospectively as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which this statement is initially applied, with any
transition adjustment recognized as a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
except for a one year deferral for non-financial assets and liabilities of a non-recurring nature. We will
adopt SFAS 157 effective January 1, 2008, and plan to adopt the non-financial assets and liabilities
aspects one year later. We do not expect it to have a materiat effect on our results of operations or
financial condition.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” ("SFAS 159"). SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure certain financial
instruments and other eligible items at fair value when the items are not otherwise currently required to be
measured at fair value. Under SFAS 159, the decision to measure items at fair value is made at specified
election dates on an irrevocable instrument-by-instrument basis. Entities electing the fair value option
would be required to recognize changes in fair value in earnings and to expense up-front cost and fees
associated with the item for which the fair value option is elected. Entities electing the fair value option
are required to distinguish, on the face of the statement of financial position, the fair value of assets and
liabilities for which the fair value option has been elected and similar assets and liabilities measured using
another measurement attribute. SFAS 159 will be effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007. We will adopt SFAS 159 effective January 1, 2008, and do not expect it to have a material effect on
our results of operations or financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business Combinations” (*SFAS 141R”). SFAS
141R establishes principles and requirements on how the acquirer in a business combination recognizes
and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
noncontrolling interest in the entity acquired. In addition, SFAS 141R provides guidance on the
recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase as well as what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the nature and financial impact of the business combination. The provisions of SFAS 141R apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is after the end of our fiscal year
2008 and may not be applied before that time. The provisions of SFAS No. 141R are effective for the
fiscal years beginning after the end of our 2008 fiscal year; therefore, we anticipate adopting this standard
as of January 1, 2009. 'We have not determined the effect, if any, the adoption of this statement will have
on our financial condition or results of operations.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements - an Amendment of ARB No. 51" (*SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes principles and
requirements on how tc treat the portion of equity in a subsidiary that is not attributable directly or
indirectly to a parent. This is commonly known as a minority interest. The objective of SFAS 160 is to
improve relevance, comparability, and transparency concerning ownership interests in subsidiaries held
by parties other than tha parent by providing disclosures that clearly identify between interests of the
parent and interest of the noncontrolling owners and the related impacts on the consolidated statement of
income and the consolidated statement of financial position. SFAS 160 also provides guidance on
disclosures related to changes in the parent’'s ownership interest and deconsolidation of a subsidiary. The
provisions of SFAS 160 apply prospectively as of the beginning of our fiscal year 2009 with presentation
and disclosure requirements applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Early adoption is prohibited.
The provisions of SFAS No. 160 are effective for the fiscal years beginning with our 2009 fiscal year;
therefore, we anticipate adopting this standard as of January 1, 2009. We have not determined the effect,
if any, the adoption of this statement will have on our financial condition or results of operations.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. FIN 48 provides guidance on the financial statement recognition
and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 requires that we
recognize in the financial statements the impact of a tax position if that position more likely than not will
be sustained on an audit, based on the technical merits of the position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and
transition provisions. The transition adjustment recognized on the date of adoption is recorded as an
adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the adoption period. We adopted FIN 48 on
January 1, 2007. See Note 11 - “Income Taxes" for a discussion of the impact of FIN 48.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE, NET
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had the following accounts and notes receivable outstanding in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets:

December 31,

(In_millions) 2007 2006
Receivables from vendors and service

providers $ 1569 $ 167.0
Trade accounts receivable 62.1 67.7
Other receivables 395 15.7
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2.5) (2.5)
Accounts and notes receivable, net $ 256.0 $ 2479

Receivables from vendors and service providers relate to earned marketing development funds, customer
acquisition fees, residual income, promotions and other rebates from our third-party service providers and
product vendors, after taking into account estimates for service providers’ customer deactivations and non-
activations, which are factors in determining the amount of customer acquisition fees and residual income
earned.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

December 31,

{In_millions) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 25 $ o059 $ 14
Provision for bad debts included in selling,

general and administrative expense 04 0.4 0.1
Uncollected receivables {written off) recovered,

net {0.4) 1.2 {0.8)
Balance at the end of the year $ 25 $ 25 $ 09

NOTE 4 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS, NET
December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006
Deferred income taxes $§ 754 $ 935
Other 20.3 341
Total other current assets, net $ 0957 $ 1276
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NOTE 5 - PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT (“PP&E™), NET
The following table outlines the ranges of estimated useful lives and balances of each major fixed asset
category:

Range of December 31,

(In millions} Estimated Useful Life 2007 2006
Land - $ 106 $ 1086
Buildings 10 - 40 years 55.0 556.0
Furniture, fixtures, equipment and

software 2- 15 years 682.4 751.7
Leasehold improvements The shorter of the useful life of the

improvements or the term of the related
lease and certain renewal periods 367.7 369.5

Total PP&E 1,115.7 1,186.8
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization (798.6) (800.5)
PP&E, net $ 3171 $ 386.3

NOTE 6 - OTHER ASSETS, NET
December 31,

(In_millions} 2007 2006
Notes receivable $ 1441 $ 135
Goodwill 29 25
Deferred income taxes 59.7 36.3
Intangibles 22 50
Other 26.8 26.8
Total other assets, net $ 105.7 $ 841

The change in the carrying amount of geodwill is as faliows:

December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006
Beginning balance $ 25 $ 223
Goodwill impairments - (19.8)
Dealer conversions 0.4 --

Ending balance $§ 29 $ 25

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004, we acquired certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of
Wireless Retail, Inc. ("WRI"), These assets included wireless kiosks and inventory located within SAM’S
CLUB retail locations. Thi acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting as
prescribed in SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 1417). In accordance with SFAS No. 141,
the purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on estimates of their
respective fair values at the date of acquisition. Fair values were determined principally by third-party
valuations and supported by internal studies. The total purchase price of $598.6 million was allocated
primarily to fixed assets, goodwill and a separately identifiable intangible asset, which is our contract with
SAM'S CLUB. The final purchase price allocation to goodwill and to intangibles was $18.6 million and $32.1
million, respectively.

The intangible asset asscciated with our contract with SAM'S CLUB is being amortized over five years and
the estimated amortization expense for years ending December 31, 2008 and 2009, is $2.9 million, and $2.1
million, respectively.

As a result of continued company and wireless industry growth challenges, together with changes in our
senior leadership team during the third quarter of 2006 that resulted in a refocus on allocation of capital
and resources towards other areas of our business, we determined that our long-lived assets, including
goodwill associated with our kiosk operations, were impaired. We performed impairment tests on both the
long-lived assets associated with our SAM'S CLUB agreement, including the intangible asset relating to
the five-year agreement, and the accompanying goodwill.
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With respect to the long-lived tangible and intangible assets, we compared their carrying values with their
estimated fair values using a discounted cash flow medel, which reflected our lowered expectations of
wireless revenue growth and the ceased expansion of our kiosk business, and determined that the
intangible asset relating to the five-year agreement was impaired. This assessment resulted in a $10.7
million impairment charge to the intangible asset related to our kiosk segment in 2006. The remaining
intangible balance will be amortized over the remaining life of the SAM'S CLUB agreement, which is
scheduled to expire in September 2009. The balance at December 31, 2007, was $5.0 million.

With respect to the goodwill of $18.6 million, we estimated the fair value of the SAM'S CLUB reporting
unit using a discounted cash flow model similar to that used in the long-lived asset impairment test. We
compared it with the carrying value of the reporting unit and determined that the goodwill was impaired.
As the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeded its estimated fair value, we then compared the
implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of goodwill. This resulted in an
$18.6 million impairment of goodwill related to our kiosk segment in the third quarter of 2006.

NOTE 7 - INDEBTEDNESS AND BORROWING FACILITIES

Short-Term Debt, Including Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt

December 31,
{In millions) 2007 2006
Current portion of long-term notes payable $ -- $ 150.0
Current portion of unamortized debt discount and other costs -- {0.6)
Short-term debt 56.2 455
Current portion of medium-term notes payable 5.0 -
Total short-term debt, including current maturities of long-term
debt $ 61.2 $ 1949

The increase in short-term debt is due to an increase in checks issued and not cleared.
Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Maturities

December 31,

(In millions}) 2007 2006
Ten-year 7.375% unsecured note payable due in 2011 $ 3500 $ 3500
Ten-year 6.95% unsecured note payable due in 2007 - 150.0
Medium-term unsecured notes payable with an interest rate of
6.42% due in 2008 50 5.0
Notes payable with interest rates at December 31, 2007 and
2006, of 4.35% and 4.95%, respectively, due in 2014 1.0 1.0
Unamortized debt discount and other costs (1.3) (2.3)
Fair value of interest rate swaps {1.5) (8.5)
353.2 455.2
Less current portion of;
Notes payable 5.0 150.0
Unamoertized debt discount and other costs - {0.6)
5.0 149.4
Total long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 3482 $§ 3458
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Long-term borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2007, mature as follows:

Long-Term
{In millions) Borrowings
2008 $ 5.0
2009 --
2010 --
201 350.0
2012 --
2013 and thereafter 1.0
Total $ 356.0

The fair value of our long-term debt of $356.0 million and $506.0 million (including current portion) at !
December 31, 2007 and 2006, was approximately $358.8 million and $519.4 million, respectively. The fair
values were computed using interest rates which were in effect at the balance sheet dates for similar debt
instruments,

Our senior unsecured debt primarily consists of a 10-year long-term note issuance and an issuance of
medium-term notes.

Long-Term Notes: We have a $300 million debt shelf registration statement which became effective in
August 1997. In August 1997, we issued $150 million of 10-year unsecured long-term notes under this
shelf registration. The interest rate on the notes was 6.95% per annur with interest payable on
September 1 and March 1 of each year. These notes contained customary non-financial covenants. In
September 2007, our $150 million ten-year unsecured note payable came due. Upon maturity, we paid
off the $150 million note payable utilizing our available cash and cash equivalents.

On May 11, 2001, we issued $350 million of 10-year 7.375% notes in a private offering to initial
purchasers who in turn offered the notes to qualified institutional buyers under SEC Rule 144A. The
annual interest rate on the notes is 7.375% per annum with interest payable on November 15 and May 15
of each year. The notes contain certain non-financial covenants and mature on May 15, 2011. In August
2001, under the terms of an exchange offering filed with the SEC, we exchanged substantially all of these
notes for a similar amount of publicly registered notes. The exchange resulted in substantially all of the
notes becoming registered with the SEC and did not result in additional debt being issued.

During the third quarter of 2001, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with an underlying
notional amount of $110.5 million and a maturity in September 2007. This interest rate swap agreement
expired in conjunction with the maturity of the note payable. In June and August 2003, we entered into
interest rate swap agreements with underlying notional amounts of debt of $100 million and $50 mllllon
respectively, and both with maturities in May 2011, These swaps effectively convert a portion of our long-
term fixed rate debt to a variable rate. We entered into these agreements to balance our fixed versus floating
rate debt portfolio to confinue to take advantage of lower short-term interest rates. Under these agreements,
we have contracted to pay a variable rate of LIBOR plus a markup and to receive a fixed rate of 6.95% for
the swap entered into in 2001 and 7.375% for the swaps entered into in 2003. We have designated these
agreements as fair value hedging instruments. We recorded an amount in other non-current liabilities, net, of
$1.5 million and $8.5 million (their fair value) at December 31, 2007 and 20086, respectively, for the swap
agreements and adjusted the fair value of the related debt by the same amount. Fair value was computed
based on the market's current anticipation of quarterly LIBOR rate levels from the present until the swaps’
maturities.

Medium-Term Notes: We also issued, in various amounts and on various dates from December 1997
through September 1993, medium-term notes totaling $150 million under the shelf registration described
above. At December 31, 2007, $5 million of these notes remained outstanding. The interest rate at
December 31, 2007, for the outstanding $5 million in medium-term notes was 6.42%. These notes
contain customary non-financial covenants and mature in January 2008. As of December 31, 2007, there
was no availability under this shelf registration.
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Short-Term Borrowing Facilities

Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005

Domestic seasonal bank credit lines and
bank money market lines:
Lines available at year end $ 625.0 $ 675.0 $ 7800
Loans outstanding at year end - - -
Weighted average interest rate at year end - = -
Weighted average loans outstanding $ -- $ - $ -
Weighted average interest rate during year -- - -

Short-term foreign credit lines:

Lines available at year end $ 8.0 $ 8.0 $ 9.4
Loans outstanding at year end $ - $ - $ 1.1
Weighted average interest rate at year end - - 4.82%
Weighted average loans outstanding $ 0.9 $ 0.2 $ -
Weighted average interest rate during year 4.88% 5.02% 4.80%
Letters of credit and banker's acceptance lines
of credit:
Lines available at year end $ 570 $ 92.0 § 1734
Acceptances outstanding at year end 0.3 48 --
Letters of credit open against outstanding
purchase orders at year end $ 2.0 $ 15.6 $ 10.2
Commercial paper credit facilities:
Commercial paper outstanding at year end N/A $ - $ -
Weighted average interest rate at year end N/A - -
Weighted average commercial paper
outstanding N/A $ 352 $ 138.0
Weighted average interest rate during year - 5.50% 3.98%

Our short-term credit facilities, including revolving credit lines, are summarized in the accompanying
short-term borrowing facilities tabte above. The method used to compute averages in the short-term
borrowing facilities table is based on a daily weighted average computation that takes into consideration
the time period such debt was outstanding, as well as the amount outstanding. Our financing, primarily
short-term debt, if utilized, would consist primarily of borrowings under our credit facilities, which is
described in more detail below.

Credit Facilities: At December 31, 2007, we had an aggregate of $625 million borrowing capacity
available under our existing credit facilities. These facilities consist of the following:

Amount of Facility Expiration Date
$300 million June 2009
$325 million May 2011

These credit facilities provide us a source of liquidity. As of December 31, 2007, there were no
outstanding borrowings under these credit facilities, nor were these facilities utilized during 2007. Interest
charges under these facilities are derived using a base LIBOR rate plus a margin which changes based
on our credit ratings. Our bank syndicated credit facilities have customary terms and covenants, and we
were in compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2007.

In June 2006, we replaced our existing $300 million five-year credit facility, which was to expire in June
2007, with a $325 million five-year credit agreement expiring May 2011. The new facility has a more
favorable fixed charge coverage ratio and provides for the exclusion of cash restructuring expenses from
the covenant calculation. We also amended the $300 million facility expiring in June 20089 to include the
similar covenants and terminated our $130 million 364-day revolving credit facility.
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NOTE 8 - CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

During the fourth quarter of 2005, we adopted FASB Interpretation (“FIN") No. 47, “Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” (“FIN 477}, which is an interpretation of SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” ("SFAS No. 143"). This interpretation clarified terminology
within SFAS No. 143 and requires an entity to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset
retirement obligation when incurred if the liability's fair value can be reasonably estimated. A conditional
asset retirement obligation is a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing
or method of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within the control of the
entity. We are often legally obligated to remove leasehold improvements and fixtures whenever we
vacate a leased premise, although the date or method of settlement may not be known. We recognized a
one-time after-tax, non-cash charge of $2.9 million, which is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of
Income for the year ended December 31, 2005, as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.
This charge represents the difference between the asset retirement obligation and capitalized asset
retirement costs recognized in our December 31, 2005, Consolidated Balance Sheet.

NOTE 9 - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

December 31,

{In millions}) 2007 2006
Payroll and bonuses $ 729 $ 99.5
Insurance 83.4 100.4
Sales and payroll taxes 51.0 443
Rent 416 38.5
Advertising 38.0 36.9
Gift card deferred revenue 232 225
Other 83.4 100.1
Total accrued expenses and other current

liabilities $ 3935 $ 4422

NOTE 10 - OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

December 31,

(In millions) 2007 2006
Deferred compensation $ 39.2 $ 435
Deferred revenue 6.9 16.0
FIN 48 tax reserve 58.1 -

Other 19.5 28.7
Total other non-current liabilities $ 1237 5 86.2

Deferred revenue resulted from funds we received from wireless vendors in conjunction with the acquisition
of the SAM'S CLUB kiosk business and it is being recognized ratably over the term of the agreement.
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NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES
Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2007 and 20086, were composed of the following:

December 31,

{In_millions) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
insurance reserves $ 210 $ 23.7
Deferred compensation 15.4 249
Inventory adjustments, net 9.3 11.8
Restructuring reserves 46 7.7
Deferred revenue 10.9 14.2
Accrued average rent 11.7 11.4
Depreciation and amortization 281 16.6
Indirect effect of unrecognized tax benefits 18.7 --
Other 30.5 36.8
Total deferred tax assets 150.2 147.1
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred taxes on foreign operations 4.3 25
Other 10.8 14.8
Total deferred tax liabilities 15.1 17.3
Net deferred tax assets $ 1351 $ 12908

Deferred tax assets and liabilities were inciuded in
the balance sheets as follows:

Other current assets $ 754 $ 935
Other non-current assets 59.7 36.3
Net deferred tax assets $ 1351 $ 1298

The components of the provision for income taxes and a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax rate to our
effective income tax rate are shown in the following two accompanying tables.

Provision for Income Taxes
Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Current:
Federal $ 993 $ 606 $ 96.4
State 13.0 7.2 22.9
Foreign 1.0 2.5 4.6
113.3 70.3 123.9
Deferred:
Federal 12.4 (29.6) (55.4)
State 4.1 (2.7) {16.9)
16.5 (32.3) {72.3)
Provision for income taxes $ 1298 $ 38.0 % 51.6
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Statutory vs. Effective Tax Rate

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Components of income from
continuing operations:

United States $ 3574 115.5 $ 3037

Foreign 9.2 4.1 17.8
Income before income taxes 366.6 1114 321.5
Statutory tax rate X 35.0% x 35.0% x 35.0%
Federal income tax expense at statutory rate 128.3 39.0 112.5
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 9.2 2.9 39
Unrecognized tax benefits {2.5) -- --
Contingency reserve release -- - (56.5)
Foreign repatriation benefit -- -- (8.9)
Other, net (5.2) (3.9) 0.6
Total income tax expense $§ 1298 $ 38.0 $ 5186
Effective tax rate 35.4% 34.1% 16.0%

We anticipate that we will generate sufficient pre-tax income in the future to realize the full benefit of U.S.
deferred tax assets related to future deductible amounts. Accordingly, a valuation allowance was not
required at December 31, 2007 or 2006.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN
48, we recognized a $7.2 million net decrease in unrecognized tax benefits with a corresponding increase
in retained earnings. The total effect at the time of adoption was a $19.8 million increase in our non-
current deferred tax assets, a $53.0 million decrease in income tax payable to reclassify unrecognized tax
benefits to non-current liabilities, a $65.6 million increase in our non-current liabilities representing the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits and accrued interest, and the previously mentioned $7.2 million
increase to retained earnings. As of January 1, 2007, after the implementation of FIN 48, our
unrecognized tax benefits, exclusive of accrued interest, were $49.0 million.

On June 30, 2007, the statute of limitations expired for the taxable years ended in 1998 through 2001,
resulting in the recognition of approximately $10.0 million in tax benefits, which consisted of $7.7 million
of previously unrecognized tax benefits and $4.0 million of accrued interest, net of $1.7 million of deferred
tax assets.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of the consolidated liability for gross unrecognized
income tax benefits (excluding interest) from January 1, 2007, to December 31, 2007, is as follows:

{in millions) 2007
Balance at beginning of year $ 490
Increases related to current period tax positions 3.9
Increases related to prior period tax positions 3.8
Settlements (1.7
Expiration of the statute cf limitations for the assessment of

taxes (9.4)
Balance at end of year $ 456

As of December 31, 2007, our liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $45.6 million. The amount, if
recognized, that would affect the effective tax rate is $32.8 million. Approximately $1.3 million of the
unrecognized tax benefit liabilities are expected to be paid within the next 12 months and are classified in
other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007. The remaining
amount of our unrecognized tax benefit liabilities are now classified in other non-current liabilities.
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We recognize accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as part of the tax
provision. As of the date of adoption at January 1, 2007, and at December 31, 2007, we had $16.6 miliion
and $14.8 million of accrued interest expense associated with uncertain tax positions, respectively.
Income tax expense for the period ended December 31, 2007, included interest of $4.2 million associated
with uncertain tax positions.

RadioShack Corporation and its U.S. subsidiaries join in the filing of a U.S. federal consolidated income
tax return. The U.S. federal statute of limitations is closed for all years prior to 2002. Foreign and U.S.
state jurisdictions have statutes of limitations generally ranging from 3 to 5 years. Our tax returns are
currently under examination in various federal, state and foreign jurisdictions. While one or more of these
examinations may be concluded within the next twelve months, we do not expect this to have a significant
impact on our results of operations or financial position. Our effective tax rate for future periods may be
affected by the settiement of tax controversies or by the expiration of the statute of limitations for periods
for which a liability has been established in accordance with FIN 48.

NOTE 12 —- FEDERAL EXCISE TAX

In May 2006, the IRS established refund procedures for federal telecommunications excise tax (“excise
tax”) paid by taxpayers in prior years. In December 2006, the IRS provided clarification regarding which
taxpayers were eligible to request refunds of excise taxes. For the year ended December 31, 2007, we
determined we were entitled to refunds of $14.0 million and $5.2 million for federal telecommunications
excise taxes recorded in the first and fourth quarters of 2007, respectively. We recorded $18.8 million of
the refunds as a reduction to cost of products sold and the remaining $0.4 million as a reduction in SG&A,
where they were originally recorded. In addition, we recorded $2.6 million in interest income. We claimed
$15.4 million of this refund and interest in the form of a tax credit on our 2006 federal income tax return
filed in September 2007. We filed a claim for the additional excise tax refund due us, which has been
approved by the IRS. The additional amount claimed plus interest will be received in the form of a refund
rather than as a credit against income taxes.

NOTE 13 - LITIGATION

A California State Court wage and hour class action, Brookler v. RadioShack Corporation, has been
certified with a class of approximately 23,000 members. The action involves allegations that RadioShack
violated California’s wage order and labor code relating to the providing of meal periods. The class was
certified in February of 2006. RadioShack moved to decertify the class in July 2007, based upon recent
case authority dealing with the standard of liability for meal and rest period actions. RadioShack's motion
to decertify was denied by the trial court, and RadioShack's petition for review to the California Supreme
Court was denied on January 3, 2008. However, because of the unsettied nature of the standard of
liability for meal period violations currently being litigated in California, it appears likely the California
Supreme Court will review and add clarity to the standard of liability applicable in these types of matters.
As a result, we cannot reasonably estimate the likelihood or magnitude of a loss that may arise from this
lawsuit.

Two securities law-based putative class actions, Damore v. RadioShack et al. and Hawana v.
RadioShack et al., brought against us and several of our current and former officers and directors, were
dismissed without prejudice on May 23, 2007, and May 22, 2007, respectively, from the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Fort Worth Division,

In 2007, we concluded a global settlement of various class action lawsuits alleging we misclassified
certain RadioShack store managers as exempt from overtime in violation of the Fair Labor Standards Act
or similar state laws, including a lawsuit styled Alphonse L. Perez, et al. v. RadioShack Corporation, filed
on October 31, 2002, in the United States District Court for the Northern District of lllinois. This global
settlement provided for a maximum payment by us of approximately $8.8 million, in the aggregate, to
resolve all of these pending lawsuits, for which we recorded a reserve in the second and third quarters of
2006. The respective courts have granted final approval of the settlement and dismissed the lawsuits.
Settlement payments were mailed to the class members in December of 2007. We anticipate that the
balance of the settlement proceeds will be paid in early 2008.
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We have various other pending claims, lawsuits, disputes with third parties, investigations and actions
incidental to the operation of our business. Although occasional adverse settlements or resolutions may
occur and negatively impact earnings in the period or year of settlement, it is our befief that their ultimate
resolution will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or liquidity.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Lease Commitments: V/e lease rather than own most of our facilities. Our lease agreements expire at
various dates through January 2026. Some of these leases are subject to renewal options and provide for
the payment of taxes, insurance and maintenance. Our retail locations comprise the largest portion of our
leased facilities. These Iccations are primarily in major shopping malls and shopping centers owned by other
companies. Some leases are based on a minimum rental plus a percentage of the store's sales in excess of
a stipulated base figure (contingent rent). Certain leases contain escalation clauses. We also lease
distribution centers and our corporate campus. Additionally, we lease automobiles and information systems
equipment.

Future minimum rent commitments at December 31, 2007, under non-cancelable operating leases (net of
immaterial amounts of sublease rent income), as well as the minimum lease payments required by the
campus lease over the initial 20-year lease term, are included in the following table.

Other
Campus Operating

{In millions) Lease Leases Total

2008 $ 145 $ 1815 $ 196.0
2009 14.6 156.1 170.7
2010 14.8 120.4 135.2
201 15.0 80.2 95.2
2012 15.2 43.3 58.5
2013 and thereafter 215.6 514 267.0
Total minimum lease payments $ 2897 $ 6329 $ 9226

Rent Expense:

Year Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2007 20086 2005

Minimum rents $ 2374 $ 2431 $ 2231
Occupancy cost 46.5 47.8 47.4
Contingent rents 24.2 249 25.5
Total rent expense $ 3078 $ 3158 $ 296.0

From time to time, we enter into store operating leases that provide for free or reduced rental periods,
usually during the finish-out of our retail locations before the store opens for business. These periods are
commonly referred to as “rent holidays” and average 60 days. Prior to January 2005, we did not
recognize straight-line rent expense during the pre-cpening rent hotiday period but rather began
recording rent expense from the day the stere opened. Beginning January 1, 2005, we began including
the rent holiday period in our straight-line rent calculation. This change did not have a material impact on
our results of operations or financial position.
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Contingent Liabilities: We have contingent liabilities related to retail leases of locations that were
assigned to other businesses. The majority of these contingent liabilities relates to various lease
obligations arising from leases assigned to CompUSA, Inc. (“CompUSA”) as part of the sale of our
Computer City, Inc. subsidiary to CompUSA in August 1998. In the event CompUSA or the other
assignees, as applicable, are unable to fulfill their obligations, the lessors of such locations may seek to
recover the unpaid rent from us.

On February 27, 2007, CompUSA announced a comprehensive realignment strategy to improve its financial
status. According to their press release, the realignment included a $440 million cash infusion, closure of
126 stores, major expense reductions and a corporate restructuring. A portion of the 126 store closures
represents locations where we may be liable for the rent payments on the underlying lease. During the third
and fourth quarters of 2007, we received notices from two lessors seeking payment from us as a result of
CompUSA being in default for non-payment of rent. CompUSA has also informed us that there are an
additional 17 leases on which CompUSA has ceased making rent payments. CompUSA reported on
December 7, 2007, that they were acquired by the Gordon Brothers Group. CompUSA stores ceased
operations in January 2008. DJM Realty, a division of Gordon Brothers Group, is currently in discussions
with its lessors in an effort to negotiate a satisfactory fulfilment of their legal obligation under these leases.

Based on all available information pertaining to the status of these leases, and after applying the
provisions set forth within SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,” and FIN 14, “Reasonable
Estimation of a Loss, An Interpretation of SFAS No. 5,” during the fourth quarter of 2007, we established
an accrual of $7.5 million, recorded in current liabilities. It is reasonably possible that a change in our
estimate of our probable liability could occur in the near term. We are continuing to monitor this situation
and will update as necessary as more information becomes available.

Purchase Obligations: We have purchase obligations of $334.3 million at December 31, 2007, which
include our product commitments, marketing agreements and freight commitments. Of this amount, $310.8
million relates to 2008.

NOTE 15 - CORPORATE AND FIELD HEADCOUNT REDUCTION

During the first quarter ended March 31, 2007, we recorded $8.5 million of pre-tax employee separation
charges in SG&A expense in connection with the reduction of approximately 280 of our corporate support
staff. We made cash payments during 2007 in the amount of $6.6 million, resulting in a reserve balance
for these separation charges of $1.9 million at December 31, 2007.

NOTE 16 — STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

We have implemented several plans to award employees stock-based compensation, which are described
below. Under the Incentive Stock Plans ("ISPs”) described below, the exercise price of options must be
equal to or greater than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of grant. The 1999
and 2001 1SPs each terminate after ten years; no option or award may be granted under the ISPs after the
ISP termination date. The Management Deveiopment and Compensation Committee (“MD&C") of our Board
of Directors specifies the terms for grants of options under these ISPs; terms of these options may not
exceed ten years. Grants of options generally vest over three years and grants typically have a term of
seven or ten years. However, during the third quarter of 2006, we granted 1.7 million options under these
ISPs to our chief executive officer and chief financial officer which vest over four years from the date of grant
with a term of seven years. Option agreements issued under the ISPs generally provide that, in the event of
a change in control, all options become immediately and fully exercisable. Repricing or exchanging options
for lower priced options is not permitted under the 1SPs without shareholder approval.

On July 8, 2006, we granted 2.5 million non-plan options to our chief executive officer as part of an
inducement grant related to the terms of his employment. These options vest over four years from the
date of grant with a term of seven years. A market condition is attached to 2.0 million of these non-plan
options that restricts exercise until certain stock price hurdles are achieved. The market condition was
met in 2007, and all stock price hurdles were achieved. This grant was in addition to the 1.5 million
options granted to the chief executive officer under the 1997, 1999 and 2001 ISPs.
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In 2004, the stockholders approved the RadioShack 2004 Deferred Stock Unit Plan for Non-Employee
Directors (“Deferred Plan"). The Deferred Plan replaced the one-time and annual stock option grants to non-
employee directors ("Directors”) as specified in the 1997, 1999 and 2001 ISPs. New Directors receive a
one-time grant of 5,000 ceferred stock units (“Units") on the date they attend their first Board meeting.
The Deferred Plan also specifies that each Director who has served one year or more as of June 1 of any
year will automatically be granted 3,500 Units on the first business day of June of each year in which he
or she serves as a Director. Under the Deferred Plan, one-third of the Units vest annually over three years
from the date of grant. Vesting may be accelerated under certain circumstances. At termination of service,
death, disability or change in control of RadioShack, Directors will receive shares of common stock equal
to the number of vested Units. Directors may receive these shares in a lump sum or they may defer
receipt of these shares in equal installments over a period of up to ten years. On February 22, 2007, the
board of directors amended the Deferred Stock Unit Plan to provide that, in lieu of the new director one-
time grant of 5,000 and the annual grant of 3,500 units, each non-employee director will receive a one-
time initial grant of units equal to the number of shares of RadioShack common stock with a fair market
value of $150,000 on the grant date, and an annual grant of units equal to the number of shares of
RadioShack common stock with a fair market value of $105,000 on the grant date. There were 127,203
Units outstanding and 843,334 Units available for grant at December 31, 2007.

We may also grant restricied stock to compensate certain of our employees under the 2007 Restricted
Stock Plan described belcw. As of December 31, 2007, 135,123 shares of restricted stock were outstanding.
Compensation expense related to restricted shares is recognized ratably over the requisite service period.
This expense totaled $0.9 million, $0.2 million and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 20085, respectively.

A brief description of each of our incentive stock pltans and new restricted stock plan follows:

1993 Incentive Stock Plan (“1993 ISP”): The 1993 ISP permitted the grant of up to 12.0 million
shares in the form of incentive stock options (*ISOs"), non-qualified stock options (options which are
not [SOs) ("NQs™) and restricted stock. The 1993 ISP expired March 28, 2003, and no further grants
may be made under this plan.

1994 Stock Incentive Plan (“1994 SIP”): As part of our purchase of RadioShack Installation
Services (“AmeriLink") in 1999, we assumed the existing AmeriLink 1994 Stock Incentive Plan and
certain related agreements and agreed to convert AmeriLink’s stock options to stock options to
purchase our stock, subject to an agreed upon exchange ratio and conversion price. Thus, the
AmeriLtink 1994 SIP was assumed and adopted by us in 1999. All options in the 1994 SIP were fully
vested on the date of transition and management determined that no further grants would be made
under this plan. There were also certain restricted stock agreements that were assumed by us at the
time of acquisition. On September 10, 2003, we sold AmeriLink. The 1984 SIP expired on December
31, 2004, and no further grants may be made under this plan.

1997 Incentive Stock Plan (“1997 ISP”): The 1997 ISP permits the grant of up to 11.0 million shares
in the form of ISOs, NQs and restricted stock. The 1997 ISP provides that the maximum number of
shares of our common stock that an eligible employee may receive in any calendar year with respect
to options may not exceed 1.0 million shares. The 1997 ISP expired on February 27, 2007, and no
further grants may be made under this plan.

1999 Incentive Stock Plan (“1999 I1SP”): The 1999 ISP permits the grant of up to 9.5 million shares
in the form of NQs. Grants of restricted stock, performance awards and options intended to qualify as
ISO’s under the Internal Revenue Code are not authorized under the 1999 ISP. The 1999 ISP
provides that the maximum number of shares of our common stock that an eligible employee may
receive in any calendar year with respect to options may not exceed 1.0 million shares. There were
2,372,852 shares available on December 31, 2007, for grants under the 1989 ISP.

2001 Incentive Stock Plan (2001 ISP”): The 2001 ISP permits the grant of up to 9.2 million shares
in the form of ISOs and NQs. The 2001 ISP provides that the maximum number of shares of our
common stock that ar eligible employee may receive in any calendar year with respect to options
may not exceed 0.5 million shares. There were 4,890,810 shares available on December 31, 2007,
for grants under the 2001 ISP.
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2007 Restricted Stock Plan (“2007 RSP”): The 2007 RSP permits the grant of up to 0.5 million
shares of restricted stock to selected officers of the company, as determined by the MD&C. The 2007
RSP has a five-year term and will expire on May 31, 2012. There were 472,000 shares of restricted
stock available on December 31, 2007, for grants under the 2007 RSP.

Stock Option Activity: See tables below for a summary of stock option transactions under our stock option
plans and information about fixed price stock options.

Summary of Stock Option Transactions

(Share amounts in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
QOutstanding at beginning of year 21404 $ 2938 20411 § 33.82 20,903 §$ 33.79
Grants 601 22.34 5611 15.33 1,568 28.56
Exercised (3,462) 23.08 (158) 11.60 (843) 20.80
Forfeited (3,141) 35.32 (4,460) 32.62 (1,217) 35.57
Qutstanding at end of year 15,402 $ 29.31 21,404 $ 29.38 20411 & 3382
Exercisable at end of year 11,394 § 34.00 15,881 $ 3384 17,430 $ 3479

Fixed Price Stock Options

{Share amounts

in thousands) QOptions Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Shares Remaining Weighted Shares Weighted
Range of QOutstanding Contractual Life Average Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices  at Dec. 31, 2007 (in years) Exercise Price at Dec. 31, 2007  Exercise Price
$ 1382-13.82 4,000 5.51 $ 1382 1,100 $ 13.82
17.07 - 27.45 2,132 4.31 21.25 1,161 21.78
27.50 - 30.03 2,933 1,70 28.97 2,796 28.95
30.99 - 38.35 3,314 3.18 37.19 3,314 37.19
39.03-60.16 3,023 2.01 47.20 3,023 47.20
$ 13.82-60.16 15,402 3.43 $ 2931 11,394 $ 34.00

NOTE 17 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (‘EDCP”) and the Executive Deferred Stock Plan ("EDSFP”)
became effective on April 1, 1998. These plans permit employees who are corporate or division officers
to defer up to 80% of their base salary and/or bonuses. Certain executive officers may defer up to 100%
of their base salary and/or bonuses. In addition, officers are permitted to defer under the EDSP delivery
of any restricted stock or stock acquired under an NQ exercise that would otherwise vest. Cash deferrals
under the EDCP may be made in mutual funds. We match 12% of salary and bonus deferrals in the form
of our common stock under the EDCP and EDSP. Under the EDSP, participants receive only our
common stock. Under the EDSP, we match an additional 25% of salary and bonus deferrals if the
deferral period exceeds five years and the deferrals are invested in our common stock.

We contributed $0.6 million and $0.7 million in total to the combined EDCP and EDSP for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These expenses were included in SG&A. Employee deferrals
and employer contributions to the EDCP and EDSP were discontinued effective January 1, 2007, and any
unvested matching company contributions remaining as of December 31, 2006, were immediately vested.
All account batances, including matching company contributions, under these plans were distributed in the
first quarter of 2007. Accruals related to these ptans were recorded as a current liability in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets, totaling $27.8 million at December 31, 2006, and were efiminated upon distribution during
the first half of 2007,
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NOTE 18 - TERMINATION PROTECTION PLANS

On May 18, 2006, our Beard of Directors approved amendments to RadioShack’s Termination Protection
Plan {Level |} (the “Leve! | Plan"). The Level | Plan applies to our officers (other than officers that are
parties to a Termination Protection Agreement with RadioShack). The amendments to the Level | Plan
include a modification that requires us to pay a comparable benefit amount equal te a specified
percentage of a participant’s base salary rather than requiring us to provide certain named employee
benefits for one year. The Board of Directors also approved the adoption of an Officers’ Severance
Program, a uniform severance program to apply to officers in the event of non-cause terminations.

Qur Board of Directors also approved the termination of the Termination Protection Pian {Level Il) (the
“Level Il Plan”). The Level Il Plan provided for defined termination benefits to be paid to certain of our
eligible, non-officer employees who have been terminated, without cause, in connection with a change in
control of RadioShack. In lieu of the Level Il Plan, the Board of Directors approved a severance program
for eligible, non-officer employees who are terminated under certain circumstances.

There have been no payments under the Level | Plan or Level il Plan for the years shown.

NOTE 19 - RADIOSHACIK INVESTMENT PLAN

On April 30, 2004, we amended our employee stock purchase plan and renamed it the RadioShack
Investment Plan (the “Invastment Plan”). Only employees participating in the former plan as of April 29,
2004, couid participate in the Investment Plan. New employees were not eligible to participate in the
Investment Plan. Effective June 30, 2008, the Investment Plan was suspended and distributions of all
shares held by the Investment Plan took place in August 2006. As of December 31, 2007, the Investment
Plan did not hold any assats nor have any employee participants. Our contributions to the Investment Plan
amounted to $5.6 million zand $10.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

NOTE 20 - RADIOSHACK 401(k) PLAN

The RadioShack 401{k} Plan {"401{(k) Plan"), a defined contribution plan, was amended on July 1, 2006,
and, as amended, allows a paricipant to defer, via payroll deductions, from 1% to 75% of their annual
compensation, limited to certain annual maximums set by the Internal Revenue Code. The amended 401(k)
Plan also presently provides that our contribution to each participant's account maintained under the
401(k) Plan be an amount equal to 100% of the participant's contributions up to 4% of their annual
compensation. This percentage contribution made by us is discretionary and may change in the future.
Qur contributions go directly to the 401(k) Plan and are made in cash and invested in an age appropriate
retirement fund for each participant; however, participants may immediately reinvest our contribution into
other investment alternatives provided by the 401(k) Plan.

{In_millions) 2007 2006 2005
401(k) company
contribution $ 80 $ 63 % 47

NOTE 21 - STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

On February 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program with no expiration
date authorizing managernent to repurchase up to $250 million in open market purchases. On August 5,
2005, we suspended purchases under the $250 million share repurchase program during the period in
which a financial institution purchased shares pursuant to an overnight share repurchase program.
During March 2007, manzagement resumed share repurchases under the $250 million program; however,
no shares were repurchased during the second and fourth quarters of 2007. For the twelve months
ended December 31, 2007, we repurchased 8.7 million shares or $208.5 million of our common stock. As
of December 31, 2007, there was $1.4 million available for share repurchases under the $250 million
share repurchase progranm.
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NOTE 22 - PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS

In July 1999, we amended and restated a stockholder rights plan which declared a dividend of one right
for each outstanding share of cur common stock. The rights plan, as amended and restated, was
scheduled to expire on July 26, 2009; however, as discussed below, the rights plan was amended to
terminate the plan effective January 31, 2006. The rights were represented by our common stock
certificates. If the rights became exercisable, they would have entitled each holder to purchase
1/10,000th of a share of our Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock for an exercise price of $250
(subject to adjustment). The rights would have become exercisable and traded separately from the
common stock only upon the date of public announcement that a person, entity or group ("Person”) had
acquired 15% or more of our outstanding common stock without the consent or approval of the
disinterested directors ("Acquiring Person") or ten days after the commencement or public announcement
of a tender or exchange offer which would have resulted in any Person becoming an Acquiring Person. In
the event that any Person became an Acquiring Person, the rights would have been exercisable for 60
days thereafter for our common stock with a market value (as determined under the rights plan) equal to
twice the exercise price. In the event that, after any Person became an Acquiring Person, we engaged in
certain mergers, consolidations, or sales of assets representing 50% or more of our assets or earning
power with an Acquiring Person {or Persons acting on behalf of or in concert with an Acquiring Person) or
in which all holders of common stock are not treated alike, the rights would have been exercisable for
common stock of the acquiring or surviving company with a market value (as determined under the rights
plan) equal to twice the exercise price. The rights would nct have been exercisable by any Acquiring
Person. The rights were redeemable at a price of $0.01 per right prior to any Person becoming an
Acquiring Person or, under certain circumstances, after a Person became an Acquiring Person.

On January 13, 2006, the rights plan was amended to provide that the plan would terminate effective
January 31, 2006. As a result of this amendment, the rights are no longer outstanding and were not
exercisable after January 31, 2006.

NOTE 23 - SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN

Prior to January 1, 2006, certain officers of the Company were participants in RadicShack's Salary
Caontinuation Plan ("SCP") or its Deferred Compensation Plan ("DCP” and, together with the SCP, the
“Plans”), which provided a defined benefit to be paid out over a ten-year period upon retirement between
the ages of 55 and 70. Participation in the Plans and the benefit payments were based solely on the
MD&C’s discretion and approval, and the benefit payments did not bear any relationship to a participant's
present compensation, final compensation or years of service, We accrued benefit payments earned
based on the provisions set forth by the MD&C for each individual person. Based on the method by which
the Plans were administered and because there was not a specific plan governing the benefit payment
calculation, the accounting and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions,” were not previously required.

The Company adepted an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (*“SERP") effective January
1, 2008, for selected officers of the Company. Upon retirement at age 55 years or older, participants in
the SERP are eligible to receive, for ten years, an annual amount equal {o a percentage of the average of
their five highest consecutive years of compensation (base salary and bonus), to be paid in 120 monthly
instaliments. The amount of the percentage increases by 2 2% for each year of participation in the
SERP, up to a maximum of 50%.

To be a participant in the SERP, officers who were participants in the SCP or DCP had to withdraw from
the applicable plan and would then only receive benefits under the SERP. These benefits are calculated
under the SERP using a formula that calculates the benefit under each plan (SERP, SCF or DCP) and
pays the participant the highest dollar benefit.

If a SERP participant terminates employment due to retirement or disability between the ages of 55 and
70, the participant is entitled to their normal vested SERP benefit, paid in 120 equal monthly payments.
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Based on the effective date of the SERP of January 1, 2008, fiscal year 2006 was the initial year in which
an actuarial valuation was performed. The projected benefit abligation at the beginning of 2006
represents the actuarial valuation that was performed as of January 1, 2006, based on the information
and assumptions developed at that time. Participants in the SERP as of January 1, 2006, were given
credit for prior service as an officer. Therefore, this service credit generated prior service costs that are
not required to be immediately recognized, but that are amortized for purposes of the net periodic benefit
cost calculation over the estimated average remaining service period for active employee participants.

We use the last day of the calendar year as the measurement date for determining SERP obligations and
conduct an actuarial valuztion at that date. The following table sets forth the SERP’s change in projected
benefit obligation for the plan for 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006
Projected benefit obligation at beginningofyear % 344 $ 388
Service cost 0.7 1.3
Interest cost 1.9 2.0
Actuarial gain 0.5 0.9
Benefits paid (5.3) {4.5)
Curtaitments (1.5) {2.3)
Projected benefit abligation at end of year $ 307 § 344

As a result of corporate and field cost reductions, several officers were terminated during 2007 and in the
latter part of 2006, resulting in curtailments of $1.5 million and $2.3 million, respectively.

The long-term portion of the accrued benefit cost of $25.6 million at December 31, 2007, and $29.4
million at the end of 2006 are included in other non-current liabilities. The short-term portions of $5.1
milfion and $5.0 million are included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities for the same
respective periods.

The projected benefit obligation (“PBO") and accumulated benefit obligation for the plan at December 31,
2007, were $30.7 million and $29.8 million, respectively, compared to $34.4 million and $33.5 million at
the end of 2006.

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

{In_millions} 2007 2006
Service cost $ 07 § 13
Interest cost 1.9 2.0
Net prior service cost amortization 0.2 0.3
Charge due to curtailment {0.7) 0.2
Net periodic benefit cost $ 21 § 38

The PBO is determined using assumptions at the end of the calendar year. The following table presents
the key assumptions used in the measurement of the benefit obligation:

2007 2006
Discount rate 57% 5.9%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 3.5%

The net periodic benefit cost is determined using assumptions at the beginning of the calendar year. The
following table presents the key assumptions used in the measurement of net periodic benefit cost:

2007 2006
Discount rate 5.9% 5.5%
Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 3.5%
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We base our discount rate on the rates of return available on high-quality bonds with maturities
approximating the expected period over which the pension benefits will be paid. The rate of
compensation increase is based on historical and expected increases.

As the SERP is an unfunded plan, benefit payments are made from the general assets of RadioShack.
The expected benefit payments of the SERP for the next ten years are as follows:

{In millicns)

2008 $ 53
2009 5.2
2010 4.8
2011 4.0
2012 34
2013 through 2016 11.6

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)"
(“SFAS No. 158"), which requires employers to recognize a net liability or asset and an offsetting
adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive loss to report the funded status of defined benefit
pension and other postretirement plans. SFAS No. 158 was effective December 31, 2006.

The following schedules present the changes in the components of the net prior service cost that

compose the accumulated other comprehensive {oss for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
which offset the additional liability required to reflect the funded status of the defined benefit pension plan.

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Before-Tax Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
{In_millions} Amounts or Benefit Amount
Net prior service cost at beginning of year $ (1.8) $ 06 $ (1.0)
Amortization of prior service cost included in
Periodic pension cost 0.2 (0.1} 0.1
Effects of curtailment 0.3 {0.1) 0.2
Net prior service cost at end of year $ (1.1) $ 04 $ (0.7)
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Before-Tax Tax (Expense) Net-of-Tax
(In millions}) Amounts or Benefit Amount
Net prior service cost at beginning of year $ (2.6) $ 10 $ (1.8)
Amortization of prior service cost included in
Periodic pension cost 0.3 (0.1 0.2
Effects of curtailment 07 (0.3) 04
Net prior service cost at end of year $ (1.6) $ 06 $ (1.0)

The net tax benefits at December 31, 2007 and 20086, of $0.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively, are
reflected as a deferred tax asset included in other assets, net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The amount of accumulated other comprehensive loss consisting of net prior service cost that is expected
to be recognized as net periodic benefit cost in 2008 is $0.1 million.

NOTE 24 - DIVIDENDS DECLARED

We declared dividends of $0.25 for each of the years 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which were paid
annually in December.
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NOTE 25 - PRODUCT SALES INFORMATION
Our consolidated net sales and operating revenues are summarized by groups of similar products and
services, as follows:

Consolidated Net Sales and Operating Revenues
Year Ended December 31,

{In millions) 2007 2006 2005
Wireless 514164 33.3% $1,654.8 34.6% $1.746.0 34.4%
Accessory 1,029.7 24.2 1,087.6 228 1,040.1 20.5
Personal electronics 650.7 15.3 751.8 15.7 7467 14.7
Modern home 556.1 13.1 611.9 12.8 6726 13.2
Power 251.3 5.9 271.4 57 302.3 5.9
Technical 184.4 4.3 198.4 4.2 205.2 4.0
Service 100.5 2.4 106.3 2.2 262.5 52
Service centers and other

sales 62.6 1.5 953 2.0 106.3 2.1
Consolidated net sales and

operating revenues $ 42517 100.0% $4777.5 100.0% $5081.7 100.0%

NOTE 26 - RESTRUCTURING PROGRAM

On February 17, 2006, as a result of unfavorable profitability experienced within our RadioShack
company-operated stores during 2005, we announced the commencement of a restructuring program.
The restructuring program was developed to identify opportunities to rationalize our cost structure and
increase average unit volume and profitable square footage in our RadioShack company-operated
stores, The griginal terms of the restructuring program consisted of the closing of 400-700 company-
operated stores, consolidating certain of our distribution centers, streamlining ocur cverhead infrastructure,
and updating our merchandise inventory.

The actual charges for initiatives under the restructuring program were recorded in the period in which we
committed to formalized re:structuring plans or executed the specific actions contemplated by the program
and all criteria for restructuring charge recognition under the applicable accounting guidance had been
met. Charges incurred as oart of the restructuring program are recorded in cost of products sold; selling,
general and administrative expense; and depreciation and amortization with the exception of the asset
impairment charges, which are disclosed in a separate caption within our Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Store Closures: As of December 31, 2006, we had closed 481 stores as a result of our restructuring
program. Qur decision to close these stores was made on a store-by-store basis, and there was no
geographic concentration of closings for these stores. For these closed stores, we recognized a charge in
2006 of $9.1 million to SG&A for future lease obligations and negotiated buy-outs with landlords. A lease
obligation reserve is not recognized until a store has been closed or when a buy-out agreement has been
reached with the landlord. Regarding the 481 stores we closed as a resuit of the restructuring program
during the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded an impairment charge of $9.2 million related to
the long-lived assets associated with certain of these stores. It was determined that the net book value of
several of the stores' long-lived assets was not recoverable based on the remaining estimated future
cash flows related to these specific stores. We also recognized $2.1 million in accelerated depreciation
associated with closed store assets for which the useful lives had been changed due to the store
closures.

In connection with these store closures, we identified 601 retail employees whose positions were
terminated by December 31, 2006. These employees were paid severance, and some earned retention
bonuses if they remained employed until certain agreed-upon dates. The development of a reserve for
these costs began on the date that the terms of severance benefits were established and communicated
to the employees, and the reserve was recognized over the minimum retention period. As of December
31, 2006, $3.8 million had been recognized in SG&A as retention and severance benefits for store
employees, with $3.6 millicn in benefits paid to date. Additionally, as part of our store closure activities,
we incurred and recognized in SG&A $6.1 million in expenses in 2006 primarily in connection with fees
paid to outside liquidators and for close-out promotional activities for the 481 stores.
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All stores identified for closure under the restructuring program were closed as of July 31, 2006.
Additionally, we continue to negotiate buy-out agreements with our landlords; however, remaining lease
obligations of $2.2 million still existed at December 31, 2007. There is uncertainty as to when, and at
what cost, we will fully setile all remaining lease obligations.

Distribution Center Consolidations: We closed a distribution center located in Southaven, Mississippi,
and sold a distribution center in Charleston, South Carclina, in 2006. During the year ended December
31, 2006, we recognized a lease obligation charge in SG&A in the amount of $2.0 million on the lease of
the Southaven distribution center and a gain of $2.7 million on the sale of the Charleston distribution
center. We also incurred a $0.5 million charge related to severance for approximately 100 employees.
Additionally, there were $0.4 million in other expenses.

Service Center Qperations: We closed or sold five service center locations during the year ended
December 31, 2006, resulting in the elimination of approximately 350 positions. We recognized charges
to SG&A of $1.2 million and $0.9 million related to lease obligations and severance, respectively. This
severance obligation was paid as of December 31, 2006. Additionally, there were $0.1 million in other
expenses.

Overhead Cost Reductions: Management conducted a review of our cost structure to identify potential
sources of cost reductions. In connection with this review, we made decisions to lower these costs,
including reducing our advertising spend rate in connection with adjustments to our media mix. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, we reduced our workforce by approximately 514 positions, primarily
within our corporate headquarters. We recorded charges to SG&A for termination benefits and related
costs of $11.9 million, of which $6.4 million had been paid as of December 31, 2006. During 2007,
severance payments totaling $5.0 million were paid, leaving an accrued severance balance of $0.7
million as of December 31, 2007.

Inventory Update: We have been replacing underperforming merchandise with new, faster-moving
merchandise. We recorded a pre-tax charge to cost of products sold of approximately $62 million during
the fourth quarter of 2005, as a result of both our normal inventory review process and the inventory
update aspect of our restructuring program.

The following table summarizes the activity related to the 2006 restructuring program from February 17,
2006, through December 31, 2007:

Asset Accelerated
(tn millions) Severance Leases Impairments Depreciation Other Total
Total charges for 2006 $ 16.1 $ 123 $ 92 $§ 21 $ 49 $ 446
Total spending for 2006,
net of amounts realized

from sale of fixed assets (10.4) (8.5) - - (4.8) (23.5)
Total non-cash items - 0.9 (9.2) (2.1) (0.2) (10.8)
Accrual at December 31,

2006 5.7 4.7 -- - 0.1 10.5
Total spending for 2007 (5.0) (3.9) - - (0.1) (9.0)
Additions for 2007 1.4 -- -- - 1.4
Accrual at December 31,

2007 $ 07 $ 22 s - - 5 - $ 29

See the allocation of our restructuring charges within our segments in Note 28 — “Segment Reporting.”
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NOTE 27 - QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)
As our operations are precominantly retail oriented, our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations, with the
fourth quarter generally being the most significant in terms of sales and profits because of the winter holiday

selling season.

Three Months Ended

(In millions, except per share amounts) March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Year ended December 31, 2007:
Net sales and operating revenues 5 992.3 $ 9348 $ 9603 $1,364.3
Cost of products sold " 4970 @ 483.2 492.6 7531 @
Gross profit 495.3 451.6 467.7 611.2
SG&A expense 3936 © 3508 ©@ 3639 © 4212 ©
Depreciation and amortization m 26.5 26.4 256 24.2
Impairment of long-lived assets and other

charges 0.6 0.5 1.0 0.6

Total operating expenses 420.7 386.7 390.5 446.0

Operating income 74.6 64.9 77.2 165.2
Interest income 65 @ 6.0 53 48 @
Interest expense {10.6) (10.7) (9.7) (7.8)
Cther (loss) income (1.0$) (0.1} 2.4 (0.4)
Income before taxes 69.5 60.1 75.2 161.8
Provision for income taxes 27.0 1314 @ 28.9 60.8
Net income 3 42.5 $ 470 $ 463 $ 101.0

Net income per share:

Basic $ 0.31 $ 034 $ 034 $ 077
Diluted $ 0.31 $ 034 $ 0.34 5 077
Shares used in computing income per
share:
Basic 136.2 136.7 134.5 131.2
Diluted 1371 139.0 135.9 131.8

)

{2

)]

@}

Amounts have been revised. Refer to Note 2 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” under the section
titled “Revision of Expense Classification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete
discussion.

In the first and the fourth quarters of 2007, we recorded refunds of excise tax as a reduction to cost of products sold,
where the excise taxes were originally recorded as $14.0 million and $4.8 million, respectively. Additionally, we
recorded $1.4 million and $1.2 million in interest income related to these refunds in the first and fourth quarters,
respectively.

During 2007, vacation accrual adjustments in connection with the modification of our employee vacation policy
included in SG&A expense totaled $2.0 million, $3.2 million, $5.9 million and $3.2 million for the first, second,
third and fourth quarters, respectively.

In the second quarter of 2007, the effective tax rate was impacted by the net reversal in June 2007 of
approximately $10.0 million in unrecognized tax benefits, deferred tax assets and accrued interest.
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Three Months Ended

(In millions, except per share amounts) March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31

Year ended December 31, 2006:

Net sales and operating revenues $ 11600 $ 1,099.9 $ 1,059.5 $ 1,458.1
Cost of products sald 629.4 604 .2 597 1 817.4
Gross profit 530.6 495.7 462.4 640.7
SG&A expense 468.3 4626 @O 4188 @ 461.0
Depreciation and amortization 29.4 308 @ 202 @ 28.1
Impairment of long-lived assets and other
charges g9 @ 03 @ 293 @ 5.8
Total operating expenses 506.6 493.7 477.3 494.9
Operating income (loss) 24.0 2.0 (14.9) 145.8
Interest income 08 0.6 2.5 35
Interest expense {10.6) (11.5) (11.2) (11.0)
Other loss (0.8) (1.2) {2.5) {4.3)
Income (loss) before taxes 13.6 (10.1) (26.1) 134.0
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes 5.2 {6.9) (9.8) 49.5
Net income (loss) $ 8.4 $ (3.9 $ (16.3) $ 845

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic 3 0.06 $ (0.02) $ (0.12) $ 062
Diluted $ 0.06 $ (0.02) $ (0.12) $ 062
Shares used in computing income (loss)
per share:
Basic 135.8 136.2 136.5 136.5
Diluted 135.8 136.2 136.5 136.5

o

)

3

)

5

Amounts have been revised. Refer to Note 2 - “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”™ under the section
titled “Revision of Expense Classification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a complete
discussion.

During 2008, costs related to the restructuring program included in SG&A expense totated $14.1 million, $17.4
million and $1.8 million for the second, third and fourth quarters, respectively. Acceterated depreciation for the
same periods was $1.2 million, $0.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively. In addition, impairment charges totaled
$8.9 million in the first quarter and $0.3 million in the second quarter. The total of all these costs for 2006 was
$44.6 million.

In the second and third quarters of 2008, $8.5 million and $0.3 million, respectively, were recognized for the
tentative settlement of certain wage-hour lawsuits. These amounts were included in SG&A expense.

In the third quarter of 2006, impairment charges related to our kiosk operations were recorded for goodwill and
intangible assets in the amount of $18.6 million and $10.7 million, respectively.

Impairment charges for goodwill of $1.2 million and $4.6 million for other long-lived assets were recorded during
the fourth quarter of 2006.

The sum of the quarterly income (loss) per share amounts may not total to each full year amount because
these computations are made independently for each quarter and for the full year and take into account the
weighted average number of common stock equivalent shares outstanding for each period, including the
effect of dilutive securities for that period.
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We have concluded that the effect of the revision discussed in Note 2 — “Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies™ under the section lithad “Revision of Expense Classification” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
did not materially impact any previously issued financial statements, however we have revised prior quarterly
periods comparative information presented herein in order to present such information on a consistent basis.

The effects of this revision are summarized in the table beiow.

In_milligns

Net sales and operating revenues
Cost of products sold
Gross profit

QOperating expenses:
Selling, general and adminisirative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of long-lived assets
and other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Net sales and operating revenues
Cost of products sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amorization
Impairment of long-lived assets
and other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Net sales and operating revenues
Cost of products sold
Gross profit

Qperating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment of long-lived assets
and other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Net sales and operating revenues
Cost of products sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation and amertization
Impairment of long-lived assels
and other charges
Total operating expenses
Operating income

As Previously

As Previously
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Reported Revision As Adjusted Reported Revision As Adjusted
Three Months Ended March 31,
2007 2006
5 9923 - $ 992.3 $ 1,160.0 § - $ 11600
475.9 211 497.0 599.4 30.0 629.4
516.4 (21.1) 495.3 560.6 {30.0) 530.6
412.0 (18.4) 393.6 495.7 (27.4) 468.3
282 2.7 26.5 320 (2.8) 254
0.6 - 0.6 8.9 - 8.9
441.8 {21.1} 420.7 536.6 {30.0) 506.6
$ 74.6 - $ 74.6 3 24.0 5 — $ 240
Three Months Ended June 30,
2007 2006
$ 934.8 - $ 934.8 $ 1,099.9 3 - $ 1,099.9
462.3 20.9 483.2 580.4 23.8 604.2
4725 (20.9) 451.6 519.5 (23.8) 485.7
378.0 (18.2) 359.8 483.6 (21.0) 462.6
29.1 (2.7 26.4 336 (2.8) 30.8
05 - 05 0.3 — 0.3
4076 {20.8) 386.7 517.5 (23.8) 493.7
$ 64.9 -- $ 64.9 $ 2.0 $ - $ 2.0
Three Months Ended September 30,
2007 2006
3 960.3 - 3 960.3 $ 10595 5 - $ 10595
4701 22.5 492.6 571.6 25.5 597.1
450.2 (22.5) 467.7 487.9 (25.5) 462.4
384.2 {20.3) 363.9 4416 (22.8) 418.8
27.8 {2.2) 25.8 319 (2.7 29.2
1.0 -- 1.0 29.3 - 29.3
413.0 {22.5) 390.5 502.8 {25.5) 477.3
$ 77.2 — $ 77.2 3 {14.9) $ -~ $ (14.9)
Three Months Ended December 31,
2006
$ 14581 $ - $ 14581
793.0 244 8174
665.1 {24.4) 640.7
482.8 (21.8) 461.0
30.7 {2.6) 28.1
5.8 - 5.8
519.3 (24.4) 494.9
$ 145.8 3 -~ 3 145.8




NOTE 28 - SEGMENT REPORTING

We have two reportable segments, RadioShack company-operated stores (excluding Canadian
company-operated stores) and kiosks. RadioShack consists solely of our 4,447 company-operated retail
stores, all operating under the RadioShack brand name. Kiosks consist of our network of 739 kiosks,
primarily located in major shopping malls and SAM'S CLUB locations. Both of our reportable segments
engage in the sale of consumer electronics products; however, our kiosks primarily offer wireless
products and associated accessories. These reportable segments are managed separately due to our
kiosks' narrow product offerings and performance relative to size.

We evaluate the performance of each reportable segment based on operating income, which is defined
as sales less cost of products sold and certain direct operating expenses, including labor and occupancy
costs. Asset balances by reportable segment have not been included in the segment table below, as
these are managed on a company-wide level and are not allocated to each segment for management
reporting purposes.

The table below shows our 2006 restructuring program costs and impairments allocated by reportable

segments.
RadioShack
Company-
{In millions) Owned Stores Kiosks Other Unallocated Total
Restructuring program:
Impairment of property, plant &
equipment $ 9.2 $ - $ - 8 - $ 92
Severance 38 - 0.9 11.4 16.1
Lease costs 9.1 - 1.2 20 12.3
Gain on distribution center sale - - - (2.7) (2.7)
Other 6.1 - 0.1 1.4 7.6
Accelerated depreciation 2.1 - - - 2.1
30.3 - 2.2 12.1 446
Impairments:
Goodwill - 18.6 1.2 - 19.8
Intangibles - 10.7 - - 10.7
Property, plant & equipment 1.0 1.8 1.8 - 4.6
1.0 3141 3.0 - 3541
$§ 313 $ 311 $ 52 $ 12.1 $ 797

The costs in the restructuring table above are included in the 2006 segment table below.
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Amounts in the other category below include our business activities that are not separately reportable and
our dealer network, e-commerce, third-party service centers, manufacturing, foreign operations and
commercial sales.

m

]

(3

(4

8

(6}

{In millions} Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 " 2005
Net sales and operating revenues:
RadioShack company-operated stores 3,637.7 $ 40798 $ 44808
Kiosks 97.0 3405 262.7
Other 317.0 357.2 338.2
4,251.7 $ 47775 $ 50817
Operating income:
RadioShack company-operated stores 752.7 $ 7074 $ 8807
Kiosks @ 15.8 (25.1) (12.4)
Other 52.8 (0.1) 34.2
821.3 682.2 902.5
Unallocated © (439.4) (525.3) (552.6)
Operating income 3819 156.9 349.9
Interest income 22.6 7.4 5.9
Interest expense (38.8) (44.3) (44.5)
Other income 0.9 (8.6) 10.2
Income before income 1axes 366.6 § 111.4 5 3215
Depreciation and amertization:
RadioShack company-operated stores 53.4 $ 58.2 $ 52.1
Kiosks 6.3 10.2 9.0
Other 1.7 2.3 2.3
61.4 70.7 63.4
Unallocated © 51.3 57.5 60.4
112.7 $ 128.2 3 123.8

Amounts have been retrospectively adjusted to conform to current year presentations. Certain prior year inter-
company amounts have been reallocated among the segments and other business activities and unallocated
category.

Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2007, includes $1.5 million in long-lived asset impairment
charges, an $18.8 million federal excise tax refund, and an accrued vacaticn reduction of $11.0 million in
connection with the modiification of our employee vacation policy.

Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2007, includes $1.0 million in long-lived asset impairment
charges and an accruec vacation reduction of $1.1 million in connection with the modification of our employee
vacation policy.

Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2007, includes $0.2 million in long-lived asset impairment
charges and an accruec vacation reduction of $1.3 million in connection with the modification of our employee
vacation policy.

The unallocated category included in operating income relates to our overhead and corporate expenses that are
not allocated to the separate reportable segments for management reporting purposes. Unallocated costs
include corporate deparimental expenses such as labor and benefits, as well as advertising, insurance,
distribution and information technology costs.

Depreciation and amortization included in the unallocated category primarily relate to our corporate headquarters
and information technoclogy assets.
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Company Information
RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

COMMON STOCK INFORMATION
Trading Price Range and Dividends

Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
{Per share) 2007 2600 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
High $27.88 | $22.90 $35.00 | $18.83 $34.98 | $19.7M $23.42 | 32040
Low 16.69 18.74 26.66 14.00 20.09 13.76 16.72 16.49
Close 27.03| 19.23 33.14 | 14.00 2066 19.30 16.86| 16.78

Dividends declared

Scockholders and nominees of record

- - 0.25 0.25

19,554 | 22,613

The common stock prices are based on the reporeed high, low and closing sale prices reported in the composite transactions quiations of
consoliduated tracking for itsues on the New York Stock Exchange.

TOTAL RETURN TO STOCKHOLDERS

‘The graph at left compares the cumulacive roral stockholder recurn on
common stock against the cumulative total retutn on che S&P Corporate
500 Stock Index and the S&P Specialty Retail Index (assuming $100
was invested on December 31, 2002, in common stock and in the stocks
comprising the S&P Cotporate 500 Stock Index and the S&P Specialty

Retail Index and also assuming the reinvestment of all dividends). The
S&P Specialey Retail Index and the S&P Corporare 500 Stock Index

include RadioShack.

The historical stock performance of common stock shown on the
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100.00 165.08 178.28
100.00 128.67 142.65
100.00 145,78 183.97
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115.28
149.65
166.66

1 graph is not necessarily indicative of fucure price performance.

Der-00 Dec-07

93.29 95.01
173.26 182.78
179.84 143,36

CORPORATE OFFICES
300 RadioShack Circle
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
(B17)415-3700

ANNUAL MEETING
10 a.m., May 13, 2008
RadioShack Corperation
Fore Worth, Texas 76102

COMMON STOCK

Transfer Agent and Registrar:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Shareownert Services

161 Nerth Concord Exchange

South St. Paul, MN 55075
888-218-4374
www,wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

New York Stock Exchange RSH
Common Stock
(Ticker Symbol "RSH") NYSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Fort Worch, Texas

INVESTOR RELATIONS

RadioShack Corporation’s 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K along with other
documents may be obtained without
charge by writing:

RadioShack Corporation
Shareholder Services Department
300 RadioShack Circle

MS CF4-324

Fort Worth, Texas 76102

Or by telephone: 817-415-3021
Or via the Internec at:
www,radioshackcorporation.com

RadioShack Corporation is an
Equal Opporruaity Employer.

Printed in the U.5.A.

RADIOSHACK has included as Exbibis 31 to its Annnal Report on Form 10-K for fircal year 2007 filed with the Securitses and Exchange Commission certificates
of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Firancial Officer of RadioShack certifying, ameng other things, the quality of RadioShack’s public disclosure. In May 20607,
RuadicShack submitted to the New York Stok Exchange a certificate of the Chief Execuvive Officer of RadioShack certifying that be is not aware of any violation by
RadiaShack of New York Stock Exchange cmporate governance listing standards. A copy of RadisShack’s annual report filed wirh the Securities and Exchange Compais-
sion (Form 10-K) will be furnished without charge to any stockbolder upon written request to the address listed under “Investor Relations” above.



Board of Directors
RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

JULIAN C, DAY
Chairman snd CEQ
RadioShack Corporation
Forr Worth, Texas

Ehair of Exerative Commatier

FRANK J. BELATTI
Managing Parcner
Equicorp Partners, LLC
Atlanta, Georgia

Chuair of Corporate

Goternane Committee

Member of Excutite Commitice

H. EUGENE LOCKIIART
Partner

Diamend Casrle Holdings
New York, New York

Chair of Andit and

Compliance Commitier

Memiber of Executive Commiiter
Member of Corporate

Governance Comrmitiee

JACK L. MESSMAN
Privare Equity [nvestor
and Consulrant

Weston, Massachusetts

Member of Audit and
Complicnce Commitiee

Executive Management Team
RADIOSHACK CORPORATION

\

ROBERT 8. FALCONE
President and CEO
Nautilus, Inc.

Vuncouver, Washington

Member of Awidis and
Complance Commitiee

DANIEL R, FEEHAN
President and CEO

Cash America Internacional, Inc.
Fort Worth, Texus

Presiding Director

Member of Fxecutize Commeiiee

'L‘\_._ - —

WILLIAM G. MORTON, JR. THOMAS G. PLASKETT

Trustee and Advisor Chairman

Non-Profir Director and Trustee Fox Run Capital Assaciates
Roston, Massachusetts [rving, Texas

Member of Managemens Meomber of Audir and

Drevelopwens and Compliance Committer

Compensation Commilte

2 H I': 9
)
HER(
UPGRADE TO THE E
o Az it
o ™ oy

RICHARI) ). HERNANDEZ
Retired President

McKesson Corporate Solutions
McKuesson Corporation
Phoenixville, Pennsylvania

Member of Managemen:

Decelopuient and
Compeniation Uommiltec

EDWINA D. WOODHBURY

President and CEOQ

The Chapel Hill Press, Inc.
Chapel Hill, North Carolina
Chair of Management
Davlopment and

Compensation (ommiitee

Member of Executive Committes
Member of Corporate

Gorernance Committes

PETER WHITSETT
Executive Vice President —
Merchandising

BRYAN BEVIN
Executive Vice President —
Store Operations

JULIAN C. DAY
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

JIM GOOCH
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



RadioShack

RadioShack Cerporatio

h

300 RadioShack Circle, Fort Worth, Texas 76102 | www.radioshackcorporation.com



